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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am honoured to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
“SFK” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”
or “2019”).

SFK is a long established general building contractor in Hong Kong and
is one of its leading general building contractors. The Group is principally
engaged in construction and maintenance projects in Hong Kong and
construction projects in Macau under our brand name “SFK (¥71&/%5)".
We are an approved and omnicompetent contractor of public works in
Hong Kong, including the construction of public housings. We are
included in the list of Approved Contractors maintained by the Works
Branch with Group C status (unlimited value) in all five public works
categories, namely building works, port works, roads and drainage
works, site formation works and water works. Our proven track record
and good reputation in the construction industry reinforces our
competitive position in the construction industry. Besides, we also
provide other services, which mainly comprise housing and property
management services, electrical and mechanical engineering services
and building information modeling (“BIM”) services.

2019 is a year full of challenges. Trade disputes between China and the
United States has posed uncertainties to the macro economy worldwide
and deeply affected Hong Kong'’s trading and logistics sector, which is
one of the Four Pillar Industries in Hong Kong. The social unrest since the
second quarter of 2019 slowed down the local economy and has driven
the gross domestic product growth in 2019 to negative. The destruction
of the Legislative Council building has hindered the approval of
government policies for months. The divergence between the Legislative
Council and the government also rendered the implementation of policies
difficult.
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For the Year, the total revenue of the Group decreased by 11.86% to
HK$5,462 million (2018: HK$6,197 million) and the Group recorded a net
loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$28.83
million (2018: a net profit of HK$129.69 million). The major factors leading
to such change from profit to loss include:

(1) certain projects with relatively high profit margin were completed or
nearly completed during the Year resulting in a reduction of
contributions to revenue and profit by such projects for the Year;

(2)  decline in overall gross profit margin as a result of replacement of
non-performing subcontractors leading to an increase in overall
subcontracting costs;

(8) unexpected prolonged period of inspection of work done and
certification of payments causing a deterioration in project cash
flow and an increase in financing costs; and

(4)  social unrest and mass street protests had a negative impact on
the Group’s management of the construction sites, leading to an
increase in overall operating costs.

During the Year, the Group has been awarded 14 new contracts with
total original contract sum of approximately HK$1,255 million (2018:
HK$5,852 million). The outstanding value of the contracts on hand as at
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$6.3 billion (2018: HK$10
billion), which comprise 17 projects of general building works and 19
projects of civil engineering works. After the Year, the Group has been
awarded a contract for general building works with original contract sum
of approximately HK$1.9 billion. As such, the outstanding value of
contracts on hand is still maintained at a healthy level.

In the Chief Executive’s 2019 Policy Address, the Chief Executive has
reiterated her determination to develop land in the short, medium and
long term by, inter alia, invoking the Lands Resumption Ordinance and
other applicable ordinances to resume private land wholly for public
housing and related infrastructure development, undergoing reclamation
in the Central Waters for developing the Kau Yi Chau Artificial Islands and
other options of near shore reclamation outside Victoria Harbour. The
Chief Executive will also strive to reduce the average waiting time for
public housing for families and elderly singletons to meet the three-year
target of flat allocation. These targets will hopefully bring considerable
opportunities for the building construction and civil engineering industry in
Hong Kong. In the light of these policies, the Group is still optimistic
about the prospects of the construction business in Hong Kong.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TR E

Stepping into 2020, the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease
(COVID-19) and the implementation of the quarantine policy in response
to the epidemic delayed the resumption of work and production in
mainland China after the Chinese New Year. As such the operation of the
entire supply chain is affected and its impact on supply of construction
materials is unavoidable. Even though the domestic epidemic situation in
mainland China appears to be under control and production is gradually
resuming, COVID-19 is still spreading around the globe. The impact of
the epidemic on the supply of construction materials and the overall
economy remains to be seen. Over the past seven decades, SFK and
Hong Kong have together experienced, but have lived through, various
storms and crises. With the leadership of our professional team and with
our united employees working together, we believe we can overcome all
difficulties and thrive.

In order to increase the Group’s transparency and its accountability to
various stakeholders about the Group’s environmental, social and
governance performance, we are pleased to present our ESG 2019
Report in this annual report which summarised our effort and
performance in promoting and strengthening corporate social
responsibility within the Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation
to my fellow board members, management team, staff members,
suppliers, subcontractors, business partners and, most importantly, our

shareholders and customers for their continuous support to the Group.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per share.

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is principally engaged in construction and maintenance
projects in Hong Kong and construction projects in Macau under our
brand “SFK (¥7 & /&)”. In addition, the Group provides other services,
which comprise mainly housing and property management services (such
as the provision of cleaning services and security management services),
electrical and mechanical engineering services and building information
modelling (“BIM”) services to real estates in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Group is one of the few construction companies in Hong Kong that
are included in the List of Approved Contractors maintained by the Works
Branch with Group C status (unlimited value) in all five public works
categories. The Group is also one of the approved contractors to tender
for the Housing Authority’s new works contracts and maintenance
contracts of unlimited value. These are the highest grades in the
respective categories, which enable us to be capable and flexible in
acquiring or tendering for all kinds of Government and Housing
Authority’s construction and maintenance contracts for general building
and civil engineering works.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue for the Year decreased by 11.86% to HK$5,461.87
million (2018: HK$6,197.16 million). The Group recorded a net loss
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of HK$28.83 million in
the Year (2018: a net profit of HK$129.69 million). The results for the Year
were adversely affected by a number of factors. Certain projects with
relatively high profit margin were completed or nearly completed during
the Year resulting in a reduction of contributions to revenue and profit by
such projects for the Year. In addition, the Group had replaced certain
non-performing subcontractors during the Year leading to an increase in
overall subcontracting costs. The unexpected prolonged period of
inspection of work done and certification of payments caused
deterioration in the project cash flow and an increase in financing costs.
The intense competition across the construction market in general led to
an increase in the overall construction costs and affected the profitability.
Furthermore, the social unrest and economic uncertainty in Hong Kong in
the second half of the Year had negatively impacted the Group’s
management of the construction sites, leading to an increase in overall
operating costs during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Maijor projects awarded and undertaken in 2019 TE-AEEMRAENEEER

During the Year, we were awarded 14 projects as a main contractor in R » RIFARESBAEFEEE HFDEM14EEE (5K
Hong Kong (out of which 1 and 13 are from the public sector and private B A& FINAEHENEE 5B A 1 EM13ME)
sector, respectively), with total original contract sum of approximately — REI& #EEEAA1,255 B & BT o TR FIE
HK$1,255 million. The table below sets out the summary of our REHN—RIEFRTATIREZARFRESEIHE
construction and maintenance projects for general building and civil

engineering works that were awarded during the Year:

Number of Total original
projects contract sum
HEHE RETEHMBE
(approximate
HK$’million)
(BH\asEsT)
Original contract sum at or above HK$500 milion 5@ Te A FHIRET AL
£%5 1 627
Original contract sum below HK$500 million SIEBTTATE2EET
but at or above HK$200 million U MR TEE 1 441
Original contract sum below HK$200 million 2{EAB LA TE5,0008
but at or above HK$50 million BT EMRETE L
TH 1 137
Original contract sum less than HK$50 million 5,000 &8 7TA FEYRET
BREH 11 50
14 1,255
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

As at 31 December 2019, we had a total of 17 projects for general

building works and 19 projects for civil engineering works on hand. The fl
total original contract sum of these projects was approximately HK$17
billion. The outstanding value (defined as the difference between revenue
recognised and the original contract sum) of our ongoing projects as at
31 December 2019 was approximately HK$6.3 billion. The following table
sets forth the particulars of some of the sizeable construction and
maintenance projects for general building works and civil engineering

works awarded and undertaken by us as a main contractor and remained
ongoing as at 31 December 2019:

RETH A

—hFtZA=+—8"  ZMFBEEAH7

—&§$IEEE&WMiKI&EE°%§E
BRETEDBRBAOBIT0EBTL - =8
=t+—HEMEREEENRTKREB(TEAEER
WEHHRTANSEHNERE) N ASESET - T
BMEREESHELREAEAER_-Z
—hWE+Z A=+ BNEETNIH —REFT
BRI ARIEBOAREENREHEBEFE

—hF+=A

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2019
5] RZB-h%
BRI RITEH HREE
BEEER EBAB IREE A 8 BEANYE
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BEgET)  (MHREAET)
Main contract for the Park for West General building works Construction of the Art Park in West Kowloon December 2018* 1,140.2 178.7
Kowloon Cultural District Authority —REFTE Cultural District “E-N\E+ZA
BAXEEERROHLEEAY RENEX(ERREHLE
Proposed subsidised housing General building works To build a 31-storey residential block, a single June 2019™* 464.0 233.8
development of Hong Kong Housing ~ —MEF T 12 storey commercial block, an open car park ZE-NERA™
Society and slope improvement
ERRENENEAENRELRER BR1RNEREEE 1R1ERAS
BRBESRARNE
Kai Tak Development for Civil Engineering ~ Civil engineering works Infrastructure works for developments at the September 2019 1,947.0" 226.4™
and Development Department TAIR southern part of the former runway ZE-NENA™
TATRARENAEERE AR ARRRERIE
Construction of Public Rental Housing General building works Construction of Public Rental Housing December 2019™* 707.0 2894
Development of the Housing Authority  —fRIEF T72 Development “E-NEFZA
FEZEENAMAFERRANERE PMRERRERAERETR
IR
Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats General building works Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats February 2020 513.0 230.8
Development of Housing Authority —RiEFIR Development |
FEZESEMNEREYRIERE EYHERBRRABIRETR
Ik
Main Contract for Global Graduate Tower ~ General building works Construction of Global Graduate Tower in February 2020 3164 1874
of HKUST —REFIR HKUST ZECRFCA
BAMBASHRAREZAN REBMRAZEREANRAL
RRERS
T NWFR | FTEERREEBRAF 9



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2019
JRET R=B-h%
BHRT I HREE
BEEH 3 IEEE :E: €3 LG
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BwEgsn)  (BHEgin)
Works Contract for the M+ Waterfront General building works Construction of M+ Waterfront Promenade February 2020 69.7 18.3
Promenade of West Kowloon Cultural ~ —EF T2 EEMGERBER ZEITECR
District Authority
BAXCEEERHMTERELRE
af
Maintenance of hydraulic and pumping ~ General building works Maintenance, improvement and refurbishment March 2020 218 2.1
system and buildings managed by the — maintenance project  for hydraulic and pumping system and ZZ-%F=R
Airport Authority —REFTE - REEE  various buildings managed by the Airport
REGERRERNRENRAZAR Authority
BFRERE RESERREBNRENREZRRSE
BTR{ERE  HEREFIE
Maintenance of properties managed by~ General building works Maintenance, improvement and vacant flat March 2020 246.7 90.6
the Housing Authority — maintenance project refurbishment for properties managed by “E-%FZR
AEERESERMNERMRE —HREFIRE - REEE  the Housing Authority in Tuen Mun and
Yuen Long
REEZESERUNEMRTRNDER
RS HEREEELAN IR
Infrastructure Works for Architectural General building works Construction of Station Square at November 2020 283.6" 19.4™
Services Department —REFTE Kai Tak (Phase 1) I
REEBEMAEREIR RENEERRG (2518
Maintenance of properties managed by~ General building works Alterations, additions, maintenance and repair March 2021 14718 436.7
the Architectural Services Department — maintenance project of buildings and lands and properties in () —E--%=f
RESZEBRNNERMARE —#EFIR2 - REEE  HongKong lsland Eastern and Outlaying
Islands (South); and (i) Hong Kong Island
Western, Southern and Lantau Island for
which Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is responsible
REEZZE(MZERE)AENESRER
BE(E): RESER - BERAEL
WEF THROEETSR ME-R
EREBIR
Site Formation and Infrastructure Works  Civil engineering works Site formation and infrastructure works for July 2021 409.0 134.1
for Civil Engineering and Development AT development at Kam Tin South, Yuen Long “Z--%F+A

Department
TAIRAREN I TEMERRIE
Ik

— Advance works
SRR N T TRAERRET
B-ggIe
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2019
R&T RZZ-0E
BHRT RIEH HREE
BEER E3 Yok IREE R Ex ERN K
(approximate (approximate
HK$'million) HK$'million)
(BEEET)  (MHEEAET)
Maintenance of properties managed by~ General building works Maintenance, improvement and vacant flat September 2021 863.2 214.0
the Housing Authority — maintenance project refurbishment for properties in (i) Wong Tai “E--%hA
RREZE2ERNNERERE —REFTIEE —REWE  Sin, Tsing Yiand Tsuen Wan; and (i) Hong
Kong Island & Islands
ROEXI - ERREER : R()BSRE
BRAONERMARE HERTEEUH
IR
Piers maintenance for Civil Engineering ~ Civil engineering works —  To carry out maintenance works for piers March 2022 160.1 58.7
and Development Department maintenance project  AEBBEETRETLE S|
TATRARENBEERESY TAIE - REEE
Design and Construction managed by the -~ General building works Design and Construction of Minor Works to August 2022 531.1 742
Architectural Services Department — maintenance project Government and Subvented Properties “Z--"F)\Rf
BREZTEMNTRREESGRIET  —WETFIZ - (REBHE  for Architectural Services Department
— New Tenitories and Outlying Islands
(North)
REEEAENHITRERABREN
P TRETRE RIEL
- HARES (L)
Construction of Public Rental Housing General building works Construction of Public Rental Housing October 2022 3,740.0 770.1
Development and Subsidised Sale —REFTE Development and Subsidlised Sale Flats TR
Flats Development of the Housing Development
Authority PAREREERAERANLERE
FEZEENARARELEHEIRE BRTERETIR

PHERERRHBRETR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

Revenue
Original recognised
contract during the
completion Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works date  contract sum 2019
JRET R=B-h%
BHRT RATEH HREE
BEEE $H98 IEEE :E: €3 LG
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BwEgsn)  (BHEgin)
Management and maintenance of roads  Civil engineering works —  Management and maintenance of public March 2024 482.6 148.3
in Kowloon East for the Highways maintenance project roads, including associated slopes, “Z-mE=AR
Department TARTE - REER highway structures, tunnels, landscaping
RENEERRRENERER and minor improvement works, in
Kowloon East but excluding Expressways
and High Speed Roads
EEMBEENERNDLER (REAKR
BRERRI) - BEETHEEOMNSL
EREED  BE  BRRENRE
BEUEIR
Electrical and Mechanical Works for Civil engineering works Electrical and Mechanical works for sewage May 2024 557.6 -
Sewage Treatment Facilties of the TATIE treatment facilties in Shek Wu Hui ZZZMERA
Drainage Services Department Effluent Polishing Plant (Mein Works
EBBKRERENRETR Stage 1)
IKEERBAEETLR — AERK
Hie(FRIEE-KE)
Three Runway System Project for the General building works Building and Civil Works for New Integrated September 2024 440.7 16.5
Hong Kong International Airport —RBTIR Airport Centres ZZZEENA
EEBRKS - HEZRTRAY MEAEREH R OETRIATE
* In a form of joint operation in which the Company participates in 40% of the contract. 1 RAGEEBEN - ARFRFE40% A O
*2 In a form of joint operation in which the Company participates in 51% of the contract. *2 HEEEEBER - ARAIFE 1% B LM -
> The revenue recognised represented our shares of the contract. ** BRI B R MG A R0 -

The original contract completion date has been postponed and the contract was stil e BE-Z-NE+-A=1+—8 " RiIAHNTIEHEHE
ongoing as at 31 December 2019. & #NTEHEITF -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Major projects completed in 2019

Completed projects refer to projects for which we have received the
completion certificates from the respective customers or terms of year of
the contracts expired. Details of the major projects completed by the
Group as a main contractor during the Year are as follows:

BEE W kDT

TE-NFRANEERR

EREBEHRMEEEEP KT IEREHAL
FHCEMNIER - FA - AEBRAREE S0 T
R EEBEBFFIFMOT

Revenue
recognised
Original during the
contract Original financial year
Project type Business segment Scope of works period  contract sum 2019
R=B-n%
FHEEE HREE
BERER EBOB IREE EHEEE Ex BRN K
(approximate (approximate
HKS$'milion) HKS$'milion)
(BoagEn)  (HOEEAT)
Home ownership scheme development ~ General building works To build 3 blocks of around 30 April 2016 to September 2018* 1,297.0 197.7
of the Housing Authority —REFIR storeys buildings, car park and 2 FNAZE
FEZE2RERRER car port, and ancillary structures —Z-\ENR
FARIENNESETF
FHEERERERHBEEY
Home ownership scheme development  General building works To build 3 blocks of around 27 February 2015 to October 2018* 1,299.0 1705
of the Housing Authority —REFIR storeys building and ancillary “Z-nF-R%
FEZEERERRER structures ZE-\EFR
HEIENTERETR
WEEED
Enhancement works at Carpark of Civil engineering works Enhancement works at Car Park 1 September 2017 to November 2018* 128.7 89.9
Airport Authority Hong Kong TAIR —SEBESHEIE “EtFNAZE
WEERRRESUEIR T \E+-R
Contract with the Hospital Authority General building works To carry out minor works for New July 2016 to June 2019 734.2 2613
HEREERNAY — maintenance project  Territories East and New Territories “E-RFLAZ
—fRBFIE - REBEE  West Clusters ZE-NERA
AMRR R RERRBAE R
T2
Public rental housing development of ~ General building works To build 5 domestic blocks with 4,846 August 2016 to October 2019 3,047.0 762.7

the Housing Authority —fREFIR

FEZEERNERRIER

during the year ended 31 December 2019.

flats and ancillary buildings
25 4,846 B
EERERREREY

The original contract completion date was postponed and the contract was completed

A majority of our revenue is generated from our general building and civil
engineering works. During the Year, the revenue attributable to our
general building and civil engineering business amounted to HK$4,288.19
million and HK$988.80 million (2018: HK$4,807.08 million and
HK$1,236.28 million), respectively, representing approximately 78.51%
and 18.10% (2018: 77.57% and 19.95%), respectively, of the total

revenue of the Group for the Year.

- AENAE
e

* REIIAHTTRHEHE  MENERBE-S-AF+=
R=+—HILFERXK °

BRI D WS RE —EFREARTRE - FR -
—MEFRIARIEERRZE SR /H4,288.198 &
ST 988.80 B EEIIL(ZE—/\F : 4,807.08 5 &
BT Kk 1,236.28 B&BT) © A hMEFRAREE UL
35 A97851% K1810%( — B — )\ F : 77.57% &
19.95%) °

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA 13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

During the Year, other than general building and civil engineering works,
we also provided other services which comprised mainly housing and
property management services (such as the provision of cleaning services
and security management services), electrical and mechanical
engineering services and BIM services to real estates in Hong Kong and
the PRC. Revenue attributable to these other services amounted to
approximately 3.39% of the total revenue of the Group for the Year (2018:
2.48%).

Award of Contract after the Reporting Period

The Group has been awarded and undertaken the following contract for
general building works after the reporting period and the table below sets
forth the particulars of the project:

FA - BR—REFREARTESN  BRPTPIRHEMAR
B XEREREERTENEERESELD
EEERE(WBRRERRLZEERS) MET
2R M BIMBRTS - H AL RIS FE(S WS (h F AR EE
BUREE#)3.39% (—ZF— \ 5 : 2.48%) °

RBERRBERNEN

RREHER  FEECERLNAEUT —REFTT
RAEH  TREIIZERNFS

Original

Project type Business segment Scope of works Contract period  contract sum

FRER Ey Sk IRER A RITANEE

(approximate

HK$'million)

(B4

BEAT)

Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats General building works Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats February 2020 to 1,911.0
Development of the Housing Authority —REFIE BPHERERETR October 2022
FEZECENMNERERRIEIRELR “Z-REAF
ZZCETR

Our commitment to safety, quality and environment

The Board is of the view that the continued success of our business
primarily depends on our ability to meet our customers’ requirements,
particularly in respect of safety, quality and environmental aspects. The
Group has established a set of quality assurance measures and has
committed to high safety standard and environmental impact control.
Through the systematic and effective control of the Group’s operations
and monitoring procedures and control over its subcontractors,
compliance with safety, quality and environmental requirements can be
further assured, and such that non-conformance, environmental incidents
and liability can be eliminated or reduced.

The Group has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
ISO9001, 1ISO14001, ISO50001 and OHSAS18001 certifications. The
Board believes that these certifications will enhance our public image,
credibility and customers’ confidence in the Group. In recent years, more
and more tenders have included the requirements of ISO9001, ISO14001
and OHSAS18001 certifications and our certified status will bring us
more business opportunities and uphold our competitiveness.

For more details on our performance in safety, quality and environmental

aspects, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “ESG Report”) on pages 36 to 97 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Effective cost control and savings measures

Our management has been flexible and will continue to do so in deploying
resources with reference to the stage of completion of various ongoing
projects in order to capture business opportunities and to optimise the
allocation of resources.

Given our wide diversity of works, we are able to implement a centralised
resources sourcing and allocation system which allows us to reduce
costs by making bulk purchases and maximise utilisation of resources,
and a customised enterprise resources planning programme to monitor
the cost in real time.

We maintain good and long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors. By having long-standing relationships with our
subcontractors, we can make comprehensive assessment of our
subcontractors over years so as to ensure the quality of works in the long
run. Our relationships with these subcontractors also obviate the need for
keeping a large number of workers under permanent employment of the
Group, thereby giving us the feasibility to deploy our resources more cost
effectively without compromising our quality.

-
— =

BEE W kDT

BRI A ES R ENER

BPMERE -BEX SRS EETHRHEANTRE
EEERALER  BRILEFRLELERILK -

ERRMNTIRBEEZZHEE  RARAETER
RERDERSG  SHAVTEBHERBERDER
FRARRERA - YIRIEESERNEEERRE

RER KK -

BMPEDBAESRIFNEMEFERR KBRH
EBER  RFEAEZEFEDEENZERE - K
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue decreased by approximately HK$735.29 million, or
approximately 11.86%, from HK$6,197.16 million for 2018 to
HK$5,461.87 million for 2019. The decrease in our revenue was mainly
due to the decrease in our revenue from general building business of
HK$518.89 million and the decrease in our revenue from civil engineering
business of HK$247.48 million.

Revenue from general building business decreased by approximately
HK$518.89 million, or approximately 10.79%, from HK$4,807.08 million
for 2018 to HK$4,288.19 million for 2019. The decrease in revenue
between years was primarily due to the completion of certain general
building contracts, including the construction of a public rental housing
development and two home ownership scheme developments for the
Housing Authority. This was partly offset by the increase in revenue
between years in accordance with the work progress of other general
building contracts, including the construction of a public rental housing
development and a subsidised sale flats development for the Housing
Authority, and the construction of a global graduate tower for the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.

Revenue from civil engineering business decreased by approximately
HK$247.48 million, or approximately 20.02%, from HK$1,236.28 million
for 2018 to HK$988.80 million for 2019. The decrease in revenue
between years was primarily due to the completion of certain civil
engineering contracts and decrease in revenue recognised in certain civil
engineering projects, including reconstruction and upgrading of Kai Tak
Nullah.

Revenue from other services (which mainly comprised housing and
property management services, electrical and mechanical engineering
services and BIM services) for 2019 amounted to HK$184.88 million
(2018: HK$153.81 million), representing 3.39% (2018: 2.48%) of the total
revenue of the Group.

Our business remained to be primarily focusing in the Hong Kong market
during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit decreased by approximately HK$198.03 million,
or approximately 72.49%, from HK$273.18 million for 2018 to HK$75.15
million for 2019. The decrease in our gross profit between years was
partly due to the completion of certain sizable general building contracts
during the Year resulting in a decrease in contributions to profit by such
projects. In addition, the replacement of non-performing subcontractors
during the Year led to an increase in overall subcontracting costs, and a
gross loss of approximately HK$50 million was recorded for two general
building maintenance contracts during the Year.

Gross profit margin for 2019 amounted to 1.38%, which was lower when
compared to that of 4.41% for 2018. The replacement of non-performing
subcontractors resulted in losses in certain maintenance contracts and
negatively impacted the gross profit margin of the Group for 2019. In
addition, the intense competition across the construction market in
general led to an increase in the overall construction costs and affected
the profitability. The social unrest and mass street protests in Hong Kong
in the second half of the Year also had a negative impact on our
management of the construction sites, leading to an increase in overall
operating costs and a reduction in gross profit margin.

Other revenue

Other revenue mainly consisted of interest income and sundry income.
Our other revenue for 2019 amounted to HK$2.61 million, which was
lower compared to that of HK$4.76 million for 2018. This was mainly due
to the decrease in sundry income between years.

Other net loss

Our other net loss for 2019 amounted to HK$0.53 million, which was
about in line compared to that of HK$0.46 million for 2018.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses mainly consisted of staff costs and rental
charges. Our administrative expenses for 2019 amounted to HK$84.07
million, compared to that of HK$92.53 million for 2018. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in staff costs between years.

Finance costs

Our finance costs for 2019 amounted to HK$19.41 million, compared to
that of HK$12.23 million for 2018. The increase was primarily associated
with the increase in bank interest expenses arising from the increase in
average bank loan balances and average interest rates.

—NE®R | HREE

R =b VY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R LT

Share of results of a joint venture

Our share of results of a joint venture for 2019 was a net loss of HK$6.75
million, compared to that of a net loss of HK$15.80 million for 2018. The
decrease in net loss between years was mainly attributable to the
decrease in losses recorded for one of the Cotai Resort projects when
compared to the previous year.

Income tax

Our income tax for 2019 was a credit of HK$3.60 million, compared to
an expense of HK$27.59 million for 2018. The net credit balance in 2019
was mainly explained by the recognition of deferred tax from tax losses in
certain subsidiaries’ books that are expected to be utilised in future years.

(Loss)/profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company

Based on the above factors, there was a loss attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company amounting to HK$28.83 million for 2019,
compared to a profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$129.69 million for 2018.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following are some principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group,
which may materially adversely affect its business, financial condition or
results of operations:

Highly regulated industry

The construction industry is a highly regulated industry and our business
is subject to various government regulations. In accordance with the laws
of Hong Kong and Macau, the Group is required to obtain or maintain
certain registrations, licences and/or certifications to operate its business.
All such registrations, licences and/or certificates are granted/renewed
and maintained upon the satisfactory compliance by the Group with,
among others, the applicable criteria set by the relevant government
departments or organisations. Such criteria may include the maintenance
of certain financial criteria including the working capital level, the
adequacy of our management structure and the appropriate experience
and qualification of the personnel of the Group. These registrations,
licences and/or certificates may only be valid for a limited period of time
and may be subject to periodic reviews and renewal by government
authorities and relevant organisations. In addition, the standards of
compliance required in relation thereto may from time to time be subject
to changes without substantial advance notice.

The loss of or failure to obtain or renew or a suspension of any or all of

the Group’s registrations, licences and/or certifications could materially
and adversely affect the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Reliance on the contracts granted by the Hong Kong
Government

The Hong Kong Government has been and is expected to continue to be
the Group’s largest customer. If there is any decrease or delay in the
spending of the Hong Kong Government in the construction industry or
any revocation or suspension of the licences, the business, results of
operations and financial positions of the Group may be adversely
affected.

Competitive tendering progress and the making of
estimates

The business of the Group operates on a non-recurring and project-by-
project basis. We have no long-term commitments with our customers,
but rely on successful tenders that determine the award of construction
contracts. The number of contracts awarded to the Group, therefore,
may vary from time to time. Upon completion of its contracts on hand,
the Group’s financial performance may adversely be affected if the Group
is unable to secure new tenders or obtain new contract awards with
comparable contract sums or at all.

Further, in the tendering process, the Group has to estimate construction
time and costs in order to determine the tender price. However the actual
implementation of a project may not accord with such estimation due to
cost overruns and/or other related construction risks. If our estimates of
the overall risks, revenue or costs prove inaccurate, the Group will
experience lower profitability or even make losses on contracts, which
could materially and adversely affect its business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

Uncertainty in construction progress

The Group relies on subcontractors to implement the construction
contracts and there is no assurance that these subcontractors will be
able to continue providing services to us at fees acceptable to us or our
relationship with them could be maintained in the future. In the event that
any of our principal subcontractors are unable to provide the required
services to the Group or their cost for providing the required services
increase substantially, the Group’s business, results of operations,
profitability and liquidity may be adversely affected.

Further, there may be delays or disruptions to our works due to
unforeseen circumstances that are beyond our control. If the Group fails
to complete works by the relevant deadlines as stipulated in the
contracts, it may be required to compensate its customers and the
Group’s business, results of operations, profitability and liquidity may be
adversely affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EE S w kDT

Uncertain external factors

Most of our operations are currently located in Hong Kong. Although the
construction industry in Hong Kong has been growing in view of the
strong housing needs and government large infrastructure projects, the
future growth and prospect will largely depend on the continued
prosperity of the property market and the continued availability of major
construction projects.

For more details of the above principal risks and uncertainties and other
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, please refer to the section
headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
November 2015 (the “Prospectus”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (“KPIS”) WITH
THE STRATEGY OF THE GROUP

The Group sets a number of KPIs to support the delivery of its strategies
with its performance, including the followings, and others in respect of
environment, social and governance matters which are discussed in the

ESG Report.

Strategy
g

KPIs
IERBAER

BEE W kDT

FREFHEHEZRAER(EEZREE
#®1)

AEEREETIBRABREIFERERR KR
BREATREMEBRE HERERFAZES
TEXRBEENRE  HEREARSAT W °

Performance

=3

Maximise value for the
Shareholders

RERAERAEE

Improve the Group’s liquidity
HWEAEBRBDESR

Strive for the “zero harm”
safety goal
WNERTEEILE2ERE

Gross profit margin
=1.38% (2018: 4.41%)
EHE
=1.38% (ZZT—N\F : 4.41%)

Net cash from operating activities
= HK$148.19 million
(2018: net cash from
operating activities
HK$129.75 million)
RERBAEENR S FE
=14819E&E T
(ZZ—\F : FLEDELR
R FFE129.75BEHTT)

Cash and bank balances (excluding
pledged deposits)
= HK$263.50 million
(2018: HK$216.90 million)

R RIRTTHES (PREDEREFER)
=263.50 A& BT
(ZZ—N\F : 216905 EHT)

Accident rate
= 10.44 per 1,000 workers
(2018: 12.39 per 1,000 workers)
BONEIE
=BTHITA10.44
(ZZE—N\F : §FHIA1239)

The Group strived to maintain stable operation
performance during the Year despite intense
competition across the construction market.
BERERETSNHRF NI REERFANE
NHEFRTENRERE -

The Group adopts a policy to regularly monitor the
liquidity requirements of the Group and the Group’s
compliance with lending covenants so as to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet the liquidity
requirements of the Group in the short and longer
term.

REBERRNEREEREERDE T R RERZH
ERBEANBEER  BREBTHRCEBEREIZSR
BENTEREARESEE  UWENEHARRAEDE

During the Year, the Group has put adequate
resources and effort to uphold and improve its safety
management system in order to reduce its risks
related to safety issues. Our accident rate for 2019
was 10.44 per 1,000 workers which remains low
and is significantly lower than the construction
industry average, of which the industry average for
2018 was 31.70 per 1,000 workers according to the
Labour Department of Hong Kong.
AEERFARATRERTIBR MRS RAEL S
EIREG  ARERBBRELEZRR - —T—NF
BAFATABIIERER1044 REFETHEE
ERBEEITEFIIKFE - EESTRNEHET
—E-N\EFTEFETABIIERERS1.70 ¢
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R LT

OUR RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUPPLIERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The customers of the Group are divided into two categories: (a) public
sector including Hong Kong Government and its related organisations
and institutional bodies; and (b) the private sector. During the Year, all
projects of the Group were secured by tendering. The Group maintains
good relationships with its customers, and have regular contacts with
customers, architects and other consultants in the construction industry
to keep abreast of market development and potential business
opportunities.

Suppliers

The major purchases required for our business are construction materials,
which mainly consist of concrete and steel sourced mainly in Hong Kong.
Generally, the Group selects suppliers from a pre-qualified list of suppliers
based on their past performances and capacities to comply with
specified project requirements. Only those suppliers on our approved list
are invited to submit quotations or tenders. We have maintained good
and long standing working relationship with our suppliers and some of
our suppliers have been working with us for over 20 years. We do not
foresee any difficulties in sourcing materials in the future.

Subcontractors

The Group generally acts as the main contractor and will engage or
outsource to subcontractors to carry out certain part of the works. While
the Group has not entered into any long-term agreement with its
subcontractors, it engages them on project basis. Nevertheless, the
Directors believe that the Group has maintained good relationships with
its subcontractors. Some of the subcontractors have been working with
the Group for over ten years and we had not experienced any significant
disruption in the provision of works by our subcontractors. With the
relatively large pool of approved subcontractors in the Group’s pre-
qualified list, we do not foresee any difficulties in finding substitute
subcontractors, if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and remuneration policy

The Group maintains a very stable and experienced management team
and an amicable long-term relationship with its employees as it is our
belief that our employees are important assets to the Group. As at 31
December 2019, the Group has 2,015 employees in Hong Kong, Macau
and the PRC of which 1,835 were full-time employees and 180 were
part-time employees. The Group’s total remuneration for 2019 was
approximately HK$710 million. The Directors recognise the importance of
attracting and retaining staff. In order to promote employee loyalty and
retention, the Group provides technical and operational on-job trainings
to its employees covering various aspects of its operations including
contract law, and workplace and occupational safety. The Directors
consider that the Group has maintained good relationship with its
employees. The Group has not experienced any strikes, work stoppages
or labour disputes which affected its operations during the Year. The
Directors also consider that the relationship and co-operation between
the management team and the employees have been good during the
Year.

The Group entered into separate labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong, Macau and
the PRC. The remuneration offered to employees generally includes
salaries, medical benefits and bonus. Share options may also be granted
to eligible employees. In general, the Group determines salaries of its
employees based on each employee’s qualification, position, seniority
and experience.

More information concerning our customers, suppliers, subcontractors
and employees are set out in the ESG Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R LT

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Directors believe that it is essential for the Group to act as an
environmentally responsible contractor to meet the customers’ demands
in environmental protection and the expectation of the community for a
healthy living environment and in return it will ensure the healthy growth
and development of the business. The Group is committed to sustainable
construction and minimisation of any adverse impact on the environment
resulting from its business activities. In the course of delivery of its
services, the Group shall (i) focus on prevention of pollution, waste
minimisation and resource conservation as critical considerations within
our core management process; (i) comply with applicable legal
requirements and other requirements which relate to its environment
aspects; and (i) establish, implement and maintain the environmental
management system and strive for continual improvement in
environmental performance.

In order to comply with the applicable environmental protection
legislation, we have established an environmental management system in
accordance with 1ISO14001:2004 international standards and were
awarded 1SO14001 certification in 2006. The Group has assigned
separate resources to implement its environment management system
and maintain its 1ISO14001 certification with an aim to reduce its risks
related to environmental issues. The Group promotes environment-
friendly construction worksites, install environmental facilities and put in
place environment control measures at our construction sites as
appropriate. In 2015, we were awarded ISO50001 certification for the
energy management systems of our head office and construction sites.

All along, the Group had a low number of environmental-related non-
compliance incidents. There was no conviction in 2019 of violating the
relevant environmental laws and regulations. In 2018, there was only one
count of conviction on environmental-related non-compliance incident.
We will continue to ensure implementation of our policy on environmental
management as mentioned above to avoid violation of applicable laws or
regulations in respect of environment.

Further disclosures on the environmental aspect are made in the ESG report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Group was fined for a total sum of HK$47,000 in
respect of 4 summonses for violation of certain regulations under the
Factories and Industrial Undertaking Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “FIU Ordinance”) related to four accident events. The
Directors consider that these four accidents were independent and
isolated incidents.

During the Year, save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual
report, the Group has complied with all applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and Macau in all material aspects for the business operation
of the Group. During the Year, the Group has also obtained all necessary
licenses, permits or certificates necessary to conduct its business
operation in Hong Kong, and has made the necessary registration and
obtained the necessary licenses to carry out its business in Macau.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2019, the capital structure of the Group consisted of
equity of HK$448.17 million (2018: HK$493.78 million) and bank loans of
HK$408.46 million (2018: HK$371.73 million) as more particularly
described in the paragraph headed “Borrowings” below.

Cash position and fund available

During the Year, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position, with
working capital being financed by our operating cash flows and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2019, our cash and cash equivalents
were HK$263.51 million (2018: HK$216.90 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the current ratio of the Group was 1.19 (2018:
1.25).

Our principal uses of cash have been, and are expected to continue to
be, operational costs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEE R LT

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank loans, which are
repayable within one year, of approximately HK$408.46 million (2018:
HK$371.73 million). As at 31 December 2019, the bank loans bear
interest ranging from 3.75% to 5.45% (2018: 3.42% to 4.44%) per
annum. The increase in bank loans between years was mainly used to
finance the working capital of ongoing projects. The Group’s net
borrowings position (i.e. total borrowings minus total cash and cash
equivalents) slightly improved between years from HK$155 million as at
31 December 2018 to HK$145 million as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately HK$2,205 million
(2018: HK$2,056 million) of unutilised banking facilities in Hong Kong and
Macau (including loans, letter of credit and letter of guaranteed facilities).
All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of certain
covenants as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term. The Group remains in compliance with its loan
covenants during the Year.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 91.14% (2018:
75.28%), calculated based on the interest-bearing borrowings divided by
the total equity as at the respective year end.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net current assets of
HK$351.87 million (2018: HK$419.00 million).

The Board regularly reviewed the maturity analysis of the Group’s
contractual liabilities and concluded that the Group had no liquidity issue
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily comprise purchase of plant
and equipment, such as motor vehicles and equipment, which were
funded, and are expected to continue to be funded, by internal resources
and cash flow generated from our operation. For the Year, the Group has
incurred HK$15.45 million (2018: HK$28.62 million) on acquiring items of
plant and equipment.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The functional currency to which the Group’s operations and assets and
liabilities are denominated is the Hong Kong dollars. The Group has cash
balances that is denominated in the United States dollars, Renminbi and
British Pound. Given that the Hong Kong dollars are pegged with the
United States dollars, there is no currency risk exposure to the United
States dollars. The Board considers that the Group was not exposed to
significant foreign exchange risk. The Board will review the Group’s
foreign exchange risk and exposure from time to time.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES,
AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures during the Year and no future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Except for investments in the subsidiaries, a joint venture and joint
operations as mentioned in notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not hold any significant investments during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed below, the Group had no other financial guarantees
and contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2019:

@

28

As at 31 December 2019, approximately HK$387,310,000 (2018:
HK$402,995,000) of performance bonds were given by financial
institutions to the Group in favour of the Group’s customers as
security for the due performance and observance of the Group’s
obligation under the contracts entered into between the Group and
their customers. The Group has provided guarantees of the above
performance bonds. If the Group fails to provide satisfactory
performance to its customers to whom performance bonds have
been given, such customers may demand the financial institutions
to pay to them the sum or sums stipulated in such demand. The
Group will then become liable to compensate such financial
institutions accordingly. The performance bonds will be released
upon completion of the contract works.

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the Company do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has provided guarantees of
HK$166,447,000 (2018: HK$214,991,000) representing a 50%
proportionate guarantee in respect of certain banking facilities of
HK$332,893,000 (2018: HK$429,981,000) granted to its joint
venture in Macau. The 50% proportionate facilities were utilised to
the extent of HK$88,530,000 (2018: HK$94,389,000), of which
amounts of HK$60,756,000 (2018: HK$73,530,000) represent
performance bonds given by financial institutions to the customers
of the joint venture.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as their fair values cannot be reliably measured
using observable market data and no transaction price was
incurred.

The subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in a number of
claims, lawsuits and potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation cases and personal injuries claims. The directors of
the Company considered that the possibility of any economic
outflow in settling the legal claims is remote as these claims are all
well covered by insurance. Accordingly, no provision for the
contingent liabilities in respect of these litigations is necessary, after
due consideration of each case.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged deposits, amounting to
HK$25.13 million (2018: HK$25.04 million) and assignment of project
proceeds from certain construction contracts of the Group, the Group’s
joint operations and the Group’s joint venture to banks as security of
banking facilities (including bank loans and performance bonds). Pledged
deposits remained relatively stable between years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, our Group did not have any capital
commitments (2018: HK$5.50 million).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Since early 2020, there is an outbreak of a coronavirus disease which
has put tremendous pressure across the global economy. The Hong
Kong Government has taken various measures to try to overcome the
challenges arising from the outbreak, and is committed to leading the
construction industry and increasing land supply for housing
development. The Board is confident of the Group’s future development
and will continue to build on existing competitive strengths to achieve our
long term business objectives.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREERERE

4 Proposed Subsidised Housing Development
at Junction of Shek Pai Tau Road
and Ming Kum Road, Tuen Mun TMTL545,
New Territories
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Subsidised Sale Flats p
Development at

Hang Kin Street,

Ma On Shan Area 90B
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4 Construction of Public Rental
Housing Development of
Tung Tau Estate Phase 8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEFRERE

Construction of Public Rental Housing
Development Phases 1 & 2 and Subsidised
Sale Flats Development at Diamond Hill
Comprehensive Development Area

VREALGESRRES —  —HAH
HEFERRREREBHERE
BRESTEEETIR

4 Main Contract for Global
Graduate Tower for
The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHRRRMEHFREAE

4 Civil Engineering and Development
Department Maintenance Contract
for Piers (2017-2022)
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Highways Department Term Contract  p
(Management and Maintenance of Roads
in Kowloon East excluding Expressways
and High Speed Roads 2018-2024)
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4 Site Formation and Infrastructure
Works for Development at Kam Tin
South, Yuen Long - Advance Works
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREEFRERE

4 KaiTak Development - Stage 2
Infrastructure Works for
Developments at the Southern
Part of the Former Runway
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Hong Kong International >
Airport Term Contract M297-4
Maintenance, Improvement and
Refurbishment Works for Buildings
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN WD

CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE PROJECTS IN PROGRESS
EEETHERREERERE

District Term Contract for the 2
Maintenance, Improvement and
Vacant Flat Refurbishment for
Properties Managed by Property
Service Administration Unit / Tuen
Mun and Yuen long (1) 2017/2020
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4 Term Contract for the Alterations,
Additions, Maintenance and
Repair of Buildings and Lands and
Other Properties for which the
Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is
Responsible (Designated Contract
Area : Hong Kong Island Eastern and
Outlying Islands (South))

REREWESHE)WEREY
TR E A SEEITGE - R -
REREBIRNERSN (EH
EEE: BERENES (F))

34 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W kDT

MAJOR PROJECTS COMPLETED IN 2019
—E-AFREHEERERRE

4 Construction of Home Ownership Scheme
Development at Choi Hing Road
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Construction of Home p
Ownership Scheme
Development at

Sheung Lok Street,
Homantin

MR SR 4
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4 Construction of Public Rental
Housing Development at Fo Tan
(in ShaTin Areas 16 & 58D)
Phases 1 & 2
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD STATEMENT

Dear valued stakeholders,

We are pleased to share how SFK Construction Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (collectively “SFK” or the “Group”) are putting sustainability at
the heart of our business to deliver excellent projects to our clients for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The past year was a challenging year. At the global level, geopolitical
tension resulted in financial and economic uncertainties, and undermined
international collaboration in confronting many global issues. At the local
level, months of social unrest posed great challenge to many local
corporations to further their investment into sustainable development.
Amid these uncertainties and complexities, it is of paramount importance
for the Group to include and bring benefits to different stakeholders so as
to promote social harmony and achieve sustainable development. The
Group understands our goal is to deliver quality and sustainable
construction works to our clients. We care sincerely about the
environment just as we uphold the quality of our works, and we value the
well-being of the community around us just as we upkeep the safety of
our staff and the public.

The Group continued to explore and adopt new technologies to enhance
our productivity and quality. To exemplify, digital technologies such as
Building Information Modelling (“BIM”) have been applied in many of our
projects to streamline and enhance the construction process. The Group
also utilized novel sustainable financial products such as sustainable
deposit to support United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals. In
addition, through prudent monitoring and control and diligent
management and training, we strive to minimise and mitigate
environmental impacts and nuisance, and make no compromise on
occupational health and safety. We are delighted to report that our
sustained efforts in these respects have been recognised by various
awards issued by authorities and associations in the past year.

Appreciating the society’s support to our business growth, the Group
gives support to various non-profit making organisations through
sponsorships and donations as well as volunteering so as to make our
humble support to the under-privileged and the unfortunate class of
people.

We make every effort in our capacity to ensure the utmost well-being of
our staff, our community and our environment and hand-in-hand strive
for a better future by employing efficient technologies, supporting
sustainability initiatives and enhancing our climate resilience.

Board of Directors
Hong Kong, 26 March 2020
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CHAPTER 1 ABOUT THIS REPORT
1.1

1.2

38

Introduction

The adoption of Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
criteria is an emerging trend for stakeholders to evaluate the
performance of companies. This report is presented to respond to
this expectation with high transparency of operation and to
showcase our effort in various ESG aspects.

Report Compilation Basis

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The information disclosed
in this report was derived from the results of internal statistics and
analysis of the Group’s internal management systems. The ESG
issues which were the most pertinent to the Group’s operations
and key stakeholders were identified.

The report is prepared according to four reporting principles:

(i) Materiality: report content is guided by the result of our
stakeholder engagement;

(i) Quantitative: ESG performance is reported in quantitative
figures;

(i) Consistency: reporting methodology and calculation basis are
compatible across reporting periods; and

(iv) Balance: unbiased information is transparently disclosed in
this report.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

@ SFK staff and their
family members
participated in the Walk
For Your Heart Charity
Walk 2019 held by
“Care for Your Heart”
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The Volunteer Team of SFK participated @
in the “Genie Valley” volunteer
activity held by SAHK

HEEEIRSEBEHSERD
[RELS| HRILEH

@ The Volunteer Team of SFK participated in“The
Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council’s
Mid-Autumn Festival visiting volunteer activity”

HEAERIBESN [MEHEE — FOXK
WK EE

nstruction Group

2 s
oo 7965

@ SFK’s exhibition
booth in Drainage
Services Department
Open Day 2019

Htme N RIEERRK A
2019 2 R B

SFK held“Community @
Care”Hoarding Decoration
Parent-Child Competition

HMEBEN [HEMBIR
T£1‘§J EREAHRF
nE = tt%
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Tkm|3km |1 - |sd * g
HONGKONGS*’Gé ;
26.1.2019

SFK staff participated in the
Construction Industry Council’s
“Construction Industry

Happy Run 2019”

HEARESNEEXRS
B [RBIEXRF O 2019

SFK staff participated in the English
Schools Foundation’s “ESF Run 2019”

HEBRSSMREZRGE
Hi [REFHEHE 2019

SFK staff participated in the @
Standard Chartered Hong Kong
Marathon 2019

HERRESHEN
HEBFAR 2019
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@ Basketball Team of
SFK participated in the
“CIC Basketball
Competition 2019”

FEABERKSN [
EETERMFEE 2019

SFK stafftook partinthe @
Football Match Final

HEBRSETRER
LEBBRE
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SFK provided ICAC
seminars to our staff from
time to time

BB TR
RTHRERET

SFK organized the SFK
Safety & Environmental
Awards Scheme 2019
FEBERNERELSE
RIRREBTE 2019

@® SFKheld seminars on tax
information for our staff
MEARMEBEENR
HBEHLRET
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@ SFK supported and exhibited in 8" IWA-ASPIRE Conference and Exhibition
FRAXFYZR [SEEERKBEAtESEREE ]

1.3 Scope of Reporting 1.3 HEEE

This ESG report discloses the relevant initiatives of the Group and TRE HELREARERBLAEEBE -Z

its progress for the reporting period from 1 January 2019 to 31 —hWFE—AR—HBE-Z—hh&E+-A=+—H

December 2019. The construction sites are selected based on the IR E AR AR RS L S - BT Y

following selection criteria: ERA TR EEEREE

o Original contract sum is higher than HK$100 million; . RET&HeEaR—EET

e The contract is expected to complete after 30 June 2019; . EHNBEHTIABA-_T—NF~A
and =THZ#E: &

e The contract commenced before 30 June 2019. . EHRIAMA-T—NFAA=1+H

pd: 1

Based on their significant contributions to the Group, the head BEHANEENEELERE  BHEERE

office and the construction sites of the following entities were AR B AR RENR ¢

selected to be included in this report:

e Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited . s (EAR)BRAR

o Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited . e eEAR AT

e  CEC-CCC Joint Venture (A joint venture between Continental . ABETRE — FEZERE(KEIRA
Engineering Corporation and Chit Cheung Construction AEBEEREGRARIZHEAT)
Company Limited.)

. SFK-CEC Joint Venture (A joint venture between Sun Fook . FEs — KEIREBE(GhRELESs
Kong Construction Limited and Continental Engineering RAREAETRARZEENT)
Corporation)

“ENER | T EAEREEERAA 43
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B
CLSA (Pubilic Workes - RMAR
BRI N

Y T L ee % T T
BTHE) el

Jﬁif

BRI (L) BIRLE

Sun Fook Kong {Civil) Limited

SFK won two awards in
the “20™ Construction
Safety Forum and
Award Presentation”

HEBRN [E-tEEEHX
ZEHEEERERME |
Y& 2 {Eig1g SFK won seven awards in the
“25" Considerate Contractors

Site Award Scheme”

FEBR [525 EREmE
EFTarEl] REE 7 @5

SFK won four Safety Video @
Competition Awards in
“Construction Safety Week 2019”

HEBN [BEXR2F 2019]
FRE4EREERLESE

44 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R -AgkEARE

SFK won five awards
in the “Quality Public
Housing Construction and
Maintenance Award 2019”

HEER [BEARERE
BERREBEERE 2019
HEKE 5 fEZRIR

SFK won “Caring
Company Logo”for six
consecutive years

HMiBBEE O FRE
[ERRBEER]

SFK recognized the
employee who won “The
Outstanding Apprentices

Award Scheme”

MERREIBY [
BHERBE] NMET

—NER | FREREAEREEARA A
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Contract
Completion Original
Contract Updated as at Contract
Entities Project Client Commencement 31 Dec 2019 Sum
R=B-n%
+=R=+-B2z  Ri&#®
BE EH ®F Gyl AT IBHER tE
(HK$'million)
(B8%T)
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20150597 Hong Kong Housing 17 August 2016 31 December 2019 3,047
Limited Construction of Public Rental Housing Authority ZE-RF —E-NF
NRBEEBERAR Development at Fo Tan (in Sha Tin Areas ZAERZE€ NA+ER +-A=1+-8
16 & 58D) Phases 1 & 2
BHE: < 20150597
KR(DHEE16K58DE)E— R
FHAERRAERETR
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Proposed Subsidised Housing Development Hong Kong Housing 12 June 2017 15 December 2019 464
Limited at Junction of Shek Pai Tau Road and Society —E—tF ZE-NEF
MREEEERAR Ming Kum Road, Tuen Mun TMTL545,  EEEERHE ~ATZH +ZA+HA
New Territories
IR ET R P B 545 S A SRS AL
BERRAGNEZEDFELR NS
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20160605 Hong Kong Housing 31 August 2017 7 January 2020 707
Limited Construction of Public Rental Housing Authority —E—+F% ZE-FF
MEBEERRAT Development of Tung Tau Estate EBEEZBE NA=+-8 —A+tH
Phase 8
BHET, - 20160605
RAFESHAHBEREER S
BETR
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20170100 Hong Kong Housing 20 November 2017 29 February 2020 513
Limited Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Authority —T—tF “E-FF
TREEEERAR Development at Hang Kin Street, BEREZEY R s B = ZRZthAH
Ma On Shan Area 90B
AHIET < 20170100
SRILZIBREERTENHERE
BUERAERETR
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Main Contract for Global Graduate Tower ~ The Hong Kong University - 29 December 2017 27 February 2020 316
Limited for The Hong Kong University of Science  of Science and S 3 3
MREEEERAR and Technology Technology +-B=thB Z—A-t+H
BAMBAEHALEE AN BERRAS
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20170225 Hong Kong Housing 27 March 2018 1 January 2023 3,740
Limited Construction of Public Rental Housing Authority —E-\F ZEC=F
NRBEEBERAR Development Phases 1 & 2 and EAEEZEY ZA=t+tH —A—8

Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Diamond Hill Comprehensive
Development Area

SRR, - 20170225
URERLGAEREE - —HAH
BEFRERREDHEREER I E
BETR
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Contract
Completion Original
Contract Updated as at Contract
Entities Project Client Commencement 31 Dec 2019 Sum
R=B-n%
TZAZt-B2  RiT&H
BE EH ®F Gyl AT IBHER kA
(HK$'million)
(88AR)
SFK — CEC Joint Venture  Contract No. SS G506 Architectural Services 18 February 2019 8 November 2020 284
A — ABEIREZ  Construction of Station Square at Kai Tak ~ Department “E-NF ZEZ%
(Phase 1) BEE —“A+NAH +-ANH
— SFK'51%
— CEC 49%
BHET, - SS G506
BRREEnEs (E-H18)
— #iEk51%
— RET249%
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited - Contract No. CV/2016/09 Civil Engineering & 17 March 2017 16 March 2022 150
ek (LK) BB A Civil Engineering & Development Development “T—+F B
Department Maintenance Contract Department =ZAt+tH =RA+H
for Piers (2017-2022) TARIRARE
BHE, - CV/2016/09
TARIRRRERGBELEAD
(Z2—t+% - ZZ-_%)
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited - Contract No. 05/HY/2017 Highways Department 1 April 2018 31 March 2024 483
HRB (LK) BRAR Highways Department Term Contract HIE “E-\F “EomEF
(Management and Maintenance of mA—A =A=+-H
Roads in Kowloon East excluding
Expressways and High Speed Roads
2018-2024)
BRI - 05/HY/2017
BRRERHaN(NERER (RRAK
&\%L W@?\\)Zﬂ%& RE
-0\ - Z2-%F)
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited - Contract No. YL/2017/01 Civil Engineering & 25 July 2018 23 July 2021 409
Ak (LK) BRAAE Site Formation and Infrastructure Works Development —Z-N\F —E-—fF
for Development at Kam Tin South, Department tAZ+hH tAZ+=H
Yuen Long — Advance Works TARIRARE
AHET - YL2017/01
TARAEERE I TENERS
IR - fHIR
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. M297-4 Airport Authority 2 March 2015 1 March 2020 151
Limited Maintenance, Improvement and WEERR —T-1f 3
MEEREERA Refurbishment Works for Buildings ~“AZH =A—-8
BHET, - M297-4
BFRE MEREHIR
—NFHR | FTEEEREEBRAF 47
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Contract
Completion Original
Contract Updated as at Contract
Entities Project Client Commencement 31 Dec 2019 Sum
R=B-n%
+=R=+-B2z  Ri&#®
BE EH ®F Gyl AT IBHER kA
(HK$'million)
(8847%)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. TC D973 Architectural Services 3 August 2015 2 February 2019 585
Limited Term Contract for the Design and Department “Z-1F “E-NF
MREEEERAR Construction of Minor Works to BEE NAZHA —“AZH
Government and Subvented Properties
for which the Architectural Services
Department is responsible Designated
Contract Area: New Territories and
QOutlying Islands (North)
B TCDIT3
REEEBENIUTRIERE BRIEN
PR TIETRA REBENTREN(E
TR HARES (L))
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. HA-TMC-027 Hospital Authority 1 July 2016 31 December 2019 734
Limited Term Contract for Minor Works 2016 —  EREER N3 —E-NEF
HEREEBRAR New Territories and New Territories West +tA-H +-F=1+-8
Clusters
AHES : HA-TMC-027
EHEH - B REFEAARA
AEBRBENITRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. 20169107 Hong Kong Housing 1 April 2017 31 March 2020 246
Limited District Term Contract for the Maintenance, ~ Authority TR ZT-FF
TRBEEERA Improvement and Vacant Flat EERREZES mA—H ZA=t+-8
Refurbishment for Properties Managed
by Property Service Administration Unit/
Tuen Mun and Yuen Long (1) 2017/2020
AHIET, - 20169107
R EE_RCZEEEMARTH
(MEERRBE M) - RE BER
FEENRNIRNSBEHAN ()
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. TC E912 Architectural Services 1 April 2017 31 March 2021 71
Limited Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,  Department —E+F B 3
MRBEEERA Maintenance and Repalr of Buildings and #5£E mA—A Zh=t-8

Lands and Other Properties for which
the Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) (Designated
Contract Area — Hong Kong Island
Western, Southern and Lantau Island)

BHES  TCE2
REEE(MEEHR)NEEY 13
REMMELTIOE 02 RERHK
EIRNEHAN(GHETR  BS
il - FRRAEL)
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Contract
Completion Original
Contract Updated as at Contract
Entities Project Client Commencement 31 Dec 2019 Sum
R=B-n%
TZAZt-B2  RiT&H
BE EH ®F Gyl AT IBHER kA
(HK$'million)
(B8AT)
Sun Fook Kong Construction - Contract No. TC E922 Architectural Services 1 April 2017 31 March 2021 760
Limited Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, ~ Department —EtF —F--F
MREEEERAR Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Z54ZE mA—H ZA=t+-8
Lands and Other Properties for which
the Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) (Designated
Contract Area — Hong Kong Island
Eastern and Outlying Islands (South))
BHET : TCE922
REEZE(MESHR)NBREY - 11
REMWELTIRE M - RERE
EIRNERaN(ANETER 8BS
RERES ()
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20179448 Hong Kong Housing 1 October 2018 30 September 2021 467
Limited District Term Contract for the Maintenance,  Authority “E-N\F B 3
NRBEERERAR Improvement and Vacant Flat EREEZEY +A—8 A=A
Refurbishment for Hong Kong Island &
Islands (1) 2018/2021
BHET, - 20179448
T \EEZZC-ERERS
- RE  YEREEEUENIRNS
BEHEH(—)
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No. 20179439 Hong Kong Housing 1 October 2018 30 September 2021 39
Limited District Term Contract for the Maintenance,  Authority 2\ 22—
MEREEERAR Improvement and Vacant Flat EEREZES +A—H NR=1H
Refurbishment for Properties managed
by Property Service Administration Unit/
Wong Tai Sin, Tsing Yi and Tsuen Wan
(2) 2018/2021
BHET, < 20179439
“E-\FE-T--FEEANE
KEZE(MEEERE/ME) - RE
YERZEEMUBTIENIEBTHE
f()
Sun Fook Kong Construction  Contract No.TC G973 Architectural Services 3 February 2019 2 August 2022 531
Limited Term Contract for the Design and Department —T-NF —Eo—F
MEREEERAR Construction of Minor Works to BEE —A=H NAZR

Government and Subvented Properties
for which the Architectural Services
Department is Responsible
Contract Area: New Territories and
Qutlying Islands (North)
AHET: - TCGIT3
RELERENTTRIERE RE
N TIRETR RRENERE NS
hEE - FARES ()
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Contract

Completion Original

Contract Updated as at Contract

Entities Project Client Commencement 31 Dec 2019 Sum

R=B-n%

TZAZt-H2  ERiT&H

BE EH ®F Gyl AT IBHER kA

(HK$'million)

(REAT)

CEC — CCC Joint Venture  Contract No. KL/2014/01 Civil Engineering & 30 November 2015 28 September 2020 1,047
ABETR - REZEHE  Ka Tak Development — Stage 2 Development “Z-1F “Z-%

Infrastructure Works for Development at ~ Department +—-A=+8 NAZTNR

the Southern Part of the Former Runway tART12HHEZE
— CEC 60%
— CCC 40%
BHEH - KU2014/01
BERREE - IREEEER NS
MF 2 AR
— KETE60%
— BEREA0%

Note: The expected completion date is determined with reference to the actual work
schedule together with our estimation based on experience as at 31 December
2019.

As indicated in the table above, data and information from 20
projects were included in the preparation of this report. Data
collection and analysis were conducted based on relevant
guidelines or standards, to exemplify, ISO 14064 for greenhouse
gas emissions. All numerical data is presented as absolute figures,
and all financial data is reported in Hong Kong dollars unless
otherwise specified. Employees of contractors and subcontractors
to whom we have no direct responsibility are not generally included
as part of our workforce unless otherwise specified.

To assist readers to browse through this report and to demonstrate
transparency and compliance, a detailed ESG content index
following the framework of ESG Reporting Guide was included at
the back of this report section.

This ESG report section has been approved by the senior
management of the Group. We would like to express our sincere
appreciation to all those who contributed to our corporate
sustainability performance and to the preparation of this report.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

Mzt R-T-AEF+-A=+—H BHEEFTRARD
SRERTERERERMANGERBERMEE -

Yt ERPER - 20188 B e BUR R B RHR RS
ARIFRER « BIRKE RS THIRIEAEESI
HAREHETT - PIENER ERE Hﬁﬁﬂ@?ﬁé’]lso
14064 - FIA BEBREHABREHEZT

FABER  MBEMHEBIEANETEY - ﬁff\\
HAEEA BERAGEZBEEDEENEER
WEEEREE  RELTHEARMNE THME -

ABHEEEAERARELEBIEPRELER
M ARERE —EHMIRE LS NERR
EIRSIERZE ZFHHERE - HERERAARR
g e

FEENSREREEFRARE HENE
ATE o BB AMAHRMN AR AFHE
HERBARAREORBIELERMOA LR ZR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAPTER 2 SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
MANAGEMENT

In addition to delivering quality construction works to our clients, SFK
remains steadfast in minimizing environmental impacts and contributing
to the sustainable development of our society. SFK integrates such a
mindset of corporate social responsibility into the decisions-making
process at all levels of our business operation, and has established a
comprehensive Corporate Social Responsibility Policy to explicate our
commitments:

We are committed to:

—  considering the impacts on stakeholders, society, economy during
the environmental decision-making process;

—  fully complying with the laws of the country/region where we
operate or where we have signed agreements and respecting
relevant international acts;

— dedicating ourselves to maintain the highest business operation
standards with fair competition and requesting all staff and
business partners to comply with the same;

— following internationally recognised standards, encouraging
compatible environment, respecting and maintaining human rights
and labour rights;

— taking safety and health as our first priority, and providing a safe
and healthy environment to ensure the safety and health of all staff
and affected parties (including the public) at all times of work;

— emphasising environmental protection, taking prevention, reduction
and control of environmental pollution as a prerequisite of our daily
operations;

—  reviewing our Corporate Social Responsibility Policy regularly to
make continuous improvements, particularly when there are
changes to the applicable ordinances and other requirements; and

— informing all employees of our Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy, regardless as to whether they are directly employed,
contracted or representing us in other means, and allowing the
public to access to this Palicy.

R -AgkEARE
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CHAPTER 3 STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

One of the most important elements of SFK’s social responsibility
management is stakeholder engagement. In order to understand what
social and environmental issues are valued the most by our stakeholders,
we have established many channels to facilitate our communication with
them. This element is subsequently incorporated in our accountability
and decision-making process. Opinions are exchanged in our regular
meetings with clients and subcontractors regarding environmental
management, occupational health and safety management, as well as
quality management. In addition, feedbacks from our engagement with
employees are taken into consideration in our direction of human
resources policies and practices.

In order to identify stakeholders’ key concerns with reference to the ESG
Reporting Guide and emerging issues such as climate resilience, SFK
conducted a stakeholder engagement survey in September and October
2019. Our clients, suppliers, contractors, service providers, as well as our
senior management, management staff and general employees were
invited to participate in the survey and to grade the reporting aspects
stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide according to the level of
importance they consider these aspects are to SFK or to the stakeholder
groups they are representing.

BoE RBHENZEREENSH

HEAHEETERZRBEERRZ —AKNHES
B BTHREMFNESABR 2L MIREME
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ZIREHIRE L8 MEAREEIIAMRENR
SEEAETTRIAR -

SFK's Management $iiig &) EE

Unimportant 14T @&

Crucial 5%
3 4 5

0 1 2
Hu
£ 2
# =g
=
=
g O
o
SF 4
=
#0
2
He
g 3
2
<
<
wv
= 2
5m
o0
=S
m§§1
| B
8
28 NS
™ O
2 5
2 g0
g5

Legend:

Aspect

Al Emissions

A2 Use of Resources

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
A4 Climate Resilience

B1 Employment

B2 Health and Safety

B3 Development and Training
B4 Labour Standards

B5 Supply Chain Management
B6 Product Responsibility

B7 Anti-corruption

B8 Community Investment
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The importance of each reporting aspect was determined by compiling
the degrees of importance given by all the participants. A materiality
matrix was prepared to clearly illustrate the result by placing each aspect
with regard to its importance grade (a) to the management of the Group
and (b) to the other stakeholders consisting of general staff of the Group
and external stakeholders including clients, suppliers and contractors.
The aspects located in the top-right quarter of the material matrix were
considered by both the management of the Group and the other
stakeholders as material and were thus reported in this report.

The Health and Safety (B2 aspect) all along remains the most significant
aspect concerned by both the management of the Group and the other
stakeholders. Its importance was trailed by B6 Product Responsibility
and B7 Anti-corruption. Whereas A2 Use of Resources, B8 Community
Investment, and the emerging aspect A4 Climate Resilience were
considered to be the relatively least crucial by the stakeholders. B3
Development and Training, and B4 Labour Standard, are considered to
be more important as compared to the previous year.

To sum up, all ESG aspects were considered to be important by both the
Group and the external stakeholders. The management approaches and
performance were disclosed in this report, with emphasis in the areas
that were considered by the stakeholders as more material.

For more information about these material aspects, please refer to “The
Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Content Index Table” in the
Appendix to this report.
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CHAPTER 4 OVERVIEW OF ESG PERFORMANCE

The following management approaches or initiatives, in line with the

tEghERHRSE

%.E iﬁﬁ M miﬁ& smiﬁﬂ"’
NTEEFENARERAERR TN EREL

direction of social responsibility set forth by the Group, were implemented —% ' ER =T — NLFEEiE °
in 2019.
Policy or Legal
Subject Areas Aspects Compliance Highlights
s g fEm BERIER RWHE
Environmental Emissions v Project Environmental Policy related to the
R Penm minimisation of various emissions and
discharge, as well as proper waste
management
HERRERBERERD SRR AR
HENREYER
Use of Resources v Implementation of ISO 14001
&R A Environmental Management System and
ISO 50001 Enengy Management System
F 5150 14001 IRIFE 2 H8 K )2 1SO 50001
FERERER
The Environment and v Active participation in BEAM Plus projects
Natural Resources B2 AR EIRTIE B
RIERRRNER
Adoption of Sustainable Deposits to facilitate
banking system’s support to United Nations’
Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)
A ETRARERIT RSB A&
EERE B 12 (SDG) M 15
Social — Employment and Employment v Provision of a fair and sound work environment,
Labour Practices BE as well as a family-friendly employment policy
e - EBRERBIER REATFREZOTERRTAREREREN
EEBUER
Health and Safety v Implementation of OHSAS 18001 Occupational

54
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Health and Safety Management System
B OHSAS18001 i f2 B M e 2 B IR HE &

Safety and Health Policy Statement with
a guaranteed safety budget of not less
than 0.25% of the contract sum of each project
ZERBEREER  TRIJFLZEEEDE
MNEEER & 4S5 0.25%
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Policy or Legal

Subject Areas Aspects Compliance Highlights
Frif gk EE BESER RBE
Development and Training v Establishment of a comprehensive staff
B R Mg development programme
RULEHETERE
Provision of training and examination allowance,
as weII as examination leave
REEIREFARBARZHAR
Labour Standards v Compliance with the Employment Ordinance
A T YER (Cap. 57) of Hong Kong
BTEBERBIGDI(E57F)
Social — Operating Practices Supply Chain Management v Performance and compliance assessment of
g — EEIEN HrEgEE IR suppliers and subcontractors
HrEB LD BRERR ARG
Requirements on suppliers to support
environmental-benign initiatives
BBEHERSIRIFRREAENATE
Product Responsibility v Implementation of ISO 9001 Quality
EmEMF Management System

Anti-corruption v
RERE
Social — Community Community Investment v
HE - HE HRIRE

FiISO 001 HEERE X

Establishment of procedures to respect intellectual
property rights and privacy
R EEHBERENELEEF

Adoption of Building Information Modelling (BIM)
technology

RAZEE SR BIM) B

Establishment of Code of Business Conduct

B E B EER T T Al

Operation of anonymous whistle-blowing channels
SRERBIE

Provision of anti-corruption training

RftREREE

Participation in volunteer services and
collaboration with not-for-profit organizations

21n& TR R EIFRNAA 1F
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CHAPTER 5 ENVIRONMENT

5.1 Emission Control Management

56

Since the topic of environmental protection has always come under
the spotlight, striking a balance between economic development
and environmental protection is a challenging and delicate task. As
SFK operates primarily in construction business, there is no retreat
from the frontier of environmental protection. As such, incorporating
environmental considerations into our operation is of paramount
importance. Standing tough to confront all the challenges in
conserving the environment, the Group is committed to the
following five guiding principles to mitigate impacts relating to air
pollutant emissions, greenhouse gas emissions, noise, discharge
into water and land, disposal of chemical waste, and inert and non-
inert construction waste:

Foresighted Management and Resources Planning

° Ensure that environmental protection is given the highest
practicable priority in all aspects of the works when
discharging the contractual obligations.

° Provide sufficient resources for the implementation of
pollution abatement, waste management and ecological
mitigation.

Rigorous Regulatory Compliance

o Comply with the relevant environmental legislation and
contractual environmental requirements.

o Obtain and renew the necessary environment-related
licences, permits and registrations for our works and services.

Proactive Communication and Education

o Communicate environmental policies to all levels of persons
involved in the works including our employees and
subcontractors.

° Educate and train all persons involved in the works to meet
the legal, contractual and other environmental requirements.

Diligent Enforcement

° Promote and implement environmental management
including the control of greenhouse gas emission to mitigate
environmental impacts.

° Prevent environmental pollution, reduce environmental
nuisances and minimise waste especially construction and

demolition wastes.
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Continuous Monitoring and Improvement

° Review the environmental policy periodically for continuous
improvement in response to changes in the management
procedures, nature of the works and environmental
legislation.

SFK stringently complies with the relevant environmental legislation
to ensure the environmental impacts arising from our business are
responsibly managed and mitigated. The relevant laws and
regulations mainly include:

° Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)

° Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)

° Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)

° Noise Control Ordinance (Cap. 400)

o Dumping at Sea Ordinance (Cap. 466)

° Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant legislation and rules governing air pollutant and greenhouse

gases emissions, noise, discharge into water and land, hazardous
and non-hazardous waste generation in all material aspects.

BRI e kEa®RE

HEERRBE

. EEEREF LRMEREHEN
2o EHRNEREE - UETRR
i o

S BRI IR IR AR 2 AR IR B A‘”@
E\EEME.@&ﬂﬁ“%ﬁ%ﬁi&f“m%; Z%

H‘}

ERSRE HMES (311 E)

o EMEEGRD(F354%)

o KIBREHES (£ 358F)

o REFENGKRH(F4995)

RBEMA - ARBCREERTEETER

ERGAMPFBFOREREER - BE - [K
Rt BEMEERVHNELSHEH
EERRA -

Annual Emission Data from Vehicles HRNESFHERERE
2019 2018
Pollutants S —E2—hEF —E—N\&
(@) (@)
(=) (%)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) SR (NOx) 825,383 372,779
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) AL (SOx) 5,581 3,991
Particulate Matters BT 61,091 29,140

Note: The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPls
issued by the Stock Exchange.

The emissions significantly increased primarily due to the
commencement of a new construction project in the reporting
period. The fleet of the new site primarily consisted of trucks. The
vehicular emission from that construction site alone accounted for
around 40% of the total emission.
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Total Greenhouse Gas Emission BERBHEREE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
(tCO,-eq) (tCO,-eq)
(ZEtIREEM) (Zf/tixEEM)
Scope 1 Direct Emission HE 1 EEHK 16,478 10,785
Scope 2 Energy Indirect Emission #E 2 g REE PR 2,822 2,627
Total #Et 19,300 13,412

Note: FfisE -

The calculations were based on the Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs issued
by the Stock Exchange, 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories, IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, latest grid emission factors published by
utilities companies.

tCO,-eq denotes Unit Tonne for comparing the radiative forcing of a Greenhouse Gas
to CO,

The emissions increased primarily due to the peak operation period
of a new construction site in the reporting period. The greenhouse
gas emission from diesel combustion on that construction site
alone amounted to around 80% of that of all fuel combustion, and
to over 60% of the total greenhouse gas emission.

To minimize air pollutant emission at source, SFK has adopted
various good practices in the industry, including operating non-road
mobile machinery with approval labels or exemption labels to
reduce air pollutant emission, utilizing ultra-low-sulphur diesel in our
non-road mobile machinery and other powered mechanical
equipment. In order to promote sustainability even further, SFK
uses B5 biodiesel in applicable cases. In addition, as part of our
compliance control, we also regularly conduct laboratory testing to
ensure the fuel we use fulfils the contractual requirements.

Our site staff also implements various day-to-day operation
practices such as covering exposed work areas with tarpaulin
sheets to minimize fugitive dust emission, installing a water sprinkler
system with timers and sensors on the construction sites to
suppress fugitive dust emitted by moving vehicles and machinery.
Moreover, as part of our compliance control, we also monitor the
dust level (1-hour TSP) to ensure there is no exceedance of the limit
levels due to our site activities. On the other hand, the greenhouse
gas emission intensity in the reporting period was 4.83 tCO,-eq per
million HK$ project turnover payment.
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Total Waste Produced BYHRELEE
2019 2018
—ZE—-hEF —EFE-N\F
(tonnes) (tonnes)
(1) (W8)
Hazardous Waste BEED 12.63 4,57
Non-hazardous Waste HEREY) 361,953.62 353,497.06

The amount of non-hazardous waste increased because a housing
site disposed of a large amount of excavated soil in the reporting
period. The amount of hazardous waste increased because the
piling machines generated a lot of spent lubrication oil (waste
engine oil) on the housing site. Air emission control is only one of
the many facades of environmental protection, and responsible
waste management should never be overlooked. We have therefore
adopted various good practices to responsibly manage the
generation and disposal of waste. Directive to prioritize minimisation
of construction and demolition waste is set out in our Project
Environmental Policy. For example, our project teams adopt
environmental-benign construction methods to methodically select
construction materials, and adopt reusable and modular site offices
and fences that can suit different construction sites, all with an aim
to minimize the generation of waste.

SFK fully acknowledges that one way to minimize pollution is to see
it as the resources that we may utilise. In the waste stream that is
unavoidable, we segregate recyclable waste and general waste.
Recyclables such as scrap metal and waste paper were collected
both in the head office and on project sites, the remainder is then
responsibly handled and disposed of lawfully. Chemical waste and
other hazardous waste are stored in designated areas to minimize
chances of spillage, and are collected by licensed chemical waste
collectors for disposal and treatment in the licensed treatment
facilities. In the reporting period, the intensity of the hazardous and
the non-hazardous waste were 0.0032 and 90.54 tonnes per
million HK$ project turnover payment respectively.

Effective Use of Resources

Conservation means the wise use of the resources on earth for the
lasting good of humans. SFK’s resources conservation strategy
covers consumption of energy, water and raw materials, and
operation in accordance with our environmental management
system and energy management system that are certified in
compliance with the ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards
respectively.

5.2
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The Group encourages project sites to adopt renewable energy
equipment such as solar heat exchangers for water heaters and
photovoltaic panel for barricade warning lights. Temporary lightings
coupled with motion sensors installed on the sites of building
projects help to reduce the consumption of electricity energy.
Under the Group’s policy, for the purpose of maximizing energy
efficiency, all electrical appliances used on site should have Grade
1 energy efficiency labels. In the head office, SFK also encourages
energy saving practices in accordance with the Group’s energy
guidelines and the practices recommended by the Energy Efficiency
Office of the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department, so as
to promote energy conservation. The total energy consumption and
the energy consumption intensity in the reporting period were
67,129,250 kWh and 16,791 kWh per million HK$ project turnover
payment respectively.

In addition to energy conservation, SFK also focuses on reducing
our water footprint as the availability of freshwater is vital to the
existence of humans. The Group encourages recollection, reuse
and recycling of greywater on construction sites to minimize
freshwater consumption. For example, muddy water generated
from bored piling works and washing of construction vehicles was
treated through sedimentation and flocculation in the wastewater
treatment system to allow reuse whenever it is feasible. Efficient
sprinkler nozzles in the sprinkler system were utilized to minimize
water consumption while suppressing fugitive dust emission. In the
reporting period, the water consumption intensity was 114,640
Litres per million HK$ project turnover payment.

Not only is SFK resources-conscious, we also make an effort to
influence our stakeholders to engage in resources conservation
practices. When commissioned to conduct plumbing works, we
recommend our clients to install water-efficient facilities and
appliances registered under the Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme
(WELS). Such water-efficient practice is also in line with the
requirements stipulated in Building Environmental Assessment
Method (BEAM) Plus certification.
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Energy Consumption in Different Categories & HE Bl 88 H 5%
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
('000 kWh) (000 KWh)
(K ELBF) (K Rs)
Electricity E5p)) 5,444.84 5,013.16
Renewable Energy Al AREIR 1.97 0.19
Liquid Fuel (e.g. Petrol and Diesel) TREBEIREL (B0 )0 Ko &) 61,682.44 35,713.19
Total #Et 67,129.25 40,726.54

The liquid fuel consumption increased significantly primarily due to
the peak operation period of one construction site in the reporting
period. The consumption by that construction site alone amounted
to around 80% of that of all sites.

TREEIRBHEFERIRIZ N - T2 MR IMEHAR
—(ERETHENEERE - EZRET
B EFEEAMAFTE THEFER 80% £ ©

Total Water Consumption BRKE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
(L) ()
(H) ()
Water Consumption =W/ 458,303,600 422 901,000
The Environment and Natural Resources 53 BERXARER

It is a corporate’s moral obligation to see beyond the economic
aspect of construction projects. There may be adverse impacts on
the natural environment if preventive mitigation measures are not
implemented properly. SFK has engaged an external third-party to
review and audit our environmental management system and
energy management system to ensure that our management
system complies with the requirements of international standards
including ISO 14001 Environmental Management System and I1ISO
50001 Energy Management System. Our management system
comprehensively addresses material concerns in our operations
that impact the environment and natural resources.
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Pollution abatement, waste management, resources conservation
and ecological mitigation are the key considerations in our Project
Environmental Policy. Each project site complies with the
requirements stipulated in environment-related permits/licences
and manuals, and follows the established waste management plan
in which procedures are stipulated to guide project staff and sub-
contractors to implement waste management measures. In
addition, the Group’s Energy Policy and Purchase Policy
demonstrates the Group’s commitment to energy conservation and
the Group’s support to the implementation of energy efficient
technologies. The Group also actively contributes to the sustainable
development of Hong Kong'’s building environment by applying
local and international standards to our project sites, such as
BEAM Plus.

Climate Resilience

With the rising awareness of the impact of climate change in the
general public, assessing and building climate resilience has
become an emerging topic among corporations. SFK operates
primarily in Hong Kong. Among all the phenomena of climate
change affecting Hong Kong, rising temperature and more frequent
heavy rain and extreme weather events may affect our operation
practices.

In view of these changes, SFK will continue to provide resting
kiosks, mobile cooling fans and other facilities for workers to meet
the challenge of operating in hot weather, and offer training to
workers about prevention of heat stroke. To prepare for more
frequent extreme weather events, we will continue to strengthen
our emergency preparedness and various good practices to secure
sufficient materials and build temporary structures to prevent losses
and incidents.
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CHAPTER 6 PEOPLE

6.1

Employment and Respect for Labour Rights

SFK is committed to providing a fair and sound working
atmosphere to our employees with an aim to enhance the
cohesiveness of our staff and our long-term competitiveness in the
market.

SFK attaches importance to ethical and fair employment practice
and equal opportunities by stringently complying with the relevant
legislations including:

o Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57)

° Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282)
o Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 480)

o Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486)

° Disability Discrimination Ordinance (Cap. 487)

Building a harmonious workplace without any form of discrimination
throughout all our operations is one of the Group’s commitments.
All employees and job applicants are treated equally throughout the
recruitment and promotion process. The Group evaluates
candidates in regard to their qualifications and work experiences,
and will not consider irrelevant factors such as ethnicity, gender,
disability, family status, religion and political stance. The Group
totally respects the religious belief, political stance, race, disability,
gender, marital status, age and sexual orientation of our employees
as well as job applicants.

For a pleasant environment and work-life balance, the Group is
devoted to providing our employees with competitive remuneration
packages, reasonable working hours and rest periods. We also
offer a range of allowances and bonuses, including year-end
bonus, overtime allowances, first-aider or emergency attendance
allowance to our employees.
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The Group also cares for the family members of our employees,
and has implemented various family-friendly employment practices
such as marriage leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and
compassionate leave to support our employees to balance their
work and family affairs. The Group has also implemented
Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace Policy to accommodate the
needs of breastfeeding employees and their new-born.

Forced labour, child labour and illegal workers are prohibited in the
Group. The Group has established comprehensive procedures to
regularly examine employment practices and eradicate undesirable
practices if discovered. Prudent due diligence, including requiring
job applicants to provide personal identity documents for
verification of age, is undertaken by the Group throughout the
recruitment process. The Group and the employees always duly
sign employment contracts which explain and detail the rights and
responsibilities of both parties. Under no circumstance will we
tolerate labour exploitation, forced labour and child labour.

In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation, dismissal, recruitment, promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other benefits and welfare, as well as
prevention of child and forced labour in all material respects.
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Total Work Force (Hong Kong) as at the end of the reporting RBEBARNWESLE(FB)
period
Housing
Construction Services Total
=4 BFR¥% et

Gender 4 51
Male E=Ls 1,061 202 1,263
Female pegs 324 428 752
Employment Type EEER
Full-time D 1,350 485 1,835
Part-time F 35 145 180
Age Group Fip4a 5l
18-30 18-30 444 6 450
31-45 31-45 459 31 490
46-60 46-60 460 245 705
> 61 > 61 22 348 370
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Employee (Hong Kong) Monthly Average Turnover Rate BEAHBREBE(FB)
Construction Housing Services
EE B F R
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F —ZE—-hEF —E-NF
Gender T Bl
Male B 2.7% 2.3% 3.2% 3.4%
Female egi 2.3% 1.6% 3.1% 2.8%
Age Group FiEp4a 5l
18-30 18-30 1.0% 1.5% 4.7% 11.3%
31-45 31-45 3.7% 2.9% 5.2% 4.0%
46-60 46-60 3.0% 21% 3.4% 3.1%
> 60 > 60 4.1% 0.4% 2.6% 2.6%
Safety and Health 6.2 ZEREE
SFK operates in a fast-paced city, but to be faster does not signify e e ER —EEH=ARET - BAE
riskier. The Group attaches great importance to occupational health RIET—EEREZERRES - AEBEBAER
and safety. As the Group engages primarily in construction BT 2 R - AR AEEFEREEET
business, occupational health and safety is prioritized in all our ¥ WEMBEEED BELZREEAR
works. SFK emphasizes safety and health by rigorously complying —f c FTRBERLTDHEE  BREETHE
with the relevant legislations including: HEERE - B -
o Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59) . TR TEELEDN (F59F)
e Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509) . Bxaa LRGN ($£509%)
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Exhibit: Safe Working at Height

According to the statistics from the Labour Department, fall of
person from height is one of the major accident types which results
in serious body injury or even fatality. SFK is committed to identify,
rectify and safeguard any person working at a height in the
workplace against all hazardous conditions so far as reasonably
practicable as stipulated in the relevant safety laws. All our workers
and our subcontractors have high awareness of the risk of working
at height and have implemented adequate safety precautions.

To ensure the safety and health of workers engaged in lift shaft
works, SFK ensures the works are well planned and the
corresponding protection is provided. The project teams always
conduct a risk assessment and prepare a method statement on
any lift shaft work. A permit-to-work system is developed and
implemented for any lift shaft work for close supervision on the
adoption of safety measures, and relevant workers are provided
with fall-arrest system and safety training.

When using scaffolds, SFK ensures the tubular scaffolds are always
erected by trained scaffolders with sufficient experience under the
supervision of a competent person, and secured with appropriate
out-riggers. If workers are required to work on or move along a
bamboo scaffold, fall protection devices are provided and their
proper use by workers is always ensured. On top of protective
gear, appropriate and adequate safe access to and egress from
the scaffolds are always provided to the workers.

When working on suspended working platform, every worker on
the suspended working platform wears a safety harness and
attaches it to an independent lifeline with a fall arrestor. The
suspended working platforms are also equipped with effective anti-
tilt devices to prevent tilting.

Thanks to SFK’s devotion to continuous enhancement of
occupational safety of working at height, we were awarded with
Bronze Award for Best Safety Enhancement Program for Working
at Height in the 20th Construction Safety Forum and Award
Presentation held by the Occupational Safety and Health Council.
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Our safety and health policy and management system has been
actively partaken by all echelons of management and supervision
staff to explore and implement various tactics to create a safe
working environment. Our clients also value safety highly, and in
response, SFK always upholds a high standard of safety and health
to meet the expectations of our clients. Not only is our safety and
health policy applicable to our employees, it also extends to our
subcontractors.

The Group’s Safety and Environmental Committee, and the Site
Safety and Environmental Committee oversee and lead the
management of occupational health and safety in the Group. These
committees actively engage with our employees and our
subcontractors to effectively implement the Group’s safety
directives and protocols. Safety officers and site supervision teams
regularly hold safety meetings together with the subcontractor’s
and worker’s representatives to share the latest information and
best practices about occupational health and safety. The regular
safety meetings also serve as a platform for the various interested
parties to voice out safety issues.

In addition to comprehensive directives and dynamic engagement,
regular dissemination and trainings are also the essential
components of our safety management system. Quarterly safety
bulletins with news and events information related to occupational
health and safety were published internally to sustain the
momentum of safety awareness. In the reporting period, the Group
invested nearly 5,000 man-hours in providing safety training to staff
of various levels. Courses that were frequently provided include
safety training in confined spaces operation and safety supervisors
courses, etc. In addition, SFK has set up a Safety Training Centre
to deliver safety training courses. As a testimony to the quality and
effectiveness of our safety training, the Safety Training Centre is
recognized by the Labour Department of the Government as a
course provider for “Mandatory Basic Safety Training Course
(Construction Work)” for construction workers under the legislative
requirement. In response to the training needs, the Group regularly
commissions our Safety Training Centre as well as external training
bodies to hold safety training courses for our workers and
employees.
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Exhibit: Safe Use of Power-Operated Elevating Work
Platforms

Power-operated elevating work platforms have been widely used in
construction industry for work at height. Inappropriate operation of
the machinery can result in serious injuries to workers and property
damage and therefore SFK values highly the proper procedures to
ensure safe use of the convenient machinery.

We appoint competent personnel to be responsible for the safety of
the power-operated elevating work platforms. Our responsible
personnel take the following steps to ensure the work related to the
machinery is safe:

o carry out risk assessment on potential hazards associated
with the operation of a power-operated elevating work
platform, such as the working environment, the ground
condition, and the specifications of the power-operated
elevating work platform;

° plan the operation by identifying and describing the working
locations, scale and duration of the operation, use of access
road and possible route of travelling or moving, and lay down
safe work methods and procedures for the required
operation;

° provide information, instruction, training and supervision to
the workers and operators if necessary to ensure the safety
plan can be followed effectively; and

o evaluate the safety of the operation and whether adjustment
or improvement is required periodically or when there has
been a significant change.

Our competent staff is familiar with the pros and cons of various
types of power-operated elevating work platforms and is able to
select a suitable machine designed in accordance with sound and
widely-accepted engineering practices for the nature and location
of work. Our relevant personnel shall ensure all inspections, tests,
repairs, maintenance and hours of service related to the machine
are duly carried out and documented to ensure the machineries are
operating in a satisfactory condition. We also maintain good
workplace conditions by protecting pedestrians with physically
segregated walkways, maintaining high awareness of gradient,
conditions and load-bearing capacity of the ground, taking
precautions against damage to underground utilities such as
electricity cables, as well as getting latest weather information.
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In recognition of SFK’s robust safety management, quality training
and our employees’ devotion and competence, our representative
was awarded with Merit award for Outstanding Power Operated
Elevating Platform Worker in Occupational Safety and Health in the
20th Construction Safety Forum and Award Presentation held by
the Occupational Safety and Health Council.

We would not be satisfied with only achieving the fundamental
requirements of enabling our workers to possess basic safety
qualification. For more effective implementation and supervision of
safety measures, we have taken further steps to require all foremen
to hold a Construction Safety Supervisor Certificate.

We also established internal safety requirements and strive to
maintain an annual accident rate of less than 0.25 reportable
accidents per 100,000 man-hours.

Our continuous effort in improving occupational safety was widely
recognized in the community. SFK was awarded with “Best Site
Safety — Safety Innovation”, and “Best Site Safety — Timely
Report of Near Miss Incident (Building)” in the New Works Projects
category of Quality Public Housing Construction and Maintenance
Awards 2019 by the Hong Kong Housing Authority.

In the reporting period, the Group has achieved the accident rate of
0.32 reportable accident per 100,000 man-hours. Despite this
number being lower than the accident frequency rate objective set
out by the Development Bureau of the government, we would not
become complacent about our performance in occupational health
and safety.

In the reporting period, the Group was fined for a total sum of
HK$47,000 in respect of 4 summonses for violation of certain
regulations under the Factories and Industrial Undertaking
Ordinance (Cap. 59) related to four accident events. These four
accidents were considered to be independent and isolated
incidents.

Save as disclosed above or otherwise in this annual report, the
Group has in all material respects complied with all applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong in relation to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
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Total Work-related Fatality and Work Injury

THEHEBNSHR THERRXH

2019 2018 2017
—E-hEF —E-N\F —E—+F

Work-related Fatality TR S

Total Number of Fatality AN Y

Rate (Number of Fatality per 1,000 L& (51,000 B 2B 2%
Fulltime-equivalent Construction T AT AZD
Workers)

Lost Man-Day due to Work Injury ET{ERBHERIIERL

Total st

Note:

Number of full-time-equivalent construction workers is determined by dividing total
man-hours by 10 workhours per day, and then further divided by 294 workdays per
annum (workdays are approximated based on a 6-day workweek in 365 calendar
days, less 12 days of statuary holidays and 7 days of paid vacation days).
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6.3 Education, Training and Career Development

SFK sincerely believes that education is the premise of progress in
every society and in every corporation. With a goal to lay down a
solid foundation for the Group’s long-term development in
construction business, we spare no expense in staff education and
training.

To develop and expand the professional expertise and technical
competence of our staff, SFK offers wide-ranging staff development
and training, including on-the-job trainings, seminars, workshops,
site visits and formal training schemes approved by professional
institutes. Committed to providing adequate opportunities to our
staff to acquire job-related trainings and development, SFK
supports continuous professional development by offering paid
study leave, subsidies for tuition, as well as examination leave.

6.3 HE  FHIRBEZR

MREENRARERTSEAL SNSRI AR E
REORE - DERTEEAERZEER EORY
FRITTERENERZ AR - RO TERAE
TEIHE RE -

RFRERIRE THHEEMB R M REE - #
wERHEZNE THRANEI - SR ER
Bl e BRI RSEERAREER
BRENEREIEE - MAORME TIRHEF
RHEENESET RS RER - #
BENREBAFECRY  HESREFARB
A SRR EER -

Full-time Employees Trained ZRZIES
2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F
Gender 4 B
Male B 24.4% 27.0%
Female egi 5.9% 3.0%
Employee Category EEER
Senior Management S ERE 23.4% 56.8%
Middle Management R E IR 32.8% 100.0%
Junior Level R 7.6% 4.7%

Average Training Hours Completed Per Full-time Employee

BEEREETAZINTHIREH

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Gender Bl
Male Bt 33 4.4
Female e 1.0 0.4
Employee Category EEER
Senior Management SR EE 45 10.2
Middle Management R EIRE 4.7 40.5
Junior Level N 1.0 0.6
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CHAPTER 7 OPERATING PRACTICES

7.1

72

Quality and Compliance Management

Without craftsmanship, inspiration is a mere reed shaken in the
wind. It is also our belief to materialize our works at its best.
Following the ISO 9001 standard, SFK has established and
implemented a recognized quality management system, which
assure quality deliverables to our customers by ensuring that:

o The services and works we deliver to our customers meet the
specifications and requirements of our customers and the
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements;

° The sites under our management and operation follow the
policies and procedures defined in the quality management
system at all stages with the relevant records produced to
substantiate compliance with the requirements;

° We continuously improve our products and services and the
effectiveness of the quality management system to enhance

customers’ satisfaction; and

° The quality management is given the highest practicable
priority in discharging our contractual obligations.
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Exhibit: Innovative Adoption of Building Information
Modelling (BIM)

Building Information Modelling (BIM) is a digital representation of
physical and functional characteristics of a facility. This novel
technology empowers architecture, engineering and construction
industry practitioners to comprehensively manage information
related to construction projects, from planning to design, tendering
to construction and operations to facility management. This year, at
least nine of our projects adopted BIM technology.

To exemplify, BIM was deployed in our project for Kai Tak
Development — Stage 2 Infrastructure Works for Development at
the Southern Part of the Former Runway, in which 4D sequence
simulation was conducted. The process optimized time-based
activities such as site logistics and installation phasing by
streamlining the scheduling, identifying potential conflicts and
visualizing the sequence in the timeline to produce a sequencing
model that ensures the smoothest possible construction sequence.

In addition, we have utilized BIM in several projects for the Hong
Kong Housing Authority this year, including projects in Choi Hing
Road, Fo Tan, Ma On Shan and Diamond Hill. BIM was used to
identify clashes, in which components that make up a built asset
are not spatially co-ordinated and conflict with each other, at an
early stage in these projects to allow easier, cheaper and less time-
consuming rectification. Moreover, we also employed as-built
modelling to fetch information regarding actual facility conditions
and conduct field verification.

Our deployment of BIM technology allows higher quality output
within a shorter timeframe and provides more extensive information
of complex structures to our clients. Thanks to our innovative
adoption of BIM technology, SFK was awarded with Quality Public
Housing Construction and Maintenance Awards 2019 — New
Works Projects — Outstanding Contractor (innovative Use of BIM
Technology) — Highly Commended , by the Hong Kong Housing
Authority.
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Exhibit: 3D Laser Scanning

3D laser scanning is a method of high-accuracy mapping that
utilizes laser beams to capture the dimension and spatial
relationships of physical objects by recording angles and distances
through analysis of the reflections of laser light rays. It can scan
objects up to several hundred meters and generate digitized data
with high accuracy.

Funded by the Construction Innovation and Technology Fund, we
have deployed 3D laser scanner in documenting the site conditions
in two of our construction projects. This enables the project teams
to visualize exactly the actual conditions of the sites and allows us
to work smarter at locations where access is difficult. The
technology measures the onsite condition accurately to within 1
centimetre and facilitates the checking of conformance of pipes as
well as saving much manpower. Moreover, the record data can be
further converted into a BIM model to further accelerate the overall
project progress.

Within the framework of SFK’s quality management system, our
Project Quality Policy and systematic control process safeguard the
quality and compliance of all project sites. Our control process
inspects and tests the works to detect non-compliance, and non-
compliance, if any, is then subject to rectification and re-inspection
until the quality specification is met. Moreover, in order to further
improve the quality of our deliverables, we treasure feedbacks from
all our stakeholders and, if applicable, process them in conformity
to our complaint handling system to timely and effectively resolve
complaints.
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Exhibit: Quality Assurance of Precast Concrete Construction
and Rebar

Precast concrete is a construction product produced by casting
concrete in a reusable mould which is then cured in a controlled
environment, transported to the construction site and lifted into
place. The use of precast concrete construction is becoming
increasingly common in the construction industry over the past
decades. We extend our quality management system to our
suppliers of precast concrete products. All materials are supplied
by approved suppliers and are inspected at the time of delivery to
the factory. Incoming materials are sampled in accordance with the
requirement of the Quality Scheme for the Production and Supply
of Concrete (QSPSC). When these sampled inspections indicate
the possibility of non-compliance, our management will be informed
to take corrective actions. Other concrete materials, such as
cement, aggregate, admixture and water, are randomly sampled
and sent to HOKLAS Laboratory for testing. Non-conforming
materials are identified, quarantined and returned to the supplier if
appropriate. The subsequent production process only utilizes
materials that have been inspected and passed the testing to avoid
non-conformity.

Each load of concrete is batched in accordance with the defined
specifications. The concrete mix proportions are established and
stored in batching system prior to production. Moisture content is
continuously monitored and recorded. Concrete mixes are sampled
and tested in accordance with the requirements defined in the
QSPSC and the CS2:2010 or approved equivalent standard. Onsite
testing for slump control is conducted. Remedial and corrective
actions will be taken when variations from target values are
detected.

Sampling and testing of reinforcement is carried out to ensure
compliance with CS2:2012 Construction Standard or approved
equivalent standards. Testing of rebars is carried out by the Hong
Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme (HOKLAS) Laboratory.
Sampling and parallel test on rebar delivered to the factory is also
carried out. Only rebars that have passed the testing are used for
cutting and bending and fabrication of steel cages for units. The
release and delivery of rebars is proceeded only when planned
arrangements have been satisfactorily completed and approved by
a predefined authority.
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Thanks to our continuous effort in enhancing our work quality and
efficiency, SFK was awarded with Quality Public Housing
Construction and Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works
Projects — Outstanding Contractor (Building) — Bronze Award by
the Hong Kong Housing Authority.

To respect intellectual property rights, the Group has also
formulated and established procedures to ensure all our installed
operating systems and softwares are sourced from authorised
suppliers or copyright holders to ensure the integrity of intellectual
property rights.

Information and data about our clients are also under firm
protection from our internal administration system. SFK is also
dedicated to protecting the privacy of our employees,
subcontractors and clients in accordance with our code of practice
and the relevant regulations, including the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486).

The Group will only collect personal data that is necessary to fulffil
the relevant functions and activities. Where the person from whom
personal data is or will be collected, he or she will be informed of
the details and the purposes of the collection on or before the data
is being collected. In the reporting period, the Group was in
compliance with the applicable rules and regulations governing

E‘EIE’\ﬁﬁT@ﬁ”?‘HEEIVEE%&@ZT @

BRERTSEEZESEBENBEARERE
@m&f%%éﬁf@ﬁﬁzmg— FTIRIEE — #
RARGER (BR5E) — AR -

REENHERE  AKETTEHE RELRF
R PIPTA R BNRIERG KT
B &R EHE R AR ES A A AR B ER
HFEEME ©

IR MEPAERNER REBRIFZ 2R MAE
B R BB RE o FTRB TREUN IMRIEST
AT R R BBED (BIEF 486 BIEAEH (T
TGP RIEEER - D ERREFPORLE -

W\Jﬁﬂﬂ}i‘

AEEENEETHBERELZBRATNEA
B o 3% B A TR EA B RS SR
& AIRWREERE AT - RS R
SEHRNFBEREN - RIBEHA - AEER
REZEMATRERENZE BS  BH
KSR e TR R RS MARR LR ET AR

health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating AT AN S M P 3 A Kok 38 o
to works and services provided and methods of redress in all
material respects.
Non-compliance and Complaints ERSERIRF
2019 2018
=E-NF —EFE-N\F
Total completed works subject to Ze NEEERERE AR
recalls for safety and health reasons BE®RTHITIZERE 0 0
Number of complaints received at ERAGEREERTER
the corporate level relating to Pk 7% 48 28 B9 3% 5F IR 2R
works and services 0 0
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7.2 Supply Chain Management

Our sustainability commitments cannot be achieved on our own,
but hand-in-hand with a team of partners with a wide range of
expertise. To effectively manage environmental and social risks
along the supply chain, it is vital for us to continue proactive
communication and engagement with our suppliers and
subcontractors.

With mutual trust and consent, we implement comprehensive
review and monitoring procedures to ensure our suppliers and
subcontractors are suitable and competent for our works. SFK
chooses subcontractors from the list of qualified subcontractors
maintained by us, based on factors including requirements under
the main contracts with our client, previous collaboration experience
and our evaluation of their performance. Addition of new
subcontractors has to go through our internal approval process in
which the financial stability, quality of work, past performance and
capability are evaluated in accordance with our required quality,
schedule, costs, environmental and safety requirements.

Our subcontractors range from sole proprietorships with several
employees to sizeable companies registered under the List of
Approved Contractors for Public Works and/or the Specialist List of
the Development Bureau, and at least 80 of which have over ten
years of collaboration with us. With such a synergy, we can
comprehensively assess our subcontractors and ensure the
consistent quality of our works.

SFK’s supplier selection control process resembles that of
subcontractor selection. Every year, we assess the performance in
terms of quality, safety, environment, financial stability and resource
availability of all active suppliers and subcontractors.

In addition to compliance assessment and performance review,
SFK also provides environmental and social compliance training to
our suppliers and subcontractors to refresh and update their
knowledge of the applicable legal and regulatory requirements as
well as the specific project requirements.
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The Group’s Safety and Environmental Committee and the Site
Safety and Environmental Committee also oversee and steer the
management of safety and environmental risks of our
subcontractors. These committees actively engage with our
subcontractors to effectively implement the Group’s directives to
properly manage the risks. Whenever applicable, safety officers and
environmental officers will be appointed in project sites to assess
and monitor subcontractor’s safety and environmental risks onsite
and ensure these risks are properly managed and reduced to an
acceptable level.

SFK actively procures environmental friendly products for our
construction projects. Some of our construction sites, for example,
Housing Contract Ma On Shan, Housing Contract Diamond Hill,
and Highways Department Term Contract 05/HY/2017, used B5
biodiesel which complies with EN 14078:2003 in machinery.
Precast units were also procured to reduce wastage. To exemplify,
Fo Tan Project procured 21,240 cubic metres of precast concrete
manufactured in Shenzhen, and the manufacturing site was only 40
kilometres away from Hong Kong. We also purchased durable steel
mould and steel scaffold which are reusable in our construction
works for over a long period of time to avoid consumption and
disposal of conventional timber and bamboo material. Other
environmental preferable products such as solar water heaters,
solar lamps and T5 fluorescent tubes are also purchased from our
pool of qualified suppliers. Our active procurement of
environmental-friendly products allows our suppliers to gradually
evolve into more environmental-benign partners.
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Number of Suppliers as at the end of the reporting period RIEHRWHEREE

Region & Number
£ 4=

Hong Kong B 528

Mainland China HP [ K fze 1

Number of sub-contractors as at the end of the reporting REBEEHRAN DS EEEE

period

Region it & Number
£ 4=

Hong Kong BB 422
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7.3 Moral Integrity and Anti-Corruption

Morality is the root of all successful business. SFK is steadfast in
upholding the highest ethical standard of business conduct and
attaches paramount importance to moral integrity and
anticorruption by unwaveringly adhering to relevant laws and
regulations such as Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201).

All our employees are governed by SFK’s internal Code of Business
Conduct related to anti-bribery and unethical and illegal behaviours.
Bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering are not tolerated in
SFK. The Code is well communicated to our employees to ensure
their understanding of and compliance with all the relevant
requirements. To help employees to familiarize themselves with the
relevant regulations and codes and perform their jobs fairly and
morally, we also require them to go through an ICAC anticorruption
video training prepared by the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption, (“ICAC”) and to declare any
conflict of interest at least annually. Moreover, speakers from ICAC
are regularly invited to conduct anti-corruption training for SFK. In
the reporting period, we invited the Former Deputy Commissioner
and Head of Operations of ICAC, Mr. Tony Kwok, to give a
workshop to our management on the comprehensive and effective
approach to anti-corruption. 47 of our management members
participated in the workshop to refresh themselves with the latest
anti-corruption information. During the festive seasons, we issue
notices to our subcontractors and suppliers to remind them of
SFK’s policy that offering any kinds of advantages or bribes to our
employees is prohibited.

As stipulated in our Code of Conduct, SFK has established effective
procedures and confidential whistle-blowing channels to guarantee
thorough investigation of all allegations of corruption and ethical
impropriety. All complaints received by the Managing Director via
confidential fax or letter are promptly processed and investigated.
Any staff in violation of our company policies or applicable laws and
regulations will be reported to the ICAC and wherever appropriate,
shall be subject to disciplinary action.
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In the reporting period, the Group was in compliance with the
applicable rules and regulations relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering in all material respects. No legal case
concerned with corrupt practices was brought against SFK or any
of our employees in the reporting period.

Total Number of Corrupt Practices

RIBERA  AEERSEEEHESGETHRE
W BR - REFRAEREZNERRA KA
B RBEHR - HERABXBMNERORE
AR EBITRHDERIEE -

BERITRHEE

2019
—g—nF

2018
—F- N\

Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period

EERIEWEELE

= A

CHAPTER 8 COMMUNITY
8.1 Community Participation

80

SFK believes that true charity is the desire to be useful to others
with no thought of recompense. To support our community, not
only does SFK offer sponsorships and donations to various not-for-
profit organisations, we also form partnership with social welfare
organisations, charity groups and community organisations to
mobilize our staff to participate in voluntary and charity activities.

Through various channels, the effectiveness of our community
activities and feedbacks from the community groups are evaluated
by the Group’s administration department and volunteer team
organising committee. Building on these feedbacks, the Group’s
sustainability objectives are regularly refined.

Community participation brings all-round benefits to SFK.
Externally, the community participation fosters a tighter relationship
with various community organisations. Internally, it also gathers
together our staff members from different departments and different
project sites, thereby enhancing our team spirit to devote to the
well-being of the Group and the society as a whole.
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8.2 BXEHE
8.2.1 Voluntary Services 8.21 IR

8.2 Focus Areas

The Group inspires participation in voluntary services as one
of the many ways to contribute to community. SFK’s
volunteer team serves our communities through generous
devotion to those in need, such as the elderly, children, as
well as people with disability. In order to extend our reach to
those in need, we join forces with various social
organisations, welfare organisations and charity groups to
arrange volunteer works activities.

Among all our voluntary services in the reporting period, we
visited the singleton and shared-housing elderly living in Shek
Kip Mei Estate in the Mid-Autumn Festival to share the festival
heart-warming feeling with the elderly. Our volunteers offered
them with mooncakes and daily necessities which brought
great happiness to the elderly. With joy and harmony, the
event promoted the well-being of our senior citizens, and
served as a recurring reminder of our traditional virtues.

On top of serving the elderly, our care also extended to
children. In April 2019, we collaborated with SAHK to co-
organize a volunteer activity, “The Genie Valley”. Our
volunteers spent a wonderful afternoon playing the genie
safari with more than 10 children with developmental
disorders between four to nine years old in Tsuen Wan Shing
Mun Valley Park. Through the activity, the children were
having a lot of fun and the event was filled with happiness.
Through the activity, volunteers can understand more about
the children’s needs and raise the corresponding awareness
in our society.

SFK spares no expense in fostering the culture of
volunteering. In the reporting period, the Group contributed
over HK$100,000 of sponsorship or in-kind sponsorship to
voluntary services. At the same time, our volunteer team
devoted over 600 man-hours to those in need. Not only does
the voluntary works contribute to the communities, it also
helps our employees to discover and explore their potential
and capability.
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8.2.2 Health

Health is the foundation for each and every success. The
Group strives to promote healthy lifestyles and shows our
support to the sick.

In the reporting period, we participated in various sports
events to enable our employees to develop their interests and
maintain a healthy work-life balance. We participated in
different sports and health events, including the Standard
Chartered Hong Kong Marathon 2019. We also organized
events such as Sun Fook Kong Leagues Play for Health and
Charity to raise fund for SAHK in order to help those in need.

To extend our concern for the sick, the Group also
participated in the “Care for Your Heart Charity Walk 2019” in
March 2019. 71 SFK staff members and their friends and
relatives joined the event. The event not only raises funding
for Care For Your Heart, but also provides an opportunity for
those who benefit from cardiac rehabilitation to take the lead
and participate in the walk with an aim to promote the
message of “Caring for your heart”.

In the reporting period, the Group contributed over
HK$80,000 of sponsorship for the promotion of healthy
lifestyles. At the same time, our staff members and their
friends and relatives devoted more than 500 man-hours in
activities relevant to healthy lifestyles.
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8.2.3 Environmental Protection 8.2.3 IR{R

Environmental protection is a key aspect of sustainable
development. We extend our effort beyond our projects and
use every opportunity to convey messages of climate
resilience and waste reduction to the community, especially
on the environmental issues arising from our daily life.

Climate resilience and water security are two of the evolving
ESG-linked themes globally. In view of this emerging trend,
we participated in the 8th IWA-ASPIRE Conference and
Exhibition, with a conference theme of “Smart Solutions for
Water Resilience”. As one of the Diamond Sponsors and
exhibitors, we shared experience in responding to climate
change, exploring green technology and developing
wastewater treatment solution, etc.

In partnership with the Environmental Protection Department,
we participated in the Community Involvement Project on
Municipal Solid Waste Charging to prepare our staff for the
potential Municipal Solid Waste Charging and raise their
awareness in waste minimization. In addition, joining hands
with green groups such as Greeners Action, the Group
participated in the Red Packet Recycle and Reuse Campaign
2019 hosted by Greeners Action and the Mooncake Box
Recycling Campaign 2019 organized by Hopewell Centre to
promote recycling and reusing valuable resources. In the
reporting year, we were also awarded with “Wastewi$e”
Certificate by Environmental Campaign Committee in
recognition of our effort in reducing waste generation.

In the reporting period, the Group contributed nearly
HK$100,000 of sponsorship for the promotion of
environmental protection, and our staff members and their
friends and relatives devoted more than 700 man-hours in
activities relevant to environmental protection.
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CHAPTER 9 AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BAE BRERBFHEE

HIGHLIGHTS
Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RERIHERE BB BRAM BRKE
Wastewise Certificate — Basic level Environmental Campaign Jan 2019 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
R E [ ERRF] Committee —NFE—A Es (IR BERRA
REEDHEEE
First Runner-Up — Technical Services Airport Authority Hong Kong Mar 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Department Contractors Safety ERRGERR —NE=H Limited
Campaign 2018/19 #riEs e ERRAR
TiREf AN L 2EH2018/19 — E
Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme Labour Department Mar 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
2018/19 — Safety Teams Category — Merit & T —NF=A Limited
BEEL 2 REEE|2018/19 — 22 KA HEBEERRAR
~ ER#
Care for Your Heart — Charitable Walking 2019 Care for Your Heart Mar 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
— the Best Team Formation Award RO REY L —NE=H Group
BLERL—RLETELE — MEARREE
EESTER2019 — B ZEA SRS
5 years+ Caring Company Logo The Hong Kong Council of Apr 2019 Sun Fook Kong Holdings
5 years+ i R B EIZ 5 Social Service —NENA Limited
A eRBHE MEEERARA
Happiness at Work Promotional Scheme 2019 Promoting Happiness Index May 2019 SFK Construction Holdings
— Happy Company Foundation —NFERA Limited
FOTER2019 — BORE BERRITRE SRS et RREEERAR
Safety Video Competition 2019- Repair, Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance, Alterations and Additions Works Construction Industry Council —NERA Limited
— Gold Award BEBRBEXES MEALEARA
ZRERLE2019 — B1E  RE - BGER
MBI — 8
Safety Video Competition 2019- Working Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
at Height — Silver Award Construction Industry Council —NERXH Limited

ZREALE019 — 5ZEIE — R
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RAHRBERE g ¥ BRAY BRKE
Safety Video Competition 2019 — Lifting and Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Plant Operation — Bronze Award Construction Industry Council —E-NERA Limited
RREFLE2019 — REREMBRE - R BERELBEXZS TEREERR LR
Safety Video Competition 2019 — Lifting and Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Plant Operation — Merit Construction Industry Council —E-NEFERA Limited
ZEEALE2019 — HBERERIERIE BRERBERZS TEREEAR AR
—BE#
The Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme  Labour Department Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
2018/2019 — Building Sites (Public Sector) BTR —E-NERA Limited
Silver Award B ERRAR
SR 2 RN E/2018/2019 —
BFEEMR(REEK) RE
The Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme  Labour Department Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
2018/2019 — certificates of good performance 4 T & —T-NEFERHA Limited
BEEREREFE2018/2019— RIFRAFS MiEE R EaRAR
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Scheme — Qutstanding Environmental Construction Industry Council “E-NEFRA Limited
Management & Performance Award BERBREEERS MEBEEERAR
B ThEAEMERETE
— REIRFEEER
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Scheme — Considerate Contractors Construction Industry Council ZE-NERA Limited
Site Award — Non-Public Works BRERREXES HEBEERRAR
— New Works — Group A — Merit Award
ETREAEMBRETE - AERR
—FIBIR —HEIRE -
AEPREMEE — BRE
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Scheme — Model Frontline Supervisor Award Construction Industry Council —E-NERA Limited
ETRENEMBETE ERERBERZS TER S ERR AR
- EHAGTHmETR
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Award Scheme — Model Worker Award Construction Industry Council —E-NFRHA Limited
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RAGRHEHE P ¥ BRAY BRKE
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Scheme — Model Subcontractor Frontline Construction Industry Council —E-NEFERA Limited
Supervisor Award BREBLMEEXZS HEAELEERAA
ETRENEMBETE
-~ BHEHBEMNE ST R
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Scheme — Certificate of Good Performance Construction Industry Council —E-NEFRA Limited
in the Safety Teams category BRBLEEXZE HEEEEARAT
S THEAEMERENTE -22H M0
- BEH
The 25th Considerate Contractors Site Award Development Bureau and Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited
Scheme — Considerate Contractors Construction Industry Council —ZE-NERA HEE(ER)BRAF
Site Award — Public Works — RMAA Works ~ #ERBRZEEHE
— Silver Award
ETREAEMBRETE -AEMERR
- IBIR-#E RS HERX
MmEIE — R
Construction Safety Day 2019 — Best Safety Occupational Safety & Jun 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Enhancement Program for Working Health Counci —E-hERA Limited
at Height — Bronze Award BELZZRER FRAEEERAR
BEEXZ2H2019 —
EERELEL2HEE — W%
20th Construction Safety Forum and Award Occupational Safety and Jul 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Presentation — Best Safety Enhancement Health Council ZE-NELA Limited
Program for Working at Height BEZ2RER MEBEEERAR
— Bronze Award
E-_TEREEREHZQERRME
- REREIEREHETE — Wi
20th Construction Safety Forum and Award Occupational Safety and Jul 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Presentation — Outstanding Power Operated Health Council —E-NEF+A Limited
Elevating Platform Worker in Occupational BEZTRER MiEE R EERAR
Safety and Health — Merit Award
ETEBER TN ZTGERRARE
- BRREERH NREARARES
—BEH
2018-19 Good MPF Employer Mandatory Provident Fund Aug 2019 SFK Construction Holdings Ltd
2018-19 TR 1FEF Schemes Authority —E-NENA A REREEERAT
BB
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RAHRBERE REBHE BEAH BRME
“Construction Industry Caring Organisation” logo ~ CISVP Sep 2019 SFK Construction Holdings Ltd
[REXBERE] T REREHRE T E —Z-AFNA TR REREEERAR
Wastewise Certificate — Basic level Environmental Campaign Committee  Sep 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
WEEEE [ER AR REEHZES —NFNA Limited
B EERRAR
Community Involvement Project on Municipal Environmental Protection Department Oct 2019 SFK Construction Holdings Ltd
Solid Waste Charging RERES —NETA FRARSEEARAR
— Certificate of Appreciation
(BHEBEYRE — HR2EER) — RN
Employers Luncheon and Appreciation Ceremony Hong Kong Institute of Construction  Oct 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
2018 — Hiring the Most Graduates AARESR —NE+A Limited
— Outstanding Award HiRAEEERAR
2018 FERE B ATHE —
ERRZEXE 2 ARE — 28
HKQAA 30th Anniversary Recognition Program ~ Hong Kong Quality Assurance Oct 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
for Outstanding Organisations — Pioneering Agency —NFETH Limited
Organisation in System Management BAMERER MimE g ERRAR
BERERER=TRFRERTENL
— HHRE - RGERE
Quality Public Housing Construction and Hong Kong Housing Authority Nov 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works BEAFEEZE® —hE+—A Limited

Projects — Outstanding Contractor (Building)

— Bronze Award

EELAAEERENRRGERE2019
— HIREE — fAEE(RE) -

—NE®R | HREE
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Award Award Receiving
Name of Awards or Achievement Issuing Organisation Receiving Date Organisation
RAGRHEHE P ¥ BRAY BRKE
Quality Public Housing Construction and Hong Kong Housing Authority Nov 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works AAFEEZE® ZE-NEF+—A Limited
Projects — Outstanding Contractor FRAEEERAR
(innovative Use of BIM Technology)
— Highly Commended
BERAFEERERRERE KXE2019
—¥II2ER — fhREl (REEERR
it BIFER) — REXRE
Quiality Public Housing Construction and Hong Kong Housing Authority Nov 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works BAEEZEY ZE-NFT—A Limited
Projects — Best Site Safety MRS EEERAR
— Safety Innovation
BERAFEERERRELEKRE2019
—HIREA - 5EINRE - X248
Quality Public Housing Construction and Hong Kong Housing Authority Nov 2019 Sun Fook Kong Construction
Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works BEAEEZE® e Limited
Projects —Best Site Safety — Timely Report MEAEEERAR
of Near Miss Incident (Building)
BERAAEERERREREKNE2019
— ¥MIIRER - REIHWLE
— ERAKRER(EE)
Quality Public Housing Construction and Hong Kong Housing Authority Nov 2019 Mr. Yip Chi Ping of Sun Fook
Maintenance Awards 2019 — New Works EREELRET —E-NE+—A Kong Construction Limited

Projects —Outstanding Worker Award
BERAFEERERRERERNE2019
— ¥IRRER - AHIRE
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CHAPTER 10 LOOKING AHEAD

Foresight and flexibility are critical adaptive strategies for times of
uncertainty. We are attentive of the latest development of the industry
and the expectations from our stakeholders by actively engaging with our
different stakeholders. With mutual understanding, we strive to create
value for our stakeholders via prudent approach.

ESG has been increasingly valued by stakeholders. SFK will continue to
integrate ESG into our governance structure and disclose more ESG-
related information to enhance transparency in response to the latest
requirements and trend. SFK will continue to make effort to explore novel
and efficient technologies and methods to further advance our work
quality while realizing our vision of sustainability. Our innovative adoption
of BIM in the project management was praised by the market. The
adoption of such a new technology further offers more opportunities to
reduce uncertainty, improve safety, and facilitate just-in-time delivery
system and pre-fabrication to minimise waste generation.

Transformation to a sustainable society is not automatic. Commitment,
devotion and exertion are the necessary traits to achieve this goal; and it
is our obligation to make the world a better place for our future
generation.

-
— =

R -AgkEARE

Ft+E RZ

FETERBAR Y - ATIE MR EE 1 R AR B ES -
BRREETRFNE BB RABITERORHN
BREFHENRE - EREIBMAOEE - RS
TREERNTERF N EAEEE

FOERRBEBRRE HgkEh - RESEES
RBE  HEREABARMNERRE  IREES
BRI - HEREARBNER  ARRERE O
RRFHHRERBY - FRBECEBELSNKRRNA
BN RMEITE EERBRMAIREERBRN
FE - FleRERMHTIELE - RMEEREE
AR R REE R ERZ B TS RAZH
RiE— RO TEEN e L2 RESRET
N RS R R TR - LR KR E IR RE YA
ELRHESHE -

MAFELEEAWIEFTARG  BRE-BES
A FRRB N MAMABERTREMNEKE
E—EE RO -
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APPENDIX THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG
REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX TABLE

HKSE ESG Reporting
Guide
BERATRIR - B8R

Description

P

Bisd BIXFIEE - HEREAHEES]
RBERSIE

Chapter

1]

ERWmEES

A. Environmental

A IRIE
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEAT : BEY

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI A1.1

FAS B BIEIR AT

KPI'A1.2

PR AEBIEIRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

PR B MIEIRA1.3

KPI' A1.4

PSR IEIRAL.4

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

FAZERIBRERBYN - Mk ktieEs Ak

?ﬁi%@%%ﬁ@%i@ﬁ@ :
@ HBE: K
b) BTFHETAEEAZENHBEEEZLRONEE -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
PR S AR BE P BUR -

Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).
mERBAYENE (AT E) & (1EA) 2R (A E
B8 - BIERBIE)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,

per facility).
FrEEEEEEYEE (ABERTE) & (0@ ﬁH)
BE(WMAGESEEN - BEREAE

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

FRELBEEREEY RS (CANEGTHE) K& (105@E ﬁﬁ)
BE(WABESEMN  SERETE
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Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control
Management

SAETMIEHE

Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control
Management
5.1 BH TS E R

Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control
Management

5AEHMIESE R

Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control

Management

51 EHIEHIE R

Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control
Management

5.1 EHEHUZEHIE R
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BRI e kEa®RE

HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BERATIRIR - B8R it -}
EalEE
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control

BASRERIEIRA15

KPI'A1.6

PSR IR A1.6

results achieved.

R EHE P E B b M PTG AR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HEEREEMBEREYN L  BEEEEN
S HE R FTISAR ©

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

[EmA2 : EIREH
General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI A2.1

FAS AR IR 1R A2.1

KPI A2.2

RSB IEIRA2.2

KPI A2.3

RS IEIR A2.3

KPI A2.4

BREMIEIRA2.4

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BRERER(BIEREIR - KEEMRME) B

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

ﬁﬁﬁﬂ“mﬁﬁﬁ/%ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁ RIOH)
R (UTRTERFAR) KEE (UG ESEM
#Emmﬁ#

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BEKERTE (MASESEN - BIERMAE) -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.

B TR0 PR e 5T 8 SR PTG ACR ©

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives
and results achieved.

F8 3 SKEGE A KR AT B IR RE

FTEIRFTERR -

AR AR T Rk

—NE®R | HREE

Management
5.1 BRI E IR

Chapter 5.1 Emissions Control
Management

51 B UL E I

Chapter 5.2 Effective Use of
Resources
52EEMER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EEMEIR

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

52EEMEIR

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

525ZMER

5.2 Effective Use of Resources

528EZRER

EREEBER QA
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BERATIRIR -8R i 4=}
EalEE

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products Not applicable

W

92

(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

BB RUIEIRA2.5 SRR BREM B EE (AN E) & (Ea)

BEEBUIGE -

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHEA3 : RERAAER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources.

— R EE BAREEIT AY IR M KRR ERIEK E R EHNBUER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the

environment and natural resources and the actions
taken to manage them.

B EHHIRRERRAERNEATLE
EIRIEIE B BNITE ©

FASEAE IR IR A1

Social

e

Employment and Labour Practices
EERETIER
Aspect B1: Employment
EmB1 : BE
General Disclosure Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal

opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

—fRIEE

ot
o0
ssSii}

HER R

T

RET - TIERS RE - FEHRE
AR A Re oAt 558
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BTHETABERTENBRHM R E - 15
Zilk - &
KARMEAERLER LRGBS -

Note: As the operation of the Group
generally does not involve addition
of packaging material to the finished
products, this indicator is
considered immaterial and is not
reported in the report.

T EHA

MiEE : RRAEEEEEL TS R AR RIE
MBEME - HULERERATER
HARRBEFTE® -

5.3 The Environment and Natural
Resources

53RBEARAREIR

5.3 The Environment and Natural
Resources

53RIERKAEIR

6.1 Respect for Labour Rights
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BXRE L8R it =]
EalEE
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group 6.1 Respect for Labour Rights
and geographical region.

Note: As the operation of the Group is
predominantly in Hong Kong and
so is the employment workforce,
the segregation by geographical
region is considered immaterial and
is not reported in the report.

BSEERUIEIR B4 R EEER - FheAR RitEE D IES B - 61 EELEER

Mz : RARAEENEERRENSD IE
BEPRES - WmiREE ST
BHERATEZAERRBEFER

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 6.1 Respect for Labour Rights

RASEAE IR IZB1.2

geographical region.

2R FRERI R ER D MR Tk -

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EmB2: @EHZE
General Disclosure

—fRINEE

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards

FRERMtLZ 2 TIERRLREREEREBEEREEN

@ B X

(b) EFEHETABERLENEMEELROINEL

—E-NEFR | FEBRE

Note: As the operation of the Group is
predominantly in Hong Kong and
so is the employment workforce,
the segregation by geographical
region is considered immaterial and
is not reported in the report.

61BELBER

fisE: ARNARENEERERNSHNE
BEPREE - RMIZLESE DD
BRARTEZEERNRBETZR -

6.2 Safety and Health

6.2%LE MR

HEEBRAT 93
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BERATIRIR -8R i 4=}
EalEE
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 6.2 Safety and Health

BSR4 RS 1R B2.1

KPI B2.2
BB AE R IE1R B2.2

KPI' B2.3

R AERIERB2.3

B T/ERER T 38 - M A BUR LL 2 -

Lost days due to work injury.

AT GEkTIERSE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

FEIMFTER AN B R R R 2 2100 - DA RMRRARIT X
EERTE -

Aspect B3: Developing and Training

[EHB3 : #R&NMIED

General Disclosure

—RRINEE

KPI B3.1

BSR4 AR R B3 A

KPI B3.2

FASEAE N IR1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.

BRARTEREIT TIERE A B R EEER -
R EINES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).

RMRIREEER (NS REERE -
ErMXIEET AL

RRERES)

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.
=R R B RIS 5

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

EBEB4 : TR
General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

BRAN LE T soahlss Tr)

@ BXE:K

b) BFHBETABBERZENEBERLMROINER -
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F BREETAZ I TR -

6.2% % MEEFE

6.2 Safety and Health
6.2 R % MIEE

6.2 Safety and Health

62 % RIER

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development

6.3HE - HlMBEERE

6.3 Education, Training and
Career Development

6.3% A - Wil RBEER

6.3 Education, Training and

Career Development
6.3%E - FIlRBERR

6.1 Respect for Labour Rights
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRARE L8R it E=1:]
ERWMERES
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices 6.1 Respect for Labour Rights

RSB RIS 1R B4

KPI B4.2

PSR IR B4.2

Operating Practices

LEED

to avoid child and forced labour.
IR R RIE G B E AR CE T RaEH ST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.

A BRI E RIE R BN A BB AT ERER B P8R

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EmEB5 : HEiEeER

General Disclosure

—RE

KPI B5.1
RS RIE1R BS. 1

KPI B5.2

RSB IR1R B5.2

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
ERMHERENRE R EREBREBUR -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

i@ E M ERHA -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented and
monitored.

BRI R EENED - mERITEBENT
HEMEE URBEENRITRERTE -

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EMEB6 : EMET
General Disclosure

—fRIEE

Information on:

(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided
and methods of redress.

FAMREERMBRBNRREZ S

FLESEE AR
@ BX:R
b) BTFHETAEEAZENHBEERLRINER -

BE - RER

61 BEL PR

No violation was reported

BB ER RS

7.2 Supply Chain Management

T2 EBE R

7.2 Supply Chain Management
72t R E TR

7.2 Supply Chain Management

7ToMEEE IR

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management

~
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BRERE  HER i 4=}
EalEE
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to 7.1 Quality and Compliance
recalls for safety and health reasons. Management
RSB 512 B6.1 E%&Eiiémﬁﬁ¢ﬁﬁiﬁ@§ﬁﬁ T1BEEHESHER
I EL G ERS)
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints 7.1 Quality and Compliance
received and how they are dealt with. Management
RSB 512 B6.2 BN EmMIRBHRFEE AREEH X - T1BEEHSHER
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 7.1 Quality and Compliance

96

RAs B IE12 B6.3

KPI B6.4

R4 IR 1R B6.4

KPI B6.5

RAS AR WIE1R B6.5

protecting intellectual property rights.
B A AR PR NG E R R A V1B -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
TEH EE*ﬁ ﬂ*i&? 2= 0n @LI&(%EJ__

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

R B E ERHRIE RILBECEE - ARMBERITR
BERITE -

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

EEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

—RIRE

Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BRAN RS - 9% - MEFROEREN
@ BX: K

b) BTHBETABEAZENEBEIRELROINER -
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Management
T1ESHSHRER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
TIEEHARER

7.1 Quality and Compliance
Management
71 EE, =) *ﬁ B I@

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti-corruption
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HKSE ESG Reporting Description Chapter
Guide
BERATIRIR - B8R it =]
EalEE
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt 7.3 Moral Integrity and

RS AR IR 1R BT .1

KPIB7.2

RS E IR BT .2

Community

ot

practices brought against the issuer or its employees

during the reporting period and the outcomes

of the cases.
RERPAAHBETAIHESRBIEEENES

AR E MFAER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
B SR b R IRAE T - A RABRIRIT RS 0k o

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : fLEIEE

General Disclosure

— R EE

KPI B8.1

FASAE IR 1R BB

KBI B8.2

RSB IR1R B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration
the communities’ interests.

B R T RS BEMEMESREMBR
HEEBEHEERMERFZHEEER

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIERESE(WHE  RRFH BIFK - EF-
Xk - 8BE5) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIBEMPAER (W ERER)

Anti-corruption

73BEBEERER

7.3 Moral Integrity and
Anti corruption
BREAGHERER

8 Community Participation

81t &

8 Community Participation

81t £l

8 Community Participation

84t 6 £ Hl
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognises that corporate governance practices are crucial to
the smooth, effective and transparent operation of a company and its
ability to attract investment, protect the rights of shareholders and
stakeholders, and enhance shareholder value. The Company is
committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve its
corporate image with effective corporate governance procedures.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”). The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied with
all the code provisions, except for the deviation from provision A.2.1 and
C.2.5 of the CG Code during the Year.

According to provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have a chief executive
officer and such role has been assumed by the managing director of the
Company. Mr. Chan Ki Chun is the chairman and the managing director
of the Company. In the view that Mr. Chan has been assuming day-to-
day responsibilities in operating and managing the Group since 1999, the
Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Chan taking up both roles for effective management and business
development. Therefore, the Board considers that the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances.

According to code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code, the Company should
have an internal audit function. The Company does not establish a
standalone internal audit department, however, the Board has put in
place adequate measures to perform the internal audit function in relation
to different aspects of the Group. In 2019, the Company appointed an
external internal control adviser to perform periodic review of our internal
control system to evaluate the effectiveness and formulate plans and
recommendations for improvement of our internal control measures and
policies. It is intended to review the effectiveness of the Group’s material
internal controls so as to provide assurance that key internal control
measures are carried out appropriately and are functioning as intended.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board is of the view that this
management structure is effective for the Group’s operations and
sufficient checks and balances are in place. The Board will continue to
review its corporate governance practices in order to enhance its
corporate governance standard, to comply with regulatory requirements
and to meet the growing expectations of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to the employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant
disclosures in the corporate governance report as set out in the annual
report of the Company.

The Board is performing the abovementioned corporate governance
functions throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The Directors, individually and collectively, must act in
good faith in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
The Board has established three Board committees (the “Board
Committees”), being the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
different areas of the Company’s affairs.

Board composition

The Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising four
executive Directors, and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INED(s)”). As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung

Mr. YUNG Kim Man

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

INEDs

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

-
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EE2RARTAEEARATASEDINGAALEE
ARE - B @ FIE LR ARREEERNBR
RER: BRI REEAEEEERSNERASR
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=
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EEEHNANBENREARRER -EFAE
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company and
independence in decision making. The biographies of the Directors (and
their relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report, which
demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
Save as disclosed therein, there are no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into service agreement with
the Company for a further fixed term of three years with effect from 10
December 2018, unless terminated by the respective Director or the
Company in accordance with the terms of the service agreement. Under
the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the INEDs should be appointed
for a specific term. Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company which shall last for a period of three
years with effect from 10 December 2018, subject to early termination
by the INED or the Company in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.

Throughout the Year, the Board has at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The three INEDs represent more than one-third of the Board, the
proportion of which is higher than what is required by Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules whereby INEDs of a listed issuer must represent at least
one-third of the board. The Board believes there is sufficient
independence element in the Board to safeguard the interest of the
Shareholders.

Independence of the INEDs

The role of the INEDs is to provide independent and objective opinions to
the Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the Shareholders and the Group. They serve
actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide their
independent and objective views. All the INEDs are free from any
business or other relationships with the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence
from each INED in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
INEDs are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.
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Board Diversity Policy

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a board diversity
policy. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. While all Board appointments will continue to be
made on a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the needs of the Company’s business. The nominations were made in
accordance with the nomination policy of the Group and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of objective criteria with due regard
for the benefit of diversity of the Board including, but not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies of
the Group, setting objectives and business development plans, assuming
responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the performance
of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the managing director of the
Company, is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans
established by the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the
Board on a regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent professional advice
can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at
the Group’s expense upon their request. In accordance with code
provision C.1.2 of the CG Code, all the Directors have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial position
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Continuing Professional Development

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, training, briefing
and updates on the latest development of the Listing Rules in connection
with the environmental, social and governance reporting, internal control
and risk management and other applicable regulatory requirements have
been provided to each Director during the Year to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
All the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in these
respects, and have submitted their training records to the Company.
Continuing briefings and professional development for the Directors wiill
be arranged whenever necessary.
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The individual training record of each Director during the Year is
summarised below:

FA - BESERINHEARICEBMMT -

Attending training course(s)/
reading materials

Name of Director BEEHR SEEHIRE BEEH
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun PREZ LA v
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung BRERALE v
Mr. YUNG Kim Man BRIt v
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BRELE v
INEDs BAIFHTES

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun MEELAE Vv
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick BB L Vv
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon PR % 2 S A v

Board attendance

Code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held in each year at approximately quarterly
intervals with active participation of a majority of the Directors, either in
person or through other electronic means of communication. Accordingly,
the Board will schedule to have at least four regular meetings in a year.
Other board meetings will be held if necessary.

During the Year, a total of 5 Board meetings and one annual general
meeting (the “2019 AGM”) of the Company were held and the attendance
records of the respective Directors at the Board meetings and the 2019
AGM are set out below:

ESgHEBR

EEERTAZTARXEAIIRRE  SFEX
HEFERBELARNRAEHMESTSSRE A%
BEE I TWmASRBEBEME T BRI NG EER
Hg - Jllt EEE8LHEFELARNRENE
FoMALE  RTTAREMEFTEES -

FRARFAERTTAAESEEH L AR
REFAE([ZZ—NAFREBFAE]) EHE
FHEEFCCHAL T NFRRBEFRAEND
BREFINT -

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHFERE BREHRE

Board Meetings the 2019 AGM
—B-hEF
Name of Director =y EE2SS BRERBEAS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHAN Ki Chun PRELZ ST 4 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung PRIt ST 5/5 11
Mr. YUNG Kim Man AR E 5/5 11
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William BRELE 5/5 1/1
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun ME BT 4/5 1/1
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick BB 5/5 1/1
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon [8R &3] 7 5 A= 5/5 11
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on the
directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions that may
be taken against the Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis by the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees to oversee specific
aspects of the Group’s affairs and assist the Board in the execution of its
responsibilities. Each of these committees has specific written terms of
reference which clearly outline the committee’s authority and duties, and
which require the committee to report its decisions or recommendations
to the Board. All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or professional
advice if considered necessary.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 19 November
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Jim Fun Kwong,
Frederick, Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Jim
Fun Kwong, Frederick has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and is the INED with the appropriate professional
qualifications.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things, to
assist the Board by providing an independent view of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, to monitor relationship with external auditor of the
Group, to review the Group’s financial information, to oversee the audit
process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by
the Board.
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The members of the Audit Committee should meet at least twice a year.
During the Year, the Audit Committee has held 3 meetings, during which
the Audit Committee has, inter alia, reviewed the continuing connected
transaction of the Group; the external auditor’s statutory audit scope for
2019 and their independence; the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and for the 6 months
ended 30 June 2019, including the accounting principles and practices

ERZBERBEREFELHAEMA - R BRZ
Sy}

G EAM-RER TERIAKRENGERE
X5 INBREMN S - NEEAEEZBEUAR

WEBUM  AEERBE_T-N\F+_A=1—
HIEFERHE-ZE-AFRNA=THIREAN
HAEMBHRE  BRAKERAN ST EREED
UEASEEREEENIIEFER - BRETZRZ

adopted by the Group, as well as the risk management and internal E & EHE SN CEEHIINT ¢
control systems of the Group. The attendance records of the respective
members of the Audit Committee at its meetings are set out below:
Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year
FREERE BHERRE
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick (Chairman) 3/3
EEBHREE(EE)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun 2/3
MRIESTSE
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon 3/3
ek &8Il 5 A
Remuneration Committee FMEESE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision B.1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Hung, Simon and Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick and one executive
director, namely Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William. Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon
has been appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other
things, to establish and review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations on remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration paid to the Directors and the
five highest paid employees are set out in notes 8 and 9, respectively, to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the Year are set out below:

ARRR_T—AF+—AtTIAARIHFMEES -
WHRIE £ AR RIS 3.25 ik R REVATRIZE B 5RET
VERBELE FHZEEAMBBULIIERTE
ERYUERENEDAEER —RATEEHEE
FHEMERK - RRUEELEBRZERTHERELIE -

FHNZBENEIZRAER/ (AT ERE) ELRTE
ELRRAEEBNFMBRLRE  IREFRS
RERENHFMGERIEEZR EERAEBRSH
ATEFHBFIE D BISNAFRER S SRR TS
%9

FARREREKENFIEEFSEHINDT

Number of individual

Remuneration band (HK$’000) HNEEE (T8T) AR
0-1,000 0%£1,000 2
1,000-2,000 1,000 £ 2,000 7
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The members of the Remuneration Committee should meet at least once
a year. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting,
for, inter alia, reviewing the remuneration packages for individual Directors
and senior management and making recommendations to the Board.
The attendance records of the respective members of the Remuneration
Committee at its meetings are set out below:

Mz

PN

/\—/-\- \A\
fin

#& =

YSNEZE SN BRESFELHE R - FR - HFIHE

BEeCdM—XRE€#% TERIENEFESRE
EENHGE  AEFSRLES - ARKELE

FHEE e Es

ERESIAT ¢

Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year
FRHERE, BHEIRH

Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon (Chairman)
BRI ST A ()

Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
ERrEA

Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 19
November 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision A.5 of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of
one executive director, namely Mr. Chan Ki Chun and two INEDs, namely
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon. Mr. Chan Ki Chun
has been appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other
things, to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at
least annually and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning
for the Directors, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The members of the Nomination Committee can call for a meeting
anytime when it is necessary. During the Year, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting and has, inter alia, reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and assessed the independence of the INEDs.
The attendance records of the respective members of the Nomination
Committee at its meetings are set out below:

1/1
11
1/1
REREE
ZA/N —hFEt-AtNERIEEZES
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FEJ ’RQE%% IERTESIORE
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Attendance/Number of
meetings during the Year

FRHEAE BREHLIE

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun (Chairman)

BREUZ A (F/E)
Mr. LAM Leung Tsun

MR B LA
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

PBR&HE S

—?

1/1
1/1

11
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Nomination Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for the directorship, a number
of criteria should be considered, including:

° skills, knowledge, experience and professional expertise which are
relevant to the operations of the Group;

° diversity aspects under the board diversity policy of the Group;

° willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the
Company;

° character and integrity;

° for INEDs, whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules; and

° any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to the
Board.

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination
procedures:

Appointment of director

(i) If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate, including internal
promotion, referral from directors, shareholders, management,
advisors of the Company and external executive search firms.

(i)~ The Nomination Committee may propose to the Board a candidate
recommended or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the
Company as a nominee for election to the Board and the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors is subject to the approval of the Board.
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On making recommendation, the Nomination Committee may
submit the candidate’s personal profile and a proposal to the Board
for consideration. In order to be a valid proposal, the proposal must
clearly indicate the nominating intention and the candidate’s
consent to be nominated and the personal profile must incorporate
and/or be accompanied by the full particulars of the candidate that
are required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules, including the
information and/or confirmation required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules. If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
INED, his or her independence shall be assessed in accordance
with the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from
time to time.

The Board shall observe the Board Diversity Policy and shall,
subject to merit and suitability, continue in its endeavours to
introduce more diversity into the Board, taking into account
professional experience and qualifications, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, and any other factors that the Board
might consider relevant and applicable from time to time towards
achieving board diversity.

Re-election of director

U

(i)

When a retiring director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election,
the Board shall consider and, if consider appropriate, recommend
such retiring director to stand for re-election at a general meeting.
A circular containing the requisite information on such retiring
director will be sent to the shareholders of the Company prior to a
general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

If an INED is subject to the re-election, the Nomination Committee
and/or the Board will also assess and consider whether the INED
will continue to satisfy the independence requirements as set out in
the Listing Rules.

Each proposed appointment or re-election of a Director shall be
assessed and/or considered against the criteria and qualifications
set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination Committee
which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or the
Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Board will from time to time review the nomination policy and monitor
its implementation, as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness
and compliance with regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice.
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(i)

(v)

TEERRE

REZEENEREBRN - I BEREANGA
BN RREXTEZTSUHEZRE - BFERES
Mo RENEARBELHRZEAREEARE
W% MABNSERER KM BREL
AR B E SRR ER AN ITFE - BIERE
FTARBIE 351 EATIRE M E R Kk #E
R WERIRBAEZTABLIERNITES -
BIEB AR E E R A 313 RATEE =
ETREE o MR R AT R] BE N B MR (R REET ©

EE2RAETEFEZEBR  YHEARKE
ERNBERAT  BEBIREEEEES T
AARBERERRER MR Fik - XER
HEES URESERARRBAERESES

LB E TR ERNETMEMER) -

—~

EREE

U]

(i)

RESFEAEREEN  EXSHAZENIER
(WRRER) ZRREEENBRAEG LER
B —EAZBREEEMBERAK
BRE ETRARERAENFTH T AR
o

WEBYFMITERARTEE REZBEE
R/ SEEEMETEREEBLIFNTES
CRAGHENE ETMRAPTEABIIERTE -

BRERRINERESAHRLZESGRE
REBRAAE A ER R BEAREITRIE R HE
B UMESRRETERS R LRRAM

#FG ST BAIRA B RE AR (0
) - MBS E B A MRS FEERE R RS
EEREH -

107



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

N
THEEBMS

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries of all the Directors,
each of the Directors confirmed that he has complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule B.13 of the Model Code, the Directors have also
requested any employee of the Company or director or employee of a
subsidiary of the Company who, because of his office or employment in
the Company or a subsidiary, is likely to possess inside information in
relation to the securities of the Company, not to deal in securities of the
Company when he would be prohibited from dealing by the Model Code
as if he were a Director.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is the company secretary of the Company.
Please refer to the section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for her biographical information. All
Directors have access to the company secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Ms. Tang has completed not less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules by attending the continuing professional development programmes
as well as seminars covering regulatory updates and professional
knowledge about company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows and in
accordance with the relevant accounting standards and principles and
the disclosure requirements under applicable laws and regulations in
Hong Kong. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year, the Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgements and estimates. The Board considers that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to any events or conditions which may affect the business of the Group
or cast doubts over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the ongoing concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the external auditor of the Company, with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S 471 58 43 B 6 % 43 B 6 57 A
REMUNERATION

KPMG, certified public accountants (the “Auditor”) has been appointed ¥ &R SR EHAI =T ([ 8 ]) BEE(E
as the external auditor of the Company. During the Year, the fees paid/ AR TIINBIZEED - X - BAZEED B EE R
payable to the Auditor in respect of its services provided to the Group is  EVRRIEEED K BN EREHFIOT ¢

set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable
during the Year
FREN
ENEAR
(approximate
HK$‘000)
(BEAHTHT)

Audit of annual financial statements BT FEMEHRE 3,300
Review of continuing connected transactions EHBERERS 55
Review of internal control 22 B A BB 428 162

3,617

The amount of fees charged by the Auditor generally depends on the IZERIFTME A —RizZEMN TEHERIES
scope and volume of the Auditor’s work. FTE o

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee  F A EF@HEZEZ SR TE RZEINBZEH
on the selection and appointment of the external Auditor during the Year. R L A R 3% o

—NER | FREREAEREEARA A 109



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

iﬁi%é%g;m-ﬂﬁfg

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and overseeing the management of the Group in
its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.
The Board is also responsible for reviewing from time to time the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different levels of
management within the Group. Management of the Group is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring risk management and internal
control systems, and is responsible for identifying, analysing and
prioritising risk for further consideration by the Board, and ensuring that
the risk monitoring and control system are working effectively and risk
mitigation actions are implemented within business units.

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions on an ongoing basis. Based on the result of the
review in respect of the Year, the Directors considered that the internal
control and risk management systems of the Group are effective and
adequate.

The Group has established a set of risk management and internal control
policies and measures covering various aspects of its operations
including, but not limited to: (a) revenue and receipts; (b) capital
expenditure management; (c) purchases, expenses and payments; (d)
human resources and payroll; (e) treasury management; and (f) financial
reporting. These policies and measures are to ensure that proper
accounting records are kept so that reliable financial reporting can be
provided, effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and safeguarding of
assets can be maintained.
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The Board is also of the view that safety, as part of loss control
management, is a vital part of the construction business worldwide, and
if not managed properly, it can be extremely costly not only in human
terms, but also in monetary terms. Therefore, safety is treated as the
highest priority during the delivery of our services with emphasis on
hazard management and risk assessment.

The Group has established safety manuals and project safety plans to
ensure that all workers at our construction sites are well aware of all our
stipulated safety requirements. In addition, qualified safety officers and
safety supervisors, all of them registered under Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (safety officers and safety supervisors) Regulations and
approved by the Labour Department in Hong Kong, are engaged to
monitor and implement our safety system in each construction project.
The Company has been accredited and continuously re-accredited with
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001 certifications in respect of our
environmental management system and occupational safety and health
management system. As a result, the Board is satisfied that these
measures are adequate and effective to promote a safer and healthier
environment for the workers at our construction sites.

For the handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information and, where required, communicate with the Group’s
stakeholders in a timely manner.
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N
TEERMS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable all
the Shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in an
informed manner and allow all the Shareholders to engage actively with
the Company. Under the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), the
shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal procedures
of the Company, the Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following
rights:

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year at the place
as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting (the
“SGM”).

Convening of SGM and Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

Pursuant to bye-law no. 58 of the Bye-Laws, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, call SGMs. Any one or more of the Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a SGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may convene a meeting in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All such
enquiries shall be in writing and sent by post to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any Shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to stand for election
as a director at a general meeting of the Company shall validly serve the
following documents on the company secretary of the Company at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (43/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong) or to the branch
share registrar of the Company (Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong), provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such documents are given, shall be at least seven days and
that (if such documents are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election) the period for lodgement
of such documents shall commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for election of director and end
no later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the Shareholder of his/her intention to
propose such person for election as a director (the “Nominated
Candidate”);

(i) letter of consent signed by the Nominated Candidate of his/her
willingness to be elected as a director; and

(i)  the biographical details of the Nominated Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for publication by the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year. The Memorandum of Association of the Company and
the Bye-Laws are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEMNeNEEEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ki Chun (formerly known as Chan Kin Chung), aged 63, was
appointed as a director of the Company and chairman of the Board on
24 October 2007 and has been an executive director since then. Mr.
Chan is also the managing director of the Group and a director of various
of our subsidiaries. He is primarily responsible for overseeing and
planning the business strategies and the overall management of the
Group. Mr. Chan has over 40 years of experience in the construction
industry and has participated in various foundation, substructures,
building works, drainage and bridge works. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
March 1989 and was appointed as a director of Sun Fook Kong (Civil)
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in January
1993 and Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) in January 1995. He has participated in
various significant projects of the Group including the Central
Reclamation Phase I, the West Kowloon Corridor and the Hong Kong
Disneyland Resort project. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan joined
OVE ARUP & Partners Hong Kong Limited, a company which provides
consulting services in building design, civil engineering and industrial
construction where he was primarily responsible for civil engineering
related works, from June 1979 to February 1989.

Mr. Chan is also a director and (in the case of PRC-established
companies) the legal representative of most of the subsidiaries of Sun
Fook Kong Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Chan is a registered professional engineer in civil and geotechnical
engineering by Hong Kong Engineers Registration Board and a member
of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom and the Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is father of Mr.
Chan Yau Ming, a member of the senior management of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chor Tung, aged 63, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 1 July 2014 and has been an executive director since then.
He is an executive director of our construction and civil division since
January 2017 and is primarily responsible for overseeing, planning,
estimating, tendering and subcontracting of our projects. He is also a
director of several of our subsidiaries and joint ventures. Mr. Chan has
over 29 years of experience in the building and construction industry. Mr.
Chan joined the Group in April 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan
served as a civil engineering estimator of Shui On Civil Contractors
Limited, a building contractor company, and was primarily responsible for
negotiation, planning and programming for tendering from 1989 to 1990.
Mr. Chan is a member of the Chartered Institution of Civil Engineering
Surveyors in the United Kingdom, a member of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering from the National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan.

Mr. Yung Kim Man, aged 58, was appointed as a director of the
Company on 1 July 2014 and has been an executive director since then.
He is an executive director of our construction and civil division since
January 2017 where he is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring
and management of projects in the construction and civil division of the
Group and safety and environmental issues. In July 2018, Mr. Yung was
appointed as director of Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited and Sun
Fook Kong (Civil) Limited (both being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company).He is also a managing director of Chit Cheung
Construction Company Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) since 1 June 2011 where he is responsible for its overall
management and a director of various of our subsidiaries. Mr. Yung has
over 35 years of experience in the construction management and civil
engineering industry. Mr. Yung joined the Group in October 1990. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Yung worked with Cheng Kwan Construction
Co., Ltd from June 1984 to October 1990, where his last position was a
site agent and he was primarily responsible for tendering, budgeting,
subletting, subcontractors liaison, cost control and claim submissions.

Mr. Yung is a member of the American Society of Civil Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers. Mr. Yung holds a diploma in civil
engineering from the Hong Kong Baptist College (now known as the
Hong Kong Baptist University), a bachelor’'s degree in building
engineering (construction engineering and management) from the City
University of Hong Kong and a master’s degree of science in construction
project management from the City University of Hong Kong.
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EEMNeNEEEERE

Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William, aged 58, was appointed as a director of
the Company on 1 January 2015 and has been an executive director
since then. He is the chief financial officer of the Group since June 2007.
He is also a director of SFK Housing Services (China) Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), High Horse Holdings Limited
(an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Consent
Consultants Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). He joined us in November 1993 and since then he is primarily
responsible for our overall financial and accounting management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yeung served as an accountant of
Kwan, Wong, Tan and Fong BDO (now known as Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu), Certified Public Accountants, from July 1987 to November
1993 where he specialised in their audit practice. Mr. Yeung holds a
professional diploma in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
(now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Leung Tsun, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 19 November 2015. Mr. Lam was
previously appointed as our independent non-executive director in
January 2008 in anticipation of the proposed listing of the Company and
he subsequently resigned in July 2008 as the proposed listing did not
proceed due to the volatile market conditions at that time. Mr. Lam has
over 33 years of management experience. He is presently the sales
director of Niche-Tech (Hong Kong) Limited, an advanced materials
supplier for the semiconductor and microelectronics industries.
Previously, Mr. Lam worked as the general manager of Atmel Asia
Limited, a subsidiary of Atmel Corporation (Nasdaq: ATML), a company
listed on the NASDAQ Stock Exchange, which is principally engaged in
the design and manufacture of Semiconductor solutions, where he was
responsible for overseeing the operations of the company.

Mr. Lam received a higher diploma in production and industrial
engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in Hong Kong (now known
as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1978.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Jim is an experienced agent of a local securities company from
May 2007 until his retirement. Mr. Jim joined such company in
September 1996 and he is primarily responsible for dealing in securities
and future contracts. Mr. Jim has over 40 years of experience in the
financial services industry. Prior to joining such company, he served as
an investment consultant in Sun Hung Kai Securities Limited, a stock
brokerage company from August 1977 to September 1996, where he
was primarily responsible for retail sales of securities and related products
in the marketing department. He served as a staff accountant of Arthur
Andersen & Co., an international audit firm where he was primarily
responsible for providing services in auditing from November 1973 to
April 1975.

Mr. Jim is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He holds a higher diploma in accountancy from the Hong
Kong Technical College (subsequently known as The Hong Kong
Polytechnic, now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University).

Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon, aged 63, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 19 November
2015. Mr. Chan has retired since April 2006. Mr. Chan has over 25 years
of experience in treasury and capital markets and had served various
trading and managerial roles in Hong Kong and Singapore. He joined the
Royal Bank of Scotland plc., (“RBS”) Hong Kong branch as a dealer in
June 1981, and since then he began his 25 years of progressive career
advancement within RBS’s treasury and capital markets/financial markets
business in both Hong Kong branch and Singapore branch. Mr. Chan
last held the position of Head of Treasury and Capital Markets, Hong
Kong, prior to the relocation to the Singapore branch in October 1998.
Subsequent to transferring to the Singapore branch, Mr. Chan was the
treasurer of Treasury and Capital Markets, Singapore in 1999, assuming
full responsibility for the Singapore branch’s treasury and capital market
operations. Mr. Chan last held the position of the Head of Front Office
Infrastructure prior to his retirement from RBS and returning to Hong
Kong in May 2006.

Mr. Chan holds a master’s degree in business administration majored in
investment and finance offered in Singapore and validated by the
University of Hull in the United Kingdom.
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EEMNeNEEEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lam Wai Ki, Davie, aged 59, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our construction division. He is also a director of Build.it
Limited, Fujitac Construction & Engineering Consultants Limited, Grand
Win Design Consultants Limited and Linktech Engineering & Landscape
Consultants Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company). Mr. Lam has over 40 years of experience in the building and
construction industry. Mr. Lam joined the Group in January 1988.

Mr. Lam is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Lam
holds a bachelor’s degree in quantity surveying from the University of
Reading in the United Kingdom, which was taught in conjunction with the
College of Estate Management in the United Kingdom.

Mr. Szeto Chi Wing, aged 53, is a director of our quantity surveying
division and is primarily responsible for the overall monitoring and
management of quantity surveying, contractual disputes and litigation
matters in our civil division. He is also a director of Bestwise Envirotech
Limited, BML Engineering Limited, Chit Cheung Construction Company
Limited and Linktech Engineering & Landscape Consultants Limited (all
being indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Szeto has
over 35 years of experience in the civil engineering industry and he joined
the Group in July 1989.

Mr. Szeto is a member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (East Asia
Branch) and a professional member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors in the United Kingdom. Mr. Szeto holds a bachelor’s degree in
quantity surveying from Edinburgh Napier University in the United
Kingdom and a master’s degree in arbitration and dispute resolution from
the City University of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yau Ming, aged 35, is a manager of our estimating division
and is primarily responsible for the overall management of our estimating
division. He is also a director of Build.it Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company). Mr. Chan has over 11 years of experience in
the civil engineering and building construction industry. Mr. Chan joined
our Group in August 2008 as an Engineer Graduate and was promoted
to the current position in January 2019. Mr. Chan is a member of the
Institution and a Chartered Civil Engineer in the United Kingdom and a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Engineers. Mr. Chan graduated from
The University of Alberta in Canada with a bachelor’s degree of science
in civil engineering in November 2006 and subsequently obtained a
master’s degree of science in civil infrastructural engineering and
management from the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
in November 2012. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Ki Chun, the
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company.

Mr. Au Man Kiu, Derek, aged 60, is a director of our civil division and is
primarily responsible for the overall management of projects in our civil
division. In February 2019, Mr. Au was appointed as safety director of the
Group. He is also a director of Bestwise Envirotech Limited and Chit
Cheung Construction Company Limited (both being indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company). Mr. Au has over 36 years of
experience in the civil engineering industry and he joined the Group in
May 1990. Mr. Au is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers.

Mr. Ho Su Cheng, aged 52, is a director of our construction division. He
is responsible for the overall monitoring and management of projects in
our building maintenance, housing services and property management.
Mr. Ho re-joined the Group in April 1998 and has over 27 years
experience in the construction industry. He has previously worked for us
as quality officer from August 1992 to September 1993 and as assistant
quality manager from October 1993 to March 1995.

Mr. Ho is a member of The Chartered Institute of Building of the United
Kingdom, Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers and the
Australian Institute of Building. He graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) with a
bachelor’s degree of science in building technology and management in
October 1992 and subsequently obtained a master’s degree of arts in
arbitration and dispute resolution from the City University of Hong Kong
in November 2001 and a master’s degree of science in real estate from
the University of Hong Kong in November 2008.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEMNeNEEEERE

Ms. Lee Yeuk Lui, Rosa, aged 47, is the senior financial manager of the
Group and is primarily responsible for the financial management and
accounting of the Group. Ms. Lee has over 25 years of experience in
accounting. Ms. Lee joined the Group in August 2007.

Ms. Lee is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. She is also a certified internal auditor by the
Institute of Internal Auditors. Ms. Lee holds a bachelor’s degree in
business administration (honours) from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong.

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity, aged 61, is the deputy director of
administration division and company secretary of the Group and is
primarily responsible for the personnel, office administration, company
secretarial and insurance matters of the Group. Ms. Tang has over 23
years of experience in business administration, human resources and
company secretarial matters and she joined the Group in January 1995.

Ms. Tang is an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Tang
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from the Royal
Melbourne Institute of Technology University in Australia and a master’s
degree in professional accounting and information systems from the City
University of Hong Kong.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tang Yuen Wah, Rity is our company secretary for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange. For details of her background, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Senior Management” under the section headed “Biographical
details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group are general building, civil engineering and the
provision of other services, which mainly comprise housing and property
management services, electrical and mechanical engineering services
and BIM services. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its principal place of business in Hong Kong is situated at 43/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 149 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy which aims to provide
reasonably stable and sustainable returns to the Shareholders. When
considering the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall
take into account, inter alia, our results of operation, the working capital
requirements, cash flow and financial position, liquidity position, debt to
equity ratio, general economic environments and other factors the Board
considers appropriate. The Company will generally propose dividends
semi-annually or annually.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda. Any final
dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and, if consider
appropriate, may modify, amend and change the dividend policy at any
time.
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The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0
cents per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”) for the Year (2018:
final dividend of HK4.0 cents per Share), amounting to HK$16 million
(2018: final dividend of HK$16 million). Such payment of dividends will be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 21 May 2020
(the “2020 AGM”) and if approved, will be payable to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Friday, 29 May 2020. It is expected that the
proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 12 June 2020.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to establish entitlements to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 18
May 2020 to Thursday, 21 May 2020 (both dates inclusive), during which
no transfer of the Shares will be registered. Shareholders of the Company
are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 15 May 2020.

In order to establish entitlements to the proposed final dividend, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 28
May 2020 to Friday, 29 May 2020 (both dates inclusive), during which no
transfer of the Shares of the Company will be registered. Shareholders of
the Company are reminded to ensure that all completed share transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2020.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five years is set out on page 252 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statement.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to HK$40,000 (2018: HK$24,800).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 152
of this annual report and the details of reserves attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

At 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company, as calculated under
the provisions of Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was
HK$17.77 million (2018: HK$16.27 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
movements during the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed minimum public float under the Listing Rules during the Year
and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws, or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was conditionally adopted by the
written resolutions of the Company’s then sole shareholder passed on 19
November 2015. As of the date of this report, no option has been
granted, agreed to be granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme.
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Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to motivate the participants to optimise
their performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group and to attract
and retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with
the eligible participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
long-term growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to the following
persons:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including the INEDs) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and joint operations; and

(i)  any advisers, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors
and such other persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will
contribute or have contributed to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and joint operations.

Shares available for issuance

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme and under any other share option schemes of
the Company (excluding, for this purpose, shares which would have been
issuable pursuant to options which have lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme or any other share option scheme of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at Listing Date, being 40,000,000 Shares, excluding for this purpose
Shares which would have been issuable pursuant to options which have
lapsed in accordance the terms of the Scheme (or any other share option
schemes of the Company). The Company may, subject to the issue of a
circular, the shareholders’ approval in a general meeting and/or such
other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules, refresh this limit at
any time to 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’
approval and/or grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Board. The above is subject to
the condition that the maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes of the
Company (including the Scheme) if it will result in the 30% limit being
exceeded.

As at the date of this report, the outstanding number of share options
available for grant under the Scheme is 40,000,000 share options to
subscribe for the Shares, representing approximately 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including both exercised and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at
the date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular, the approval of the
Shareholders in a general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules.

Time for exercising option and duration of the Scheme

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
at any time after the date upon which the option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and prior to the expiry of 10 years from that date. The
period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
more than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Scheme. Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in a general meeting or by the Board,
the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the
date of its adoption.

Payment on acceptance of the option

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer document
constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by the grantee,
together with a remittance or payment in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the
Company on or before the relevant acceptance date.

To the extent that the offer to grant an option is not accepted by any
prescribed acceptance date, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably
declined.

Basis of determining exercise price of the option

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of:

(i) the official closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must
be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities;
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(i)  the average of the official closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i)~ the nominal value of a share.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement schemes of the Group are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Ki Chun
(Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. CHAN Chor Tung
Mr. YUNG Kim Man
Mr. YEUNG Cho Yin, William

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LAM Leung Tsun
Mr. JIM Fun Kwong, Frederick
Mr. CHAN Kim Hung, Simon

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 114 to 120 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation every year shall include (so far
as necessary to ascertain the number of Directors to retire by rotation)
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-election.
Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other Directors
subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by
lot.
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Mr. Chan Ki Chun, Mr. Chan Chor Tung and Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the 2020 AGM pursuant to bye-law no. 84 of the Bye-Laws.

INDEPENDENCE OF INEDs

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Board considered them independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company which shall be for fixed term of three years, unless
terminated by either the Company or the respective Director in
accordance with the terms of the service agreement.

Each of the INED has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company which shall last for a period of three years, subject to early
termination by the INED or the Company in accordance with the terms of
the letter of appointment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the 2020 AGM has or is proposed to have a service contract with any
member of the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

In order to attract and retain high quality staff and to enable smooth
operation within the Group, the Group offered competitive remuneration
packages (with reference to market conditions and individual qualification,
position, seniority and experience) and various in-house training courses.
Share options may also be granted to eligible employees. The
remuneration packages are subject to review on a regular basis.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all Directors and senior management remuneration, having regard to
market competitiveness, individual performance and achievement. The
Company has adopted the Scheme as an incentive to Directors and the
relevant eligible participants.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the
Director or an entity connected the Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Interests in the Company

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company has any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Interests in associated corporations of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company’s associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) which
were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as
follows:

EEHE

RA QR EBEB R ER

HEZZ-NF+-A=1+—H A2AFAEFHE
SITBRABRARBEEEE (EERESFRBE K
PIZEXV ) BB i ~ B R EREE T () A RIE
B M IGGIEXVERE 7 K8 D RAME AR R N
BRprem R R (BRREESZ KA RIINA
BECREFRERERNERIORE)  R(HEE
RIERE 7 M B R0 5 352 IR7A B AL R Z IR Pl & 5
MevEROR R - K EERBERETRANGA
RE RS SOA RN T

Number of  Approximate
Name of Shares (long percentage of
Name of Director associated corporation Capacity position)  shareholding
RO E BRRER
EEpE HEEEEE 514 (##&) AT
Mr. Chan Ki Chun Sun Fook Kong Group Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 97,599 3.54%
BRELZ 54 (the “SFK Group”) (Note 1)
MREREEAR AR ZyEEERER (1)
(r$rEsEm])
Note 1: Mr. Chan Ki Chun beneficially owns the entire issued share capital of Growth Asset MisE1: R B JZ % & B % ¥ A Growth Asset Holdings Limited

Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability (“Growth Asset”). By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan Ki Chun is deemed to be
interested in the 97,599 shares of SFK Group held by Growth Asset.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors
nor chief executive of the Company has registered any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (i) which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2019, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company)
had or deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short position in the
Shares, the underlying Shares or the debentures of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

FERRRAELFIRG - HRAKGORERE
BENERRRE

BERMM BE_Z-NF+-_A=+—H AT
AL (BERARRZRSTBRABBRINRARRR
- HERMDHEEETHERERXBERALEFEREBR
BEESRIERPIEXVESE 2 X370 B A T

E’ﬁ&m&/‘}z AR - ZALERARRREZ SN
MWU%SSGWZEETZ%\ BreMeoiss Rk, 20K

mw

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of shareholder

Nature of interest

(long position)

shareholding

BB BB BARR
RREE, BB ERME (FR&) "At
SFK Group Beneficial owner (Note 1) 300,000,000 75%
et EE EmEAA M)
Good Target Limited Interest of controlled corporations 300,000,000 75%
(“Good Target”) (Notes 1 and 2)
S EE s (M1 R2)
Ocean Asset Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 300,000,000 75%
(“Ocean Asset”) (Notes 1 and 2)
i E s (e &2)
Mr. Lo Kai Shui (“Mr. Lo”) Interest of controlled corporations (Note 2) 300,000,000 75%
ERURFTE(TEELE]D B (ie2)
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficial owner 12,000,000 3%
AR L EnEAA
Mr. Hu Liang Ming Raymond Beneficiary of a trust 10,000,000 2.5%
AL BEEXmA
Note 1: SFK Group, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, M1 T EAERAERBARAHETMRINER AR ' A
is owned as to approximately 71.39% by Good Target, 18.94% by Ocean Asset, Good Target * Ocean Asset * Growth Asset * Chief Champion
3.54% by Growth Asset, 1.94% by Chief Champion Limited, 1.46% by Jemrick Limited + Jemrick Holdings Limited * KSL Management
Holdings Limited, 1.06% by KSL Management Limited, 0.83% by LHS Management Limited * LHS Management Limited * Worldrich Enterprises
Limited, 0.46% by Worldrich Enterprises Limited, 0.22% by Easespeed Limited and Limited + #£ %2 A [R 2 & } Global Trinity Limited 23 5 # A& £
0.16% by Global Trinity Limited. 71.39% * 18.94% * 3.54% ~ 1.94% ~ 1.46% * 1.06% -
0.83% ~ 0.46% ~ 0.22% 52.0.16% °
Note 2: Good Target, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, M52 :Good Target BE R BMER RS TMKHMERAR - AE

is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Lo. Ocean Asset, a company incorporated in
the Biritish Virgin Islands with limited liability is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr.
Lo. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lo is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
SFK Group.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons who had or deemed or taken to have any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were
required to be recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed herein, apart from transactions carried out in the
normal course of business, there were no contracts of significance
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts of any significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by
a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The deed of non-competition dated 19 November 2015 has been
entered into by SFK Group, Good Target and Mr. Lo, the controlling
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”) in favour of the Company
regarding certain non-competition undertakings given by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company. The details of the deed of non-
competition have been disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has given an annual declaration to
the Company confirming that he/it has complied with the non-compete
undertakings provided to the Company under the said deed of non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and
enforcement of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all the
undertakings thereunder have been complied for the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the Group’s top five customers (where various
departments of the Hong Kong Government were considered
individually), all of which are based in Hong Kong, collectively accounted
for approximately 78.5% (2018: 84.1%) of the Group’s total revenue for
the Year. The largest customer accounted for approximately 50.6% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year (2018: 54.3%).

During the Year, purchases from the Group’s top five suppliers, all of
which are based in Hong Kong and are independent third parties,
collectively accounted for approximately 15.7% (2018: 15.1%) of the
Group’s total purchase costs for the Year. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 3.7% of the Group’s total purchase costs for the Year
(2018: 3.5%).

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company) had any interest in any of the Group’s top five
customers or suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or in existence during the Year.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions entered into by the Group during
the Year as set out in:

(@  note 24(b)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements in relation to
rental expenses, license fees, air-conditioning and service charges
(the amount of which being approximately HK$2.3 million as
disclosed in note 24(c) to the consolidated financial statements);
and

(b)  note 24(b)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements in relation to
property management services and property consultancy services
income (the amount of which being approximately HK$4.6 million
as disclosed in note 24(c) to the consolidated financial statements)

are non-exempt continuing connected transactions which are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but exempt
from the independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
the Listing Rules. Further details of these continuing connected
transactions are set out in the section below headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions”.

The Group has applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, a waiver (the “Waiver”) from strict compliance
with the announcement requirement of the Listing Rules in respect of part
of the continuing connected transaction mentioned in (a) above. Further
details are set out in the section below headed “The Waiver”.

Part of the material related party transactions set out in note 24(a) to the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the remuneration of the
Directors constitute connected transactions exempt from reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements did not fall under the definition of “connected
transactions” or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may
be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are required to comply with
any of the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions:

(1)

Moon Yik Agreements

On 20 December 2012, Sun Fook Kong Construction Management
Limited (“SFK Management”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) with Moon Yik Company, Limited (“Moon Yik”) as
landlord, pursuant to which Moon Yik agreed to lease to SFK
Management properties situated at Suites 3201-2, 3206-10, 32nd
Floor, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(the “Office Premises”) as the head office of the Group. The
Tenancy Agreement expired on 31 March 2016.

On 21 May 2015, SFK Management as licensee entered into a
master license agreement (the “Master License Agreement”) with
Moon Yik as licensor, to govern the use of five car parking spaces
(numbers B2-03, B2-06, B2-11, B2-32 and B2-38) (the “Car
Parking Spaces”) within the car park situated in Basement 2 of
Great Eagle Centre, together with the right to use the entrance and
drive-ways in Great Eagle Centre so far as the same are necessary
to the enjoyment of the Car Parking Spaces. The Master License
Agreement expired on 31 March 2016.

On 21 September 2015, SFK Management and Moon Yik entered
into a renewed tenancy agreement (the “Renewed Tenancy
Agreement”) to renew the Tenancy Agreement and the Master
License Agreement, pursuant to which:

()  the lease of the Office Premises to SFK Management was
renewed for a term of three years commencing from 1 April
2016 and ending on 31 March 2019 at a monthly rental
(exclusive of government rates, air- conditioning charge and
service charge in relation to the management of the Office
Premises) of HK$596,731.20, a monthly air-conditioning
charge of HK$34,923.20 (subject to adjustment) and a
monthly service charge of HK$53,713.40 (subject to
adjustment); and

(i)  the grant to SFK Management of a license to use the Car
Parking Spaces was renewed for the term of the Renewed
Tenancy Agreement at the prevailing monthly license fee
(subject to adjustment as Moon Yik or the carpark manager
of the Car Parking Spaces may prescribe from time to time).

EEHE

HERER S
FA - AEBITATHERER S

(1)

—NE®R | HREE

R

NZE——F+-A=-+H KAFMELE
W%“ﬂ%ﬁ%lﬁ%ﬂ%@ﬁ@@ﬂﬁ%%
EE)EBEERARRED ((ERZEE)
ET_LEE:TED%(WEET%@D Bt RERE
M EEERELAMRES BT B EE235E
0321832012 + 3206-10 ERHEE ([ 94
AREME])  EAEAEENERERE - BEH
HOR - Z—RE=ZA=+—HEH-

RZZE—RAFEFA-+—8 FEEEEE
BT ) BRIE (BRI ) RIS 485 A
e (@R HE]) WIREMLRNEE B O
E2[E=®E 5/ 1 EF B (47 5% B2-03 - B2-
06 ~ B2-11 » B2-32 &, B2-38) ([{Z2E {7 |) K fF
RAEEREEFROLAQRITHEBNER - MR
RIEZBREFSFEREBEME BB o S
BHEER T RNFZA=F+—HEH-

RZZE-—RFAAZ+—RB HEBEIEER
BRI EENEE R (TRENHERZ ) A

B E A KR A R - Bt
() BEEEN E.@ijﬁfﬂ#ﬂﬁwﬁ,z%ﬂ‘fi“
H=F g "FNOUA—HE=
T-hNhF=ZRA=+—H1" ﬂfﬂ(?’j%
SN EYERBOBTEm

MRIEE) 5596,731.20/57C :H
FE £ 34,923.208 0 (A] FHE) k&
fR7 & & 53,713.40 8 7T (A] T %)

%:UJH\}%E“
mﬁ)ﬂﬂﬁm}}

EEMRHEREEMAFA
BERGAFAE(TRRERIEELZ
FHESERANKAR) BREENEE
ThEEHIFHA o

() EFTEAS

EREBBR QA 133



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

134

As disclosed in the annual report of the Company for 2018, the
Board estimated that the annual caps under the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement would be HK$9.70 million, HK$9.99 million and
HK$2.516 million for each of the three years ended 31 December
2019 respectively. Such estimate is based on (a) the rental of the
Office Premises, the license fees of the Car Parking Spaces, the
air-conditioning charge and the service charge under the Renewed
Tenancy Agreement; (b) possible adjustment in the license fees of
the Car Parking Spaces, the air-conditioning charge (due to
increase in the operating cost of air cooling services of the Building)
and the service charge (due to increase in the management fee of
the Building); and (c) other outgoings related to the services or
facilities provided to SFK Management in relation to the Office
Premises. The said annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2019 was determined based on the fees payable for the period
from 1 January 2019 to 31 March 2019, since the term of the
Renewed Tenancy Agreement expired on 31 March 2019.

During the Year, the expenses for the lease of the Office Premises
and the use of the Car Parking Spaces paid under the Renewed
Tenancy Agreement amounted to approximately HK$2.20 million
(2018: HK$8.84 million), which was within the annual cap for the
Year. The Renewed Tenancy Agreement expired on 31 March
2019.

Moon Yik is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Great Eagle
Holdings Limited (“Great Eagle”) and Mr. Lo, our Controlling
Shareholder, was the then deputy managing director and executive
director of Great Eagle at the time of entering into the continuing
connected transaction and is a controlling shareholder of Great
Eagle. As such, Moon Yik is a connected person of the Company
for the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Renewed Tenancy Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Since the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
for the Renewed Tenancy Agreement on a standalone basis is
expected to be more than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual
basis, the transactions contemplated under the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement on a standalone basis constitute non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and are subject to
the reporting, annual review and announcement requirements but
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules, subject however to the
Waiver.
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Agreements of Foshan SFK and Guangzhou SFK (2 HFLUFEBRBEMNHFEBGS
LR MEEE AR AR (Foshan SFK Building Management RZZE—NF—A=_+=B  ARFNWEE
Limited”) (‘Foshan SFK”) and B/ ¥ t@ B W X B2 AR 2 A 2EWBRBRBUNEEEESEERDA
(Guangzhou Sun Fook Kong Property Management Limited®) (LB MENMEEMEETERBRA
(“Guangzhou SFK”), both are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of A TEMF@E] EFMEERENSHEBA
the Company, entered into a number of service or rental AR N\F-HAZ+tZBiIZETRBEX
agreements (the “Previous Service and Rental Agreements”) with HEHZE((ERBREERZ] - TEERDE
various subsidiaries of SFK Group on 22 January 2018. All the rHEEBZEER T —N\F+_A=+—H%
Previous Service and Rental Agreements expired on 31 December B o
2018.
On 31 January 2019, Foshan SFK entered into renewed service RZZBE-NF—A=+—H8  BILFEBEN
and rental agreements to renew some of the Previous Service and BASENSMNBAR G L LENRBRES
Rental Agreements (each the “Renewed Agreement” and Wi WEEETERBEERHEERZ (SR
collectively the “Renewed Agreements”) with various subsidiaries of B REEA I ZEEENHZE] - B
the SFK Group. On the same day, Guangzhou SFK entered into a B BN EEamasEg8mn B AR
new service agreement and a new rental agreement (each the “New RIS MR HE R — O EE R (ZR
Agreement” and collectively the “New Agreements”) with a [Frifhes ] kAR [ ZE5HnE]) - BHihE
subsidiary of the SFK Group. Details of the Renewed Agreements RET AT
and New Agreements are as follows:
Annual Cap
Date of for the
New Agreement/ year ended
Renewed Term/ 31 December
Agreement Parties Scope of services Renewed Term Fees 2019
BE-E-NE
+ZA=1+-H
FihE /R LEEREE
FHERE HED) REHE B/ EBHES ER IR
(approximate
RMB'000)
(%49
ARETT)
3t January 2019 —  BIUTHERFHERE Provision of property consultancy 1January 2019t Basic fee of RMB180,000 2,600
“Z-nE BB 7] (Foshan Xin Yun Tai services in respect of b FT 4% 31 December 2019 per month
—f=t-H Real Estate Development [E5 788 (Foshan Sun Fook Kong “Z-nE-A-B EFEREAAR%180,0007
Company Limited) Guang Chang Development’) EZ23-NE
—  Foshan SFK (through its (“Foshan SFK Guang Chang”) and +ZA=+—H  Additonal senice fees for
Foshan head office) property services as requested the property services, if any
- BLTHERRUMERLER SRS RSER MERBOEIMNEHE (E)
2] (MLsEERS )
- BLEEAGREBLENSE) REDEEBEER
RETEREMERT
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Annual Cap

Date of for the

New Agreement/ year ended

Renewed 31 December

Agreement Parties Scope of services Fees 2019

BE-E-hE

+ZA=1+-H

i/ LR LEENEE

iSRS )l &R ER R

(approximate

RMB'000)

(#4

AEETT)

31 January 2019 HIERERMEREERAT  Provision of property consutancy Basic fee of RMB80,000 1,150
—E-NE (Dujianyan Gen Yuan Real services in respect of per month

—A=1+-8 Estate Development Limited) REER - BEEE HEAEAFAARES0,0007T
Foshan SFK (through its (Chengdu Qing Cheng.

Foshan head office) Gen Yuan Development?) and Additional service fees for
PIEREEHEREERAT property services as requested the property services, if any
BUSEEEREBLANRSER) RRHBEN  REEE MERBHBINREE (0F)

RENEERRS
RETERBNERS
31 January 2019 Foshan Xin Yun Tai Real Estate Provision of property consultancy Basic fee of RMBG0,000 per month 860
—E-nE Development Company Limited services in respect of EXBAGAARE60,0007T
—-A=t-H Foshan SFK (through its Foshan Foshan SFK Guang Chang —Z-N5-A-H
Head Office) and property Additional service fees for the
BLTHEREHERE services as requested property services, if any
BRAT HBLFEAESER MERBOEIMNEHE (0F)
BILFER (BREMBLE REMEBRRS
HER) RETEREMERT
31 January 2019 ENTEREARHERSE Provision of property consultancy Basic fee of RMB20,000 290
ZE-NE B2 7] (Guangzhou City sevices in respect of EMEERI& per month
—RB=t-H Hong Kang Fook Kong Real JEEIE B (Guangzhou Fook Kong Z2-NE-A-R EFERGAAR200007T
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Estate Development Company

Limited®) (“Guangzhou Hong

Kang Fook Kong’)
Guangzhou SFK
BMTERESRERE

BRAR(EMEREE])
EMRR

The Paramount Development’)
and property
services as requested
REMEERELEER
RAEMEBRRE RATELE
ES

Additional service fees for
the property services, if any

NERBOBIHMRHE (F)



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEWRE

Annual Cap
Date of for the
New Agreement/ year ended
Renewed Term/ 31 December
Agreement Parties Scope of services Renewed Term Fees 2019
BE-3-N%
+ZA=t+-H
FihE /R LEENEE
FiEEas HED:] REEE B/ BHES ER R
(approximate
RMB'000)
(49
ARETT)
31 January 2019 —  Guangzhou Hong Kang Leasing of the property situated at 1 January 2019 to Monthly rental of RMB8,960.40 108
“T-hE Fook Kong BINENRNELREENEY, 31 December 2019 ATAR¥8,960.40 T
—f=t-H — Guangzhou SFK ZREF 2835 A15, —Z-hE—-F—H
- BNEERREE RRSETEREEAE ZZE-NE
- BNEmEA (A15, No. 283, Xiangxue Road West, +-F=1-8
Guangzhou Science City,
Gaoxin Jishu Chanye Development Zone,
Fook Kong Paramount Commercial
Complex’)
BENRBINRHATEEREENE
HASKEFR2835A15
RARETERERARNNE
The Board’s estimated annual caps under the Renewed BN ZE BN R RZENnHE
Agreements and the New Agreements, as disclosed in the THEELR(HONARTHRHAE=-ZT—NF
announcement of the Company dated 31 January 2019, are set —A=+—ANAEMBERE)HN L - B
out above. For more details of the Renewed Agreements and the ZERBTHERZETRRELRZEFELR
New Agreements and the basis of determination of these annual WETEEENELFE  H2HARAS -
caps, please refer to such announcement.
During the Year, the total service fees received and rental paid FR - RBZELEN = RZEHHEKER
under the Renewed Agreements and the New Agreements WRBERAREZNNESLEIFIAARKE
amounted to RMB4,080,000 (equivalent to approximately 4,080,000 7T (#H & 7 47 4,555,000 8 7T) R AR
HK$4,555,000) and RMB108,000 (equivalent to approximately 108,000 7T (18 & A 7 120,000% 7T) + K8
HK$120,000) respectively, which were within the annual caps for BEANFE LR -
the Year.
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SFK Group is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Thus, SFK
Group and its subsidiaries are connected persons of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions
contemplated under the Renewed Agreements and the New Agreements
constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

In respect of the estimated annual cap for the Year for the transactions
under the Renewed Agreements and the New Agreements, as one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios calculated in accordance with
the Listing Rules are more than 0.1% but all the applicable percentage
ratios are less than 5%, such transactions are continuing connected
transactions subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements, but are exempt from the circular and shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

All the Renewed Agreements and the New Agreements have expired on
31 December 2019.

THE WAIVER

The Group has applied to the Stock Exchange for, and the Stock
Exchange has granted, a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirement of the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
exempt continuing connected transactions as disclosed above in
paragraph 1 (for the Tenancy Agreement and the Master License
Agreement on an aggregated basis and for the Renewed Tenancy
Agreement on a standalone basis) under the above section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” subject to (a) these non-exempt
continuing connected transactions will be carried out in compliance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules and the Company shall comply with
the relevant requirements for continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules; and (b) the aggregate
value of each of the relevant non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2019 will
not exceed the relevant annual caps.
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ANNUAL REVIEW OF CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the above non-exempt
continuing connected transactions have been reviewed by the INEDs
who have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (c) according to the agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has been engaged by the Company to report on
the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions. The auditor
has issued a letter to the Board containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The auditor has
confirmed that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to
believe that the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

(@  have not been approved by the Board;

(b)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services by the Group;

(c) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange in
accordance with Rule 14A.57 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the Year was there any permitted indemnity provisions
(whether made by the Company or otherwise) being in force for the
benefit of any Directors of the Company, or of its associated company.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is included in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report on pages 7
to 35. Such business review forms part of this Report of the Directors.

—NE®R | HREE
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and so far as the Directors are aware, no litigation or claim of
material importance is pending or threatened by or against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board is not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure that
has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report on
pages 98 to 113.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been audited by
KPMG, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the 2020 AGM. A resolution for their re-appointment as
the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Chan Ki Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020

# The English names are translations from their Chinese names. If there is any
inconsistency, the Chinese names shall prevail.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
SFK Construction Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SFK
Construction Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 148 to 251, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with
any ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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B 3 Az AN R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BRERHEE

MEEER 2

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the

consolidated financial statements.

FLRIAF B BRI T3 RAF B BFBRRMGE10) R 100 F e85 HE -

The Key Audit Matter
BREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNWEEZSE

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of general building
and civil engineering totalling HK$5,277 million for the year ended 31
December 2019.

HE_ZT-NAF+-_A=1+—"BIFE S£EEGIREH-KREER
FTARTIRREENREBFT A527T7THEEBIT ©

Contract revenue is recognised over time using the output method,
based on direct measurements of the value of services delivered or
surveys of work performed and the estimated total revenue for the
contracts entered into by the Group. Contract costs are recognised
when work is performed, together with any provisions for expected
contract losses.

BRREENEXFEEXNRBRCHRIRAENEEBAR &
BRI A KA EET AR E R A E AR MR - & KA RETT
TERFRERR, - B RITAHIA A BB R MR -

H

The recognition of revenue and profit relies on management’s
estimate of the final outcome of each contract which involves the
exercise of significant management judgement, particularly in
forecasting the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and liquidated damages, in estimating the amount
of expected losses and in assessing the ability of the Group to deliver
services according to the agreed timetable.

W KN EREEREEEHZRENNREERNMET - 895
RITREENEERBHE  LEREBRATKAONNKE  FEAHE
E BARNEOBED  GHAAEHNBEBZBEULFE EXERERE
MR R KRR HRFHEN T E
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Our audit procedures to assess contract accounting
estimates included the following:
B EEOSAEANERREFBEATRE

assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the contract revenue recognition processes;

AHE S A A W IR AR ) B M AR I AV R E
B M EER)

discussing with the Group management and
project directors the performance of the major
contracts in progress during the year and
challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract revenue and
contract costs, including estimated costs to
completion, the recognition of variation orders,
the adequacy of contingency provisions and their
assessment of potential liquidated damages for
contracts which are behind schedule, by
obtaining and assessing information in
connection with the assumptions adopted,
including contract agreements and sub-
contracts, confirmations from and
correspondence with customers regarding
contract variations and claims and by considering
historical outcomes for similar contracts;

BBER N HEARANBREANER (B
BRBEEDBAH EFHENEH LR RARE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BREEHEE

B 3 Az A R

MEEER 2

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the

consolidated financial statements.

FLRIAF B BRI T3 RF B FEBRRMGE10) R 100 F ey 85 HE -

The Key Audit Matter
BREREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ETNWEEZSEE

We identified contract accounting estimates as a key audit matter
because the estimations of the total revenue and total costs to
complete contracts are inherently subjective and require significant
management judgements and estimations and because errors in the
forecast of contract revenue and contract costs could result in a
material variance in the amount of profit or loss recognised from
contracts to date and, therefore, in the current period.

BB ENEH A EESBREXZEER  ARAKERTKA KNG
A RARE TEIT BT EEANETEEH B M b5 kB a 8%
B RAOKATERANERTEEEHCS RLE(RALRERMMERN)E
BARMERNERSALREAER -
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obtaining a detailed breakdown of the total
estimated costs to completion for major
contracts in progress during the year and
comparing, on a sample basis, actual costs
incurred to-date and cost estimates to
agreements, certifications or correspondence
with subcontractors and suppliers and other
documentation referred to by management in its
assessment of the estimated costs to
completion;

REFALEETHNIEANMNTHR M ERAE
RFEAAR  WARESALRESELENERK
AMEHER - B0 Br R ERR 7
SO ARLUA K B IR FE A AT Af ST Al SRS B AR S Y
HAp 3

e
EZ‘JJ\ Az

comparing the contract revenue recognised for
the major contracts in progress during the year
with reference to the certifications from the
professionals appointed by the customers;

B FERNEAETHERANERNE DR
KEEFPREMNEZALTNRBLZEITHL

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual contracts and
discussing with site personnel the status of each
project and evaluating whether the project
progress was consistent with the agreed
timetable and the Group’s financial accounting
records;

RMEEEETTEMREABRER S OEE
I ERIRI5 A B i & 88 B B0k Re R AT A B #
EHpTENRHEKE BERENTBEHLEES
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8 3 1% BRD S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Contract accounting estimates

BRERHEE

MEEER 2

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(l) and 1(t)(i) to the

consolidated financial statements.

L BIAF B BRI T3 RAF B BEBRRMGE10) R 10)0) F ey 85 HE -

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BREREZEE BN ET A EEZEE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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performing a retrospective review for contracts
completed during the current year by comparing
the final outcome of the contracts to previous
estimates made for those contracts to assess
the reliability of the management’s forecasting
process; and

BBRENNRREREZAHZFANELN
EHETHLY - BAFEZRNEAETEELE
%o URHAEEERRARENR SN - Rk

inspecting a sample of contract agreements with
customers and subcontractors to identify key
terms and conditions, including contracting
parties, contract period, contract sum, scope of
work, liquidated damages and evaluating
whether these key terms and conditions had
been appropriately reflected in the total estimated
revenue and costs to complete under the
forecasts of contract.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

146

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yeung Yuk Fan.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

AR e W &

For the year ended 31 December 2019

BE_ZT-NF+-A=1+—RLLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Note $°000 $’000
B &E Tt Tt
Revenue g 3 5,461,871 6,197,164
Direct costs [EREIDFN (5,386,722) (5,923,988)
Gross profit EF 75,149 273,176
Other revenue Hib g zs 4 2,609 4,763
Other net loss H b ¥ E51E 5 (530) (462)
Administrative expenses TR (84,068) (92,534)
(Loss)/profit from operations g (BR),BR (6,840) 184,943
Finance costs & AN 6(a) (19,409) (12,234)
Share of results of a joint venture DIEBEEEE (6,750) (15,803)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAT (B51E), %R 6 (32,999) 156,906
Income tax Frig i 7(a) 3,597 (27,585)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE (58,85 (29,402) 129,321
Attributable to: PEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company PIN/NSI e o (28,827) 129,689
Non-controlling interests VAR (575) (368)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(F8),%F (29,402) 129,321
(Loss)/eamings per share — Basic/Diluted S % (F518) BF — & #E 10 (7.2) cents &4l 32.4 centsiB Il

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 1(d).

The notes on pages 155 to 251 form part of these consolidated financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

fid: ARECR-_F-NF-A—-BEREEIEPREETRER
BEMBRELENE6 - REBEUFE LRENFTFE

5 e 2RMIFE(d)

Company attributable to the year are set out in note 20(b). 20(b) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOI\/IE

Z"“‘/\/\

RN

TR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT-NF+-A=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (AEBTTZ27)
2019 2018
—E-hnF — N\
(Note)
(fF&E)
$’000 $000
Tr Tt
(Loss)/profit for the year F£E(E8B) HF (29,402) 129,321
Other comprehensive income FEHMEERE (BRHR)
for the year (after tax)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to Hipn g9 EE1EmRIEE -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of financial — #E & & E NI E A 7
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong ISR A IE X =58 (209) (336)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHMWRHALE (29,611) 128,985
Attributable to: PEAE -
Equity shareholders of the Company RN BIERAT R (29,035) 129,352
Non-controlling interests FEfE I i (576) (367)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHMKZHAEE (29,611) 128,985

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not

restated. See note 1(d).

The notes on pages 155 to 251 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

s : AREER=F

—NE®R | HREE

EEMBRELANE16
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A B AR R R

at 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZE-NAF+=ZA=+—H
(LAETT251)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
(Note)
ChEE)
Note $°000 $000
B 5T T Tt

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BB KRS 11 110,296 43,538
Goodwill EES 1,209 1,209
Deferred tax assets REFTEEE 7(c)(i) 39,049 34,750
150,554 79,497

Current assets REEE
Contract assets SUHEE 14 1,422,493 1,262,372
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5) AR 5k Ko L At FE YL 5K IE 15 514,244 568,734
Amount due from a joint venture JEW & & FEFRIE 13(a) 3,010 2,323
Current tax recoverable AT U [l B ERFR 18 7)) 2,685 4,528
Pledged deposits [REEwEE 25,125 25,039
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 16(a) 263,505 216,897
2,231,062 2,079,893
Current liabilities nEBaE

Interest in a joint venture MG &R ERNER 13(a) 19,464 12,714
Contract liabilities AHAR 14 118,191 119,888
Trade and other payables FEfHE 585 3 N E{th B~ Z0E 17 1,307,142 1,145,617
Bank loans RITER 18 408,464 371,732
Lease liabilities HeEsE 19 17,908 -
Current tax payable JE 4~ BN AR 18 7)) 8,025 10,942
1,879,194 1,660,893
Net current assets REBEEFE 351,868 419,000
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 502,422 498,497

Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Lease liabilities HEBE 19 49,711 -
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE 7(c)(ii) 4,542 4,717
54,253 4,717
NET ASSETS BEEFE 448,169 493,780
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR A B AR R

at 31 December 2019 RZTZ—NF+=—A=+—AH
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2019 2018
—B-nE  —FNF
(Note)
(MF3%)
Note $°000 $'000
Bt & Tr Tt
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRNFEE
Share capital [N 20(c) 40,000 40,000
Reserves B 408,308 453,343
Total equity attributable to equity AATEERREMESARE
shareholders of the Company 448,308 493,343
Non-controlling interests FEERE S (139) 437
TOTAL EQUITY P 448,169 493,780

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March K& HeRN - -FTF= A=+ XBE R IEE

2020. 1T e
Chan Ki Chun Yeung Cho Yin, William
PR BUZ BEE
Director Director
EF S
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the modified i : AEBER-_E—NGF— A —BERKBIEREENER
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative information is not EA I ERE *ﬂ\lgg‘IGEJZ WIEL % WERERARFE
restated. See note 1(d). B o 2R HFE1(d) °

The notes on pages 155 to 251 form part of these consolidated financial % 155 & 251 B T K Z S B RE —5 ©
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
r" pacll i @J %

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

/\\/ \
BHE-T-NF+-A=+—RALFE
(ABTTE7)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARRERRREN

Non-
Share Share Capital  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
i3 BRA  BREE BARE EREE RIEF wit knkEs BERER
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000
T T T T T T T T
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-NF-A-H 40,000 82,867 81 202 350,841 473,991 804 474,795
Changes in equity for 2018: —Z—\FREZEE :
Profit for the year FEHM - - - - 129689 129,689 (368 129,321
Other comprehensive income  H 2 E Mz - - - (337) - (337) 1 (336)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEBE - - - (337) 129,689 129,352 (367) 128,985
Dividends approved in respect  BEAT—EE# RS
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - - - - (74,0000 (74,000) - (74,000)
Dividends declared inrespect  FAFE S IREIRE
of the current year 20(b)() - - - - (36,0000 (36,000 - (36,000)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\&
+=ZA=+-H 40,000 82,867 81 (135) 370,530 493,343 437 493,780
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARFREREEL
Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange Retained controlling Total
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
Bzt BEA  ROEE EXFHE ELRE REERN m FEREE ERAE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
At 1 January 2019 R=B-hF-A—-H 40,000 82,867 81 (135) 370,530 493,343 437 493,780
Changes in equity for 2019: —Z—-hEEZSE
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (28,827)  (28,827) (575)  (29,402)
Other comprehensive income  H ft 2 Uz - - - (208) = (208) (1) (209)
Total comprehensive income FHENERRE - - - (208)  (28,827)  (29,035) (576)  (29,611)
Dividends approved in respect  BLAT—EE#ERIR S
of the previous year 20(o)(i) - - - - (16,000)  (16,000) - (16,000)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE
+=ZB=+-H 40,000 82,867 81 (343) 325,703 448,308 (139) 448,169
The notes on pages 155 to 251 form part of these consolidated financial 55155 2 251 BN B ZSL AW BHRE — D o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FeaReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_T-NF+_A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABTTE7)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\EF
(Note)
(BE)
Note $’000 $'000
k3 T T
Operating activities REEH
(Loss)/profit before taxation MR A (E18), s A (32,999) 156,906

Adjustments for:

FLNPISIBEL AR -

— Interest income — FEUA 4 (1,002) (248)
— Finance costs — BB 6(a) 19,409 12,234
— Depreciation — e B(c) 34,069 14,161
— Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, — HEME - = LHZERN
plant and equipment (W), BERFE 5 (422) 498
— Share of results of a joint venture — DMEEEEEE 6,750 15,803
— Net foreign exchange loss — JNEESIBIFEE 2 32
— Net gain on interest rate swap — Fxm S FRE 5 (299) -
Changes in working capital: EEESE
— Increase in contract assets — BHEEREM (160,121) (440,180)
— Decrease in trade and other — BINE BRI EAM
receivables FEM IR D 16(b) 59,456 97,896
— Increase in pledged deposits — BRI FEIEM (86) (33)
— (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities  — & 4 & & G4,/ #E0 (1,697) 20,207
— Increase in trade and other payables — [ENEB SRR N EAM
FERTFRIAIE N 16(b) 227,080 279,448
Cash generated from operations REMBES 150,140 156,724
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid, net EREENGEH - F58 (1,951) (26,976)

Net cash generated from operating

REFHRERSFR

activities 148,189 129,748
Investing activities RETH
Payment for the purchase of property, BEWE BENI

plant and equipment BGANEN (15,448) (28,620)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BER&E

plant and equipment FTi5 3078 587 737
Repayment from a joint venture KEEELENER 27,545 17,381
Advances to a joint venture MEEPERR (28,232) (21,608)
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary U B% — BB B A AR

net of cash acquired (BrU IR ©) (2,458) -
Interest received BRI B 777 245
Net cash used in investing activities R&EEZEFARESEE (17,229) (31,865)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH

R e REXR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

/\\/ \

HE-_Z-hFE+_A=t+—HBLFE
(LAETT251)

FLOW STATEMENT

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
(Note)
(FF5E)
Note $°000 $’000
B &E Tt Tt
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERATISKIA 16(b) & 16(c) 912,000 602,500
Repayment of bank loans EEBITERK 16(c) (943,662) 611,812)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEEMEAREE 16(c) (17,079) -
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENHEMFEER 16(c) (1,745) -
Interest paid ERFLE 16(c) (17,664) (12,234)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders AIAR B S IR R S A B
of the Company 20(b) (16,000) (110,000)
Net cash used in financing activites FEEEMARS EE (84,150) (131,546)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRRLEEY
and cash equivalents i, CRad) BEE 46,810 (33,663)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FENRERRESEEY
beginning of the year 16(a) 216,897 250,775
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E &% &j 1) 2/ (202) (215)
Cash and cash equivalents at the FRNEAESRESEEY
end of the year 16(a) 263,505 216,897

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach

and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets

and lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating

leases under HKAS 17. Previously, cash payments under operating leases made by

the Group as a lessee of $39,098,000 were classified as operating activities in the
consolidated cash flow statement. Under HKFRS 16, except for short-term lease

payments, all other rentals paid on leases are now split into capital element and
interest element (see note 16(c)) and classified as financing cash outflows. Under the

modified retrospective approach, the comparative information is not restated. Further
details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 1(d).

The notes on pages 155 to 251 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

General information

SFK Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in construction and maintenance projects
in Hong Kong, construction projects in Macau, housing and
property management services in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and electrical and
mechanical engineering services in Hong Kong. The
Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 October 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
Company’s shares were listed on The Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 10 December 2015.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are
disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(d) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

AN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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B 75 ¥R & M &

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
and the Group’s interest in a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
derivative financial instruments (see note 1(h)) are stated at
their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16, Leases,
and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, Leases, none of the developments
have had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

HKFRS 16, Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17, Leases, and the related
interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4, Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease, HK(SIC) 15, Operating leases
— incentives, and HK(SIC) 27, Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the legal form of a lease. It introduces a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires a lessee
to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases, except for leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less (“short-term leases”) and leases of low-value assets.
The lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to assess the effect that
leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an entity.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from 1 January
2019. The Group has elected to use the modified
retrospective approach and has therefore recognised the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2019. Comparative
information has not been restated and continues to be
reported under HKAS 17.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition options
applied are set out below:

a. New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly relates to
the concept of control. HKFRS 16 defines a lease on
the basis of whether a customer controls the use of an
identified asset for a period of time, which may be
determined by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a lease in
HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were entered into or
changed on or after 1 January 2019. For contracts
entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group has
used the transitional practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing
arrangements are or contain leases. Accordingly,
contracts that were previously assessed as leases
under HKAS 17 continue to be accounted for as leases
under HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as
non-lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)
1 EEEMHEE )
(d) BFFBREH (&)
EBNERELENFE16H [HEI(E)
b.  RAEAGEEIENAEIEZE

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a lessee to
classify leases as either operating leases or finance
leases, as was previously required by HKAS 17.
Instead, the Group is required to capitalise all leases
when it is the lessee, including leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, other
than those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt. As far as the Group is
concerned, these newly capitalised leases are primarily
in relation to properties as disclosed in note 22(b). For
an explanation of how the Group applies lessee
accounting, see note 1(j).

At the date of transition to HKFRS 16 (i.e. 1 January
2019), the Group determined the length of the
remaining lease terms and measured the lease liabilities
for the leases previously classified as operating leases
at the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the relevant incremental borrowing
rates at 1 January 2019. The weighted average of the
incremental borrowing rates used for determination of
the present value of the remaining lease payments was
2.5%.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group applied
the following recognition exemption and practical
expedients at the date of initial application of HKFRS
16:

(i) the Group elected not to apply the requirements
of HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets to leases for
which the remaining lease term ends within 12
months from the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16, i.e. where the lease term ends on or
before 31 December 2019;

(i) when measuring the lease liabilities at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group applied
a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics (such as leases
with a similar remaining lease term for a similar
class of underlying asset in a similar economic
environment); and

(i) when measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
relied on the previous assessment for onerous
contract provisions as at 31 December 2018 as
an alternative to performing an impairment review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% 537 #5851 + A L271)
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1 EEEHEE#E)
(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued) (d EFBEREH (&)
HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued) ERMBHREELFE16K[HEI(E)
b.  Lessee accounting and transitional impact (Continued) b.  FAHEASFEENEEMTEE)
The following table reconciles the operating lease N K AW E220b) AT # B H

commitments as disclosed in note 22(b) as at 31
December 2018 to the opening balance for lease
liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019:

—NFt+=H EJr*EiE’]Z“(%ﬁE
HAERR -T-NF—-HA—B#R
MW E e BEHUEHROEER

1 January 2019

—EB-NF
—B—H
$°000
Fr
Operating lease commitments at RZZE-N\FE+ZA=+—HBH
31 December 2018 KR TR E R 45,079
Less: commitments relating to leases B BARREMEMIE SR RE
exempt from capitalisation:
— short-term leases and other leases with — RHATEE A R R E
remaining lease term ending on or RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H
before 31 December 2019 s AlfEmM E M E (5,745)
Add: lease payments for the additional periods ~ fi : "EERASBREFTE
where the Group considers it reasonably ERREENEINEMAE
certain that it will exercise the extension (B4
options 40,427
79,761
Less: total future interest expenses W RRF B RX EEE (5,542)
Present value of remaining lease payments, FSHENREEARZZ—NE
discounted using the incremental borrowing —A— BN EERFRITEN
rate at 1 January 2019 and total lease liabilites ~ BERNR-_Z—HAF—A—H
recognised at 1 January 2019 HROEESERE 74,219

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously
classified as operating leases have been recognised at
an amount equal to the amount recognised for the
remaining lease liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

C. Impact on the financial result, segment results and cash

flows of the Group

After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise interest expense
accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease liability,
and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. This results in a positive impact on
the reported profit from operations in the Group’s
consolidated income statement, as compared to the
results if HKAS 17 had been applied during the year.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, the Group as
a lessee is required to split rentals paid under
capitalised leases into their capital element and interest
element (see note 16(c)). These elements are classified
as financing cash outflows, similar to how leases
previously classified as finance leases under HKAS 17
were treated, rather than as operating cash outflows,
as was the case for operating leases under HKAS 17.
Although total cash flows are unaffected, the adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a significant change in
presentation of cash flows within the consolidated cash

flow statement (see note 16(d)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in a joint venture (see note 1(f)(i)) or an
associate.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(k)(iii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Joint arrangements

@

Joint venture

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties contractually agree to share control of
the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the
Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the joint venture that forms part of the Group’s
equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 1(k)(iii)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Joint arrangements (Continued)

@

Joint venture (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the equity
method together with any other long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture (after applying the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) model to such other long-term interests where
applicable (see note 1(k)(i)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have joint
control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Joint arrangements (Continued)

(ii)

Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

— its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;

— its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities
incurred jointly;

— its revenues from the sale of its share of the
output arising from the joint operation;

— its share of the revenue from the sale of the
output by the joint operation; and

— its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

() Joint arrangements (Continued)

(ii)

Joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity sells or contributes assets to a
joint operation in which a group entity is a joint operator,
the Group is considered to be selling or contributing
assets to the other parties to the joint operation, and
gains and losses resulting from the sale or contribution
are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of other parties’ interests in the joint
operation.

When a group entity purchases assets from a joint
operation in which a group entity is a joint operator, the
Group does not recognise its share of the gains and
losses until it resells those assets to a third party.

(9) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

M

(i)

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over

the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. At
the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured.
The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)):

—  right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

— items of plant and equipment, including right-of-use
assets arising from leases of underlying plant and
equipment (see note 1())).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Over the unexpired
term of lease

— Properties leased for own use

5 years or over the
unexpired term of lease

— Machinery and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

A)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in the measurement
of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

A

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
notes 1(i) and 1(k)(iii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
separately in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2019

In the comparative period, leases which did not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group were classified as operating leases.

Where the Group had the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
were charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis was more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased asset. Lease incentives received were
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals were charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they were incurred.

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on the
following items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables); and

—  contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see note

10

Other financial assets measured at fair value, including
derivative financial assets, are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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1
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value
of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@i

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@i

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a
collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(t)
(iii) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

@i

(i1)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or
contract asset is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
This is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially recognised
within “trade and other payables” at fair value, which is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or to interest rate differentials,
by comparing the actual rates charged by lenders when
the guarantee is made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense is
recognised in profit or loss.
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(S HEBI - UET27)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial guarantees issued
(Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the amount initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract and recognises a provision
when ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined
to be higher than the amount carried in “trade and other
payables” in respect of the guarantees (i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in
the risk of default of the specified debtor since the
issuance of the guarantee. A 12-month ECL is
measured unless the risk that the specified debtor will
default has increased significantly since the guarantee
is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL is measured. The
same definition of default and the same assessment of
significant increase in credit risk as described in note

1(K)(i) apply.

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an
ECL is estimated based on the expected payments to
reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less
any amount that the Group expects to receive from the
holder of the guarantee, the specified debtor or any
other party. The amount is then discounted using the
current risk-free rate adjusted for risks specific to the
cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-of-
use assets;

—  goodwill; and

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

0

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)
(iv) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance with
HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the
first six months of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at
the end of the financial year (see notes 1(K)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller
loss, would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year to
which the interim period relates.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(t)) before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the payment terms set out in the
contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(k)() and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 1(m)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue (see note 1(t)). A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue. In such cases, a
corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due. If
revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset (see note 1(1)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses (see note 1(k)

(M)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated cash flow statement. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(K)(i).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 1(v)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Trade and other payables

(q)

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(k)(ii), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Employee benefits

@

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arises from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each other
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

@i

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the construction contracts or the provision of services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as
a construction contract when the contract relates to
work on assets under the control of the customer and
therefore the Group’s construction activities create or
enhance an asset under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
reasonably measured, revenue from the contract is
recognised over time using the output method, i.e.
based on direct measurements of the value of services
delivered or surveys of work performed and the
estimated total revenue for the contracts entered into
by the Group.

The likelihood of contract variations, claims and
liquidated damages are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are expected to
be recovered.

If at any time the costs to complete the contract are
estimated to exceed the remaining amount of the
consideration under the contract, then a provision is
recognised in accordance with the policy set out in note

1(s)(i).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Provision of services

Revenue arising from the provision of services is
recognised when the services are rendered.

(iii) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see note 1(K)())).

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period
in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(w) Related parties (Continued)

(2)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

)

)

(iv)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (1).

A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in these financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(@) Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy note 1(t), revenue from construction
contracts are recognised over time using the output method.
Such revenue and profit recognition on uncompleted projects
is dependent on estimating the total outcome of the contract,
as well as the work done to date. Based on the Group’s
recent experience and the nature of the construction activities
undertaken by the Group, the Group has made estimates of
the point at which it considered the work was sufficiently
advanced such that the outcome of the contract can be
reasonably measured. Until this point is reached the related
contract assets disclosed in note 14 do not include profit
which the Group might eventually realise from the work done
to date. In addition, actual outcomes in terms of total cost or
revenue may be higher or lower than estimated at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years as an adjustment to the
amounts recorded to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(b) Depreciation

(c)

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The
useful lives are based on the Group’s historical experience
with similar assets taking into account anticipated
technological changes. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

Provision of ECLs for trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECLs for the
trade receivables and contract assets. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade receivables and contract
assets with significant balances and credit impaired are
assessed for ECLs individually.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast general economic conditions.
The information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets are disclosed in note 21(a). If
the financial condition of the customers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, the actual loss
allowance would be higher than estimated.
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ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Deferred tax assets

Management considers the key source of estimation
uncertainty lies in the recognition of deferred tax assets from
unused tax losses. As explained in note 1(r), all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be utilised, are
recognised. It is possible that adverse changes to the
operating environment or the Group’s organisation structure
could cause a future write-down of the deferred tax assets
recognised.

Lease liabilities

As explained in policy note 1(j), the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease term at
the commencement date for leases that include renewal
options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset to
the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any increase
or decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in future
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are general building, civil
engineering and the provision of other services. Further
details regarding the Group’s principal activities are disclosed
in note 3(b).

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15 by major

3 WBRRISBEE

(a)

LE

AEENEIBXHEH/—MRETFT AT
RREHREMRYE BRASEEIER
THE — PR BRI 3(b) °

(i) WD

BRI MEENE15REER
BEIBRBEREONEFLEHND

service lines is as follows: =T
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
$’000 $000
Tr Tt

Disaggregated by major service lines 12 *F ERIBR &5

— General building - —REF 4,288,187 4,807,075
— Civil engineering — EARTHE 988,803 1,236,282
— Housing management services — FEERIRG 80,888 71,653
— Others — Hi 103,993 82,154
5,461,871 6,197,164

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA 197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 R 2% B =

= A

AN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3

198

(S HEBI - UET27)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a)

Revenue (Continued)

(ii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregated amount of
revenue expected to be recognised in the future related
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied or
partially unsatisfied at the reporting date is
$4,725,866,000 (2018: $6,773,673,000). The Group
applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of
HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with an original
expected duration of one year or less. In addition,
contracts that include a promise to perform an
undefined quantity of tasks at a fixed contractual rate
per unit, with no contractual minimums that would
make some or all of the consideration fixed, are not
included as the possible transaction prices and the
ultimate consideration for those contracts will depend
on the occurrence or non-occurrence of future
customer usage. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future when or as the work is completed,
which is expected to occur over the next 12 to 60
months (2018: next 12 to 72 months). This analysis is
solely for compliance with HKFRS 15 disclosure
requirement in respect of transaction price allocated to
the remaining performance obligations.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with the
way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group
has presented the following three reportable segments.

— General building : this segment provides engineering
services of substructure or
superstructure of building structures
and maintenance, repairs, alterations
services and additions to building
structures

— Civil engineering : this segment provides engineering
services of infrastructure facilities and
maintenance, repairs, alterations
services to infrastructure facilities

— Others . this segment mainly provides housing
management services, electrical and
mechanical engineering services and
consultancy services

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of deferred tax assets,
current tax recoverable and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors, accruals,
lease liabilities and other current and non-current
liabilities attributable to the business activities of the
individual segments.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

@

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment result includes revenue and expenses that are
allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments.

In addition, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue, share of results of a
joint venture, depreciation, additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their
operations and share of net liabilities in a joint venture.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external price for similar orders.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for each of
the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 is set out
below.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(Fr=HEAN

3 WBIRSWBEWE (&)

BT 25)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)
() Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) )y PEE BEREEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_F-—NF+_A=1+—HI
FEF
General Civil
building engineering Others Total
—fRET TAIR Hitr @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Reportable segment revenue BEERE e
(recognised over time) (BERFRR) 4,288,187 988,303 184,881 5,461,871
Reportable segment profit/loss)  AIREAFER,/(F1E) 62,632 (71) 5,666 68,227
Other revenue and other net income B Ut J E b F U A 309
Depreciation e (13,680)
Finance costs BB AN (19,409)
Unallocated head office and AOBBTRARRY
corporate expenses (68,446)
Consolidated loss before taxation ~ BFAi4 A E1E (32,999)
Share of results of a joint venture ~ DME—IA SR EEE (6,750) - - (6,750)
Depreciation for the year FERTE 15,308 2,545 2,536 20,389
Reportable segment assets AHRENBEE 1,402,714 524,133 52,815 1,979,662
Deferred tax assets EEHEEE 39,049
Current tax recoverable A A Hﬂﬁ B 2,685
Unallocated head office and AOERBERNRBE
corporate assets 360,220
Consolidated total assets GAREEHE 2,381,616
Additions to non-current FRARBERIHNEE
segment assets during the year 8,175 3,518 2,379 14,072
Reportable segment liabilities IRESBEE(BER
(including interest in a joint venture) & &b £ #1Ez) 1,014,307 347,129 19,439 1,380,875
Current tax payable ERREHE 8,025
Deferred tax liabllities EILHIERE 4,542
Unallocated head office and FORBBRAFARE
corporate liabilities 540,005
Consolidated total liabilities GRBEER 1,933,447
Share of net liabllties in a joint venture S {5 & & b ¥ & B 48 19,464 = = 19,464
—NFR | FTREEXEEER AT 201
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

@

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)
Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) i)y %G BEREEE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—_FE-NF+_A=1+—HI
FZ
General Civil
building engineering Others Total
—MREF TARTE Hit @t
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
(F3E) (Bi3) (Bsx) (KE)
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Reportable segment revenue ARED U
(recognised over time) (FERs T RER) 4,807,075 1,236,282 153,807 6,197,164
Reportable segment profit WHRED I 221,568 21,745 17,209 260,522
Other revenue and other net income b lizs R E b F WA 480
Depreciation e (734)
Finance costs R (12,234)
Unallocated head office and AOEBHRDAFZ
corporate expenses (91,128)
Consolidated profit before taxation &% AI4 4 & 7 156,906
Share of results of ajoint venture AR EMNEEE (15,803) - - (15,803)
Depreciation for the year FRAME 9,967 2,719 741 13,427
Reportable segment assets AREDBEE 1,179,211 619,458 61,633 1,860,202
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 34,750
Current tax recoverable A4 e BV AR IR 4,528
Unallocated head office and AEBHERAAEE
corporate assets 259,910
Consolidated total assets FRAERE 2,159,390
Additions to non-current ENREETINHEE
segment assets during the year 21,404 5,605 843 27,752
Reportable segment liabilities HRENHEE (BER
(including interest in a joint venture) & &k £ ) 870,493 301,970 13,212 1,185,675
Current tax payable JEfT BN EARE I8 10,942
Deferred tax liabilties FURIE% 4
Unallocated head office and AOERBTRARIERE
corporate liabilities 464,276
Consolidated total liabilities ABREEE 1,665,610
Share of net liabllties in a joint venture 25 & &b ¥ & )% 58 12,714 - - 12,714
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 MiE: AEEER-Z—HhF—A—RAER

202

3 WBIRISWBE/E (&)

using the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach,
the comparative information is not restated. See note 1(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Geographic information

No geographic information has been presented as most
of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in
Hong Kong.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group is as follows:

3 WBIRSWBEWE (&)
(b) ZEHE(E)

(i)

(iii)

h & & R

HRAREB RO LLEDEERE
FRE @ IR 25)0RER

FREREFNESN

BREEBEEHBI10%ERENT
FelEmT -

2019 2018

—®-nFE —TN\F

$°000 $°000

T FT

Customer A ZFEA 2,764,363 3,364,507

Customer B =FB N/AFE A 658,059

Customer C Z2FEC 610,370 N/A i A

Notes: P 5E

1) Revenue from customer A is generated from provision of 0] REFP AWK ZBRE—REFTR

general building, housing management services and consultancy

services.

) Revenue from customer B is generated from provision of civil
engineering.

3) Revenue from customer C is generated from provision of

general building.

(4) Revenue from customer B for the year ended 31 December
2019 did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group.

% FEEERBEERRBES -

@ REEF B EMEH” T ARTRER
BEE

€) REEF CHlat izt — AT IR
WEE -

(4) HE_ZT-NF+-A=+—BItF
VXQ%?BE’MZ@EEKI*?L B
EEBKEEE10% -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ara B R R M R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

4 OTHER REVENUE 4 HMHKS
2019 2018
—®-nE T N\F
$°000 $°000
SPoe T
Bank interest income RITF BUA 1,002 248
Others EAh 1,607 4,515
2,609 4,763
5 OTHER NET LOSS 5 HMBHER

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$°000 $000
T Tz
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) bE H Was, (E518) 558 306 (264)

Net realised and unrealised gains on FRim HA D &3R8 MR IR W 5 58
interest rate swap 299 -

Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEWE - BEMEEN

plant and equipment Wzs/(E518) 558 422 (498)
Others EAth (1,557) 300
(530) (462)
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6

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% %A 58351

6 FRRAI(BIR) #F

P £

BT 25)

BB (B HR), 8 M ik (READ A

TRIEBE
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
(Note)
)
$’000 $000
FT T
(@) Finance costs AE R AR
Interest on bank advances (note 16(c)) RITBFRAH B (FE16(c)) 17,664 12,234
Interest on lease liabilities (note 16(c)) HEaEFE (3E16(0) 1,745 -
19,409 12,234
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using the M3k : REEERZT—NE—A—BFEALES
modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the comparative HED ) féx)\ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ BRI BHREERIE 165 o
information is not restated. See note 1(d). BB L WBERTTEN - R
1(d) ©
(b) Staff costs BIAK
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITENEMET 682,906 722,193
Contributions to defined contribution FERFRRET I K
retirement plans 26,722 26,800
Less: Amount included in direct costs B AT ARBERANERE (669,654) (691,118)
39,974 57,875
(c) Otheritems Hibm B
Depreciation charge (note 11) WEBR(ME11)
— owned property, plant and equipment — BEEVE  WMENMEE 15,571 14,161
— right-of-use assets* — FREEE" 18,498 -
34,069 14,161
Less: Amount included in direct costs B T ABEERAN SR (20,119) (12,849)
13,950 1,312
Total minimum lease payments for leases ERIRIBEE AT ERE 175
previously classified as operating DERKE %E,E\Zﬁé )
leases under HKAS 17* =R E B~ - 39,098
Less: Amount included in direct costs B P ABEER ARG - (27,551)
- 11,547
Expenses relating to short-term leases B AHE R THER
and other leases with remaining lease R-ZE—NE+=H4
term ending on or before — T —HZRIERDY
31 December 2019 HEmBEERBENAS 25,548 -
Auditors’ remuneration Z BN BN & 3,300 3,403
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A

N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6

7

206

B 75 ¥R & M &

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 KWEGER) Bf e
* The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective . AEEEREETRPEERERT BV SHRELL
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise F16RWHAER T —NF—A—BNFYEH
right-of-use assets relating to leases which were previously classified as NEREAMRBEEE S ERE 17RO ARLER
operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use assets ExHERBNEREEE -R=Z—NF—HA—H
at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required to recognise the NP EREAEEER - ARE(EREEA) BERER
depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead of the previous policy of recognising FREEENE  MIFRBEANOBE  REEHR
rental expenses incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over FREGEERRLLEHEE TEEANHEEAY - B
the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative information is not BAE  LBREBTTED - RHE1) -
restated. See note 1(d).
INCOME TAX 7 FMER
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents: (@) HEKMmKRARNIER
2019 2018
—E—hEF —E-NF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax EJHi#i18 — FHBFEH
Provision for the year FREE 1,027 27,718
Over provision in respect of prior years W FERERE (150) (206)
877 27,512
Deferred tax ERERIE
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ERNEERED
differences (4,474) 73
(3,597) 27,585
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is —E-NFEENEREBRF NG
calculated at 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) of the estimated & &R B s ﬂ B16.5%( = ZF — N\ ¢ :
assessable profits for the year, except for one subsidiary of 16.5%) 55 - EAEEN —HNEL

the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two-
tiered Profits Tax rates regime.

For this subsidiary, the first $2 million of assessable profits
are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are
taxed at 16.5%. The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
this subsidiary was calculated at the same basis in 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense and accounting (b)

(c)

(loss)/profit at applicable tax rates:

e IS R AR MY T

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

7 F®RR@E

WERMERFENRE(ER) XA
it (BB, BN ERIT

2019 2018
—E-AF —\F
$’000 $°000
Fx Tt
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrEL AT (B1R), @ T (32,999) 156,906
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation, & #iAT (1), HH L E
calculated at the rates applicable to I8 (R AR R
profits/losses in the jurisdictions FAREH, EBEnREE
concerned (5,450) 25,738
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAMBIA BTG & (322) (1,140)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR A S 2 2,145 3,342
Tax effect of utilisation of previous years’  B)FR BT EE R ERBIE
unrecognised tax losses EENR B E (11) -
Tax effect of current year's tax losses RIERW AT E T IAEIBR
not recognised MR E 6 13
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEBEERE (150) (206)
Others Hh 185 (162)
Tax (credit)/expense A (E%), / Fx (3,597) 27,585
Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position: (c) ELREMBMHMRAERANNAERH
() Current taxation in the consolidated statement of () EHREMBERKARAHBIEATIIEE
financial position represents:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
$°000 $'000
F T
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FABRBNSTRE
for the year 1,027 27,718
Provisional Profits Tax paid BN EHFEH - (19,644)
1,027 8,074
Balance of Profits Tax payable/ EBEBAEFEEREMN,/(AdE)
(recoverable) relating to prior year, net  JES 1551 45 64 % 58 4,313 (1,660)
5,340 6,414
Representing: 15 -
Current tax recoverable AU Bl BN ER R TE (2,685) (4,528)
Current tax payable FE{ST RN ERF 1E 8,025 10,942
5,340 6,414
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHmERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

7 INCOME TAX (Continued) 7 FBR#RE
(¢) Income tax in the consolidated statement of financial position: () AMBIRERAER : (&)
(Continued)
(i) Deferred tax assets and liabilities: (i) EZEREEEREE:
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RERE MR R NFER E’JLL
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial mlﬁ BE)/BENERDSS &
position and the movements during the year are as FRMEENT -
follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess
of the related
Deferred tax arising from: depreciation Tax losses Others Total
BRI EN
REATEEWELERE - TERE BIEEE Hitr @t
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—-\F—H—H 3,353 (33,557) ] (30,106)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss KBz AIR / (5HA) 1,364 (367) (924) 73
At 31 December 2018 and RZB-\E+ZA=+—H
1 January 2019 kZE-NE—R—H 4,717 (33,924) (826) (30,033)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss ~ REHA (5T A),/Hk (273) (5,125) 924 (4,474)
At 31 December 2019 R-E-nE+-A=1+-8 4,444 (39,049) 98 (34,507)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
Net deferred tax assets recognised RER A BB R A
in the consolidated statement of REEER IS EFE
financial position (39,049) (34,750)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised  R4RE BRI RN
in the consolidated statement of REELET A B JF58
financial position 4,542 4,717
(34,507) (30,033)

(d) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r), (d)
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of $2,612,000 (2018: $2,641,000) as
it is not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses arising from Hong Kong
operations do not expire under current tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation

are as follows:

8

—
4R A R

/| 7

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

EEFH

15 R R M R

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

RIBEB(RBNRDI) E383(1) & R AR (HEE
EEFEEMRPIFE2BREMBEZESH

Ban T :

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-Z-Rt-A=t-HLEFE

Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
Exge
BR
EEHe BNFE MERA  RAGHEIM @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
Executive directors YTEE
Mr. Chan Ki Chun BEE e - 1,585 - 73 1,658
Mr. Chan Chor Tung BREEL - 1,582 230 73 1,885
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, William BRERE - 1,245 50 58 1,353
Mr. Yung Kim Man AEILE - 1,585 530 72 2,187
Independent non-executive ~ FUFHTEES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon PR G 120 - - - 120
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick 25t 54 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun WREBLE 120 - - - 120
Total et 360 5,997 810 276 7,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% ZA48BA5) » LAETT251)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 E=HHM=)

Year ended 31 December 2018
HEZZ-A\TZA=T-HLEE

Basic
salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
EX%e
R
EZHS ENfla BETAL  RIKGTEER a5t
$000 $000 $000 $:000 $ 000
T T T Fr Fr
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chan Ki Chun BRE=LE - 1,585 - 73 1,658
Mr. Chan Chor Tung BRRLE - 1,523 260 71 1,854
Mr. Yeung Cho Yin, Wiliam BEELEL - 1,200 60 56 1,316
Mr. Yung Kim Man Relks - 1,493 530 68 2,091
Independent non-executive BV EHITES
directors
Mr. Chan Kim Hung, Simon BR&IE R4 120 - - - 120
Mr. Jim Fun Kwong, Frederick ~ ZZt 54 120 - - - 120
Mr. Lam Leung Tsun MRERE 120 - - - 120
Total st 360 5,801 850 268 7,279
Notes: [
0] No director received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to join 0] FR - BEEFEEASEEEREEMSERRSI A
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the year AEEHMAREERHNEEKEARBHEE (=S
(2018: $Nil). No director waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the G M) FERN - BEE ENELRENEEM
year (2018: $Nil). e (ZT—N\F: &) -
(ii) The Company did not grant any share options for the purchase of ordinary (i) FR - ARRRIWER LA AR ERAR S ERE
shares in the Company during the year (2018: $Nil). R (T \F o E) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, three directors

,_\_|
l\‘/T\

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

ERE R e

At
(FRBEIEHS - LUBTTE)

mE#FmAL

BeHALH F=2RER(-ZE-N\

(2018: three) whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The F:Z8) BENTFMEAMTFEE -3
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2018: INRE (ZE—N\F - MB) AT HHEREN
two) individuals are as follows: D
2019 2018
—E-NF — N\
$°000 $'000
T T
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind EZAN# & - 285 R FWHIE 3,109 2,993
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 610 649
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE SR 91 89
3,810 3,731
The emoluments of the two (2018: two) individuals with the highest BB (ZE—NF : MB) &R AT
emoluments are within the following bands: BAFE LA T 8 A
2019 2018
=E-NF —N\F
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
AE” AE
Nil to $1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T = -
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001 & T2 1,500,000 %8 7T = -
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 87T 1 1
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,001 77T & 2,500,000 7% 7T 1 1

Note: No individual received any emoluments from the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2018: $Nil).

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $28,827,000 (2018: profit of $129,689,000) and
400,000,000 shares (2018: 400,000,000 shares) in issue
during the year.

(b)

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

—NE®R | HREE

i

(a)

(b)

FR - BERERME R A T WIS B TR - (R
MARMAREE R EBRIERBEBRBEZE
—\F ) e

10 SK(5E) 27

BREX (BE) BA

GREAX(EE) BFTBEARAF
MR Y 3 FE 15 518 28,827,000 ,%71(
T — J\4F : 3% F)129,689,00078 7T ) MA K
F A B 17 A% 15 400,000,000 & ( = =
—J\4E : 400,000,000 f%) 5t & -

SR#EE (BE) B

REE-F-NER-F—\E1-A
=+ —-BLEE - TREERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 %X BEREME
(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) FREIEMEIR

Properties Machinery

leased for and Motor Furniture
own use equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
e
BRNNE  BERRE RE BRREE @t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T Fr
Cost: B
At 31 December 2018 N_E-N\F
+-A=1+—H - 31,869 88,185 5,916 125,970
Impact on initial application BREREAMERE
of HKFRS 16 (note) ERZ 16T E () 74,219 - - - 74,219
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE—A—H 74,219 31,869 88,185 5,916 200,189
Additions NE 7,920 5,601 3,808 8,598 25,927
Acquired through acquisition BRNE-RHELF
of a subsidiary ke - 170 676 = 846
Disposals e - (15,058) (4,202) (3,103) (22,363)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=1+—-H 82,139 22,582 88,467 11,411 204,599
Accumulated depreciation: REE .
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE—F—A - 26,267 51,122 5,043 82,432
Charge for the year FRZE 17,450 3,324 11,401 1,894 34,069
Written back on disposals HEREM - (15,058) (4,037) (3,103) (22,198)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+-A=1+—-H 17,450 14,533 58,486 3,834 94,303
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2019 RZE-N%&
+-ZA=1+—H 64,689 8,049 29,981 7,517 110,296
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 Y% - BER®EW (2

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (Continued) (a) EREIEMEER(Z)
Properties
leased for Machinery Motor Furniture
ownuse and equipment vehicles and fixtures Total
il
BRNME  AERR B BRARRE @it
$:000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i i i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—F—H - 29,569 76,005 5,222 110,796
Additions NE - 2,636 25,266 718 28,620
Disposals & - (336) (13,086) (24) (13,446)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1+—H - 31,869 88,185 5,916 125,970

Accumulated depreciation: 2HE

At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$-A—H - 24,687 51,194 4,601 80,482
Charge for the year N - 1,916 11,779 466 14,161
Written back on disposals HERERD - (336) (11,851) (24) (12,211)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+-ZA=1+—H - 26,267 51,122 5,043 82,432
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\#
+-A=+—H - 5,602 37,083 873 43,538
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified Mzt AEBEFEREETEREZEREREBHNG
retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January BRELAE16KRL AR -_E—NF—A—
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were HRFEES  AEREABEE B G 2ER
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(d). FNTRAEAKERE 2 HEMRBNFEAE
BiE - RMEE1(0) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 11 9% - BERE&R (&)

(b) Right-of-use assets (b) ERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets, BITERAVIR ZAERAEES HHFER
carried at depreciated cost, by class of underlying asset is as BEERMFENSTOT
follows:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-hF —E-NEF
+=—A=+-—H —A—H
Note $°000 $°000
B 5E T Tt
Properties leased for own use HIEE AW 0] 64,689 74,219
Machinery and equipment 28 Rk (i) 1,511 -
66,200 74,219
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised RIEZRRZHEERBENRAIIEE M
in profit or loss is as follows: W
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
(Note)
(PF5E)
$’°000 $°000
T T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use BEHEBEEEDENFERAE
assets by class of underlying asset: BEMNITEER -
Properties leased for own use MIEBE AnYE 17,450 -
Machinery and equipment A3 N R 1,048 -
18,498 -
Interest on lease liabilities (note 6(a)) HEBEFE (FE6(@) 1,745 -
Expense relating to short-term leases Eﬁiﬂ Hﬂ a‘“ﬁ,%\ Mep T HEH
and other leases with remaining lease RZE—NhF+=ZA=1+—H
term ending on or before S AIEREMIEE
31 December 2019 EHAMRAY 25,548 -
Total minimum lease payments for leases 5t AR IE &S @54 17 58
previously classified as operating leases ~ DIEARKLHEZ HEW
under HKAS 17 REEENTRERE = 39,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise right-of-use assets relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. After initial
recognition of right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a
lessee is required to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets,
instead of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Under this approach, the comparative information is not restated. See
note 1(d).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, additions to right-
of-use assets were $10,479,000. This amount related to the
capitalised lease payments payable under new tenancy
agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(d) and 19,
respectively.

@

(i)

Properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its head office and site offices through
tenancy agreements. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 to 3 years.

Some leases include an option to renew the lease for
an additional period after the end of the contract term.
Where practicable, the Group seeks to include such
extension options exercisable by the Group to provide
operational flexibility. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. If the Group is not
reasonably certain to exercise the extension options,
the future lease payments during the extension periods
are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities.

Other leases

The Group leases machinery and equipment under
leases expiring from 1 to 2 years. Some leases include
an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated.

W% BERRmE)

EREEE (&)

st . AREEBEEFTENEITREMREEME
HEEAE16RTABR _F—NF—HA—
HE)FAEE  UHEREAMBREEEGE
AIFE7TSEDBAKEEE 2 HERENER
BEE -W_Z—NE—-A—BOLERRE
REEER  ARB(EREEAN) BERRE
REAERE  MIFRBEAMNEE  RE
EHAEREREERRECEREETESL
MHESFAX - BREWTTE  LREHMTTE
gl o BEE(d)

BT E-NFE+-_A=+—HILFE
AL ELIN10,479,0008 JT ° i X
HRFHENIBETEEE RN ERHE
EXRIBEEE -

ﬁf’ﬁf SRR %E&fﬂﬁﬁﬁ!ij
B DT 2 7B T B E A M R 16(d)
K19 e

() MAEERHWE

AEBZEBHERHZESHMME
KR R E B A E R T HF
NE—RERT  ZEHREVR
HARR A1 =34 o

%?ﬁf&%EAﬂ%@#%&%

RT'$¢I%*&%$%ITH
EHEEER NIRMELE)
1% AEBREERK A BN ERE
BEEETESITRATEEE -
AEBE TR BT/ TRARRE
% W#E%WM$Xﬁ SR

i)y HaBEE

AEEHERP A1 E2FMKES
LEfE - Ao ERS—BERR
BEERETNHEMEEREE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% S A48 + LB TLE5)

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12

The following list contains the particulars of subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019, all of which are private companies and the class
of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

REAFBHKRSE

TREIR-_F-NAF+t_A=t—HHER
BZFE  BRAERERPIN THREMBAR
B RIE R B BRI R A B

Percentage of ownership interest

216

FERERA AL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s
establishment and paid-up capital/ effective Held by Held by
Name of company business registered capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
EREL/ BRTRAR -1
DEER RIREELH Ba/RMERFE ERER ARRAKE WELRRE IEXR
Bestwise Envirotech Limited Hong Kong 200,578,047 shares 100% - 100%  Electrical and mechanical
engineering
BEEREEERAR 6 200,578,047 i 100% - 100% HKEIE
Bestwise — SFK Joint Venture® Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
AR HEEEE Bk TEA 100% - 100% TAIR
BML Engineering Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
BXLTIRERAF B0 100/ 100% - 100% HEREE
BML Engineering (Macao) Limited" Macau 1 share of MOP25,000 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
XETR(EF) -ABRRA" &P 11k E{E25,000 100% - 100% HERKE
RFB R
Build.it Limited Hong Kong 100 shares 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
BEEANBRABRAR 0 100/& 80% - 80% AR
Chit Cheung Construction Hong Kong 1,450,000 shares 100% - 100%  Construction and
Company Limited civil engineering
BEREERAR 6 1,450,000 100% - 100% BERTATE
Consent Consultants Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Project consultancy services
FEERERAT & 1% 100% - 100% JEEERRHE
ELM Keen Limited British Virgin Islands 100 shares of 100% - 100%  Supply and installation
US$1 each
WEERRA EEERRES 100 R 100% - 100% HEREE
HE1ETNRG
Everfirst Profits Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Everfirst Profits Limited EBERRES 1REE 1 ETHRG 100% - 100% REER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

SRAE M BRERNE

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

12 REEATMRE (@)

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERZAE DL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s
establishment and paid-up capital/ effective Held by Held by
Name of company business registered capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
EmAEL/ ERTRAR F&EE
NEER RIRER LA BA/EMERFES BERER ARRARE KWELRARE TEXY
Fujitac Construction & Engineering Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Construction-related
Consultants Limited consultancy services
ETERERIRBERERAR ) 1 100% - 100% BEEBOERRE
Grand Win Design Consultants Limited Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Construction design and
consultancy services
BB ERARA o 1R 100% - 100%  RERE RERRS
High Horse Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
HEERERAA ERERRES 10,000 B 5% 100% - 100% "ARR
HE1ETHRG
High Regard Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
BRERERA RBURRES 1REE 1 ET ARG 100% - 100% REZRK
Intercede International Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Intercede International Limited REEARHES 1REE 1 Z MRS 100% - 100%  BEER
Linktech Engineering & Landscape Hong Kong 1 share 100% - 100%  Consultancy services
Consultants Limited
EETRIENERERAR B 15 100% - 100%  ERRS
Media Engineering Company Limited Hong Kong 8,500,000 shares 100% - 100%  Road construction works
FERBIRERAT & 8,500,000 100% - 100% BREHEIR
Sun Fook Kong — Bestwise Joint Venture”  Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
Sun Fook Kong - Bestwise Joint Venture®* &/ TEA 100% - 100% AT
Sun Fook Kong — Chit Cheung Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Construction and civil
Joint Venture? engineering
Sun Fook Kong - Chit Cheung B TEh 100% - 100% BERTIATE
Joint Venture*

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

12 REATNKRE ()

Percentage of ownership interest

FERESZAE DL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s
establishment and paid-up capital/ effective Held by Held by
Name of company business registered capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
EmAEL/ BRTRAR K&EE
NEER RIRER LA BE/2MERFE ERERE ARARE KWELRARE TEXY
Sun Fook Kong (Civil) Limited Hong Kong 12,300,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering and
maintenance
MEA (LR ERAR BA 12,300,000 100% - 100% TAIERRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Limited Hong Kong 4,440,000 shares 100% - 100%  Building construction and
maintenance
HRELEEARAR & 4,440,000 100% - 100% BTRERRE
Sun Fook Kong Construction Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Project management services
Management Limited
HEEIRRAERERAF & 10,000 100% - 100% JHEERRH
Sun Fook Kong E & M Hong Kong 4,700,000 shares 100% - 100%  Hiring out of plant and
Management Limited machinery and undertaking
electrical installation work
HEEKETIRARAHA Bk 4,700,000 % 100% - 100%  fESERERESLER
FEERREIR
Sun Fook Kong Engineering Limited Hong Kong 2,000,000 shares 100% - 100%  Civil engineering
FRAEIRBRAAE Bk 2,000,000 f& 100% - 100% LtAIE
Sun Fook Kong Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands 10,400 shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding and
US$1 each building construction
HRABERERL EBARRNS 10,400 R &R 100% 100% - REBRREBTRE
HE1ETHRG
Sun Fook Kong Housing Services Limited Hong Kong 49,590,000 shares 100% - 100%  Housing management services
HREETREERAA 6 49,590,000 f 100% - 100% REEERH
SFK Housing Services (China) Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
FREEFRE (FE)ERAR & 10,000 100% - 100%  REER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(BmHEAN - UETZ)

12 REEATMRE (@)

Percentage of ownership interest

FERERADL
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and Group’s
establishment and paid-up capital/ effective Held by Held by
Name of company business registered capital interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
EmAEL/ ERTRAR F&EE
NEER RIREE Y BA/EMERFES BERER ARRARE KWELRARE TEXY
Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture* Hong Kong N/A 100% - 100%  Construction and civi
engineering
HEERENA" B TER 100% - 100% RERTATRE
Sun Fook Kong Themeworks Hong Kong 100 shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
MRESINE(BE)BRAR BB 100 100% - 100% REZR
BUFEENEERARAF The PRC US$800,000 100% - 100%  Buiding management,
property consultancy and
consultancy services
BILHEENEFERERRAY i 800,000% 7T 100% - 100% BEEE WEERR
BRER%
BMNZmaREn S AR AR The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB”) 80% - 80%  Consultancy services
200,000,000
EME RS RE RS ARAR " HE ARE(TARE]) 80% - 80%  HARH
200,000,000 7T
# These entities are unincorporated bodies. # “ﬁﬁ%/\iﬂjﬁ ROMERE o
* These entities are wholly foreign-owned enterprises. RINEBERE -
" These entities are not audited by KPMG. BARCESHEGAMEHAERZ -

The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG
reflect total net assets and total revenue constituting approximately

2.2% and 0.3% respectively of the related consolidated totals.

REREEFHE

BRz&EE

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA
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13 INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERIIMESRBKSELEXR
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE -]
(@) Interestin a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENERREKREGELE
joint venture FIE
2019 2018
—ZE—-hF —FE-N\EF
$°000 $000
5 Fr
Share of net liabilities (note (i) AMEFEE ) (19,464) (12,714)
Amount due from a joint venture (note (i)  FEULA &1 3 ZIE (B EE (i) 3,010 2,323
Notes: B &E -
[0} As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has recognised its 0} REB-NFR-ZF-N\F+-A=+—H"
share of net liabilities in a joint venture as the Group has provided FEBERRERALELEREFEE R
guarantees in respect of bank loans of the joint venture. REAKEBEHREECENRITERIRHEE
R
(ii) The amount due from a joint venture is interest-free, unsecured and (i A ECERIETTE  BKW - ARE
recoverable on demand. kgl -
Details of the Group’s interest in the joint venture, which is AEEREEEENERRAERZEREY
accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated WKV - SFEWT -

financial statements, are as follows:

Percentage of ownership interest

FEREGREAL
Place of Group’s
Form of business incorporation and effective Held by Held by
Name of joint venture structure business interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities
LR S 3]
RELEER EBRBRA BRI BEREE ARARE KWELRRE TEER
Sun Fook Kong — Kun Fai Incorporated Macau 50% - 50%  Building construction and
Engineering and Construction Co., Ltd. public works
(“Sun Fook Fong — Kun Fai”)
MiEE-EBRETRERAR Ealila 2P 50% - 50% BFRERAHTR
(g — 12 ])
Sun Fook Fong — Kun Fai, the only joint venture in which the REFRERHE —S LD ETFIEE —#
Group participates, is an unlisted corporate entity whose B EmERENIELTOEERE-

quoted market price is not available.
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(BmHEAN - UETZ)

13 INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND 13 REERINEESRERSELER
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) |(E)
(@) Interestin a joint venture and amount due from a (@) REELENERRERESELE
joint venture (Continued) I (&)

Summarised financial information of Sun Fook Kong — Kun

e —RENMFERSE (BEHRBE

Fai, adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and a fAl@stmR s =52) M B IR R AR
reconciliation to the carrying amount in the consolidated BERHRFEENT
financial statements, are disclosed below:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
$’000 $000
Ft T+

Gross amounts of the joint venture’s &8 4%
Current assets TEEE 312,770 176,863
Non-current assets FEREEE 201 319
Current liabilities REEE (351,898) (202,609)
Deficit [E5 At (38,927) (25,427)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: 5 A Lt EE N EE -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFSEEY 13,062 7,440
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade & & FtBE (TREENE S

and other payables and provisions) AR SR B EL A JE A5 SR TE R ) (55,547) (41,718)
Revenue Wzs 637,354 516,088
Loss and total comprehensive income FREE ;2N RAAEE

for the year (13,500) (31,605)
Reconciled to the Group’s interestin EBEREFENSE DEERYHER

the joint venture
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s AETEFEERT

net liabilities (38,927) (25,427)
Group's effective interest REEERER 50% 50%
Group's share of the joint venture’s net K& BEDEAERIREZ

liabilities arising from guarantees provided ERMELESESRE ZFAE

to the joint venture’s obligation (19,464) (12,714)
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest N & B RIBEH(E (19,464) (12,714)
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13

222

INTEREST IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)

(b)

Interest in joint operations (b)

In addition to the joint venture as listed in note 13(a), the
Group has also established joint arrangements with outside
contractors to undertake civil engineering in the form of joint
operations. In accordance with the agreements, the decisions
about relevant activities in these entities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control and, therefore
management has accounted for the investments as joint
operations.

Details of the Group’s interest in the material joint operations,
all of which are accounted for using the line-by-line basis to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the joint operations, are
as follows:

13 REERINESRBERSELRR
(%)

REEEBHER

BRBIFE13(@) FrFI B B EIN - REBIT
B ESNUABEAKKRRZH - UKRF
e AR I ARTIE - REWE
HZEEERBETDBEMNRRALEE
BERHENST —BRRBRTAHEER
RimEREHEERERAEEBALR -

AEERBERNEEEBRBEALER
AEERBERTNERIE  EXA
EERBHORDFROT

Percentage of ownership interest

FEERERE AL
Place of Group’s
Form of business incorporation effective Held by Held by

Name of joint operation structure and business interest the Company  asubsidiary  Principal activities

HRALK r&E
REERER EBRER EXBE EREE ADAKE WELRRE IEXH
CEC — CCC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 40% - 40%  Civil engineering
AETE - Rz WEABAL i 40% - 40% TARIE
Fujita — Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 50% - 50%  Civil engineering
Fujita - Sun Fook Kong Joint Venture EEAMAL 5 50% - 50%  TARIRE
SFK — CEC Joint Venture Unincorporated Hong Kong 51% - 51%  Civil engineering
SFK — CEC Joint Venture BEAAL BB 51% - 51% 1AIR
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SRAE M BRERNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

14 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT

14 aHRERSWAR

LIABILITIES
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$’°000 $'000
Tt Tt
Contract assets EHEE
Arising from performance under HEITRESH
construction contracts TRREL 1,422,493 1,262,372
Contract liabilities EHNEE
Construction contracts BEAN
— Billings in advance of performance — BITRIW IR 118,191 119,888

The Group’s construction contracts normally include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the construction
period once milestones are reached. These payment schedules
prevent the build-up of significant contract assets. The Group also
typically agrees to a one to two years retention period for 1% to
10% of the contract value. This amount is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the Group’s
entitlement to this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the rights
are conditioned on the Group’s future performance. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The increase in contract assets in 2019 was the
result of the increase in the provision of construction services at the
end of the year. The amount of contract assets that is expected to
be recovered after more than one year is $58,830,000 (2018:
$136,681,000), all of which relates to retentions.

—NE®R | HREE

AEERESNBEEREERRERDER
RO RAR(—BERER) o WERNFHA
R LBERERGNEE - AEETELALR
BEHM1%E10%MENEERE —EMFRE
Hi o ZISEIZE’E%%%%%KIEE’U%?FUEMS%
TigseimdiBin) ﬁﬂféﬁ—ﬂ’ﬁf*i Bt R A
BREE- E REMERBILE -

ANEBEFZHEALERSE K IEEARE
HEZENRENENERE - BEAENBURAR
REERRRKE - GHEERENK B ERK
HREERKEZERER - GNEER=-Z—N
FINNZ BN FARPTIRPIEZERBIL INFTEL
ST RB —FRBEMNENEESEAR
58,830,000/8 7t (=& —/\ 4 : 136,681,000 /%
L) TAEZSSHERESEM -
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(BSHEEAN - ABT2)

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 14 SVWEERSHARE)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
The contract liabilities primarily relate to the Group’s obligation to EHBETEAAEERNETFEBRRBENER
transfer services to customers for which the Group has received Bl AEEDRRFPWERTEN K EZN —F
advanced payments from the customers and will be recognised as NERRBWA - FABERNRENTAGHNEE
income within one year. The amount of revenue recognised during R U %54 %85 125,584,000/8 7T ( — T — )\ 4 :
the year that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning 186,396,000 70) - AR P HEIIME—54
of the year is $125,584,000 (2018: $186,396,000). The amount of ZFE E’Eﬁ)\/ﬁ\nmﬁ%ﬁaﬂ‘ﬁﬂﬁh?@_iféqy
retentions receivable included in contract liabilities on a net basis 5] /) FE UL (R 78 & © 58 /43 33,652,000 B T (=&
for a single contract with the customer that is expected to be —/\% : 5,696,000 % 7T) °
recovered after more than one year is $33,652,000 (2018:
$5,696,000).
The amount of revenue recognised during the year from TR ?dﬁﬁ’\iﬁﬁﬁﬁf'ﬁaiﬁi(‘iaﬁﬁ"‘iﬁi)
performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous HEEERN W F72,270,0008 T ( — &
periods is $72,270,000 (2018: $121,765,000), mainly due to the —/\FF :121,765,000/870) * TBRZHNET
changes in estimate of the transaction price of certain construction BEAVNR HERMGFTEB T -
contracts.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 BlRESHERRAMEKRRE
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
$°000 $'000
T T
Trade debtors JEWE 5 Bk K 457,079 508,055
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 - ?ﬁﬁmlﬁ)&ﬁﬁﬂfg WRIE 35,062 24,922
Amounts due from a joint operation partner  FEI & & SRS A RE (ML ()
(note (i) 21,820 40,757
Derivative financial instrument (note 21(e)) PTES BRI A (MizE21() 283 -
514,244 568,734
Notes: PREE

(i) The amounts due from a joint operation partner are interest-free, unsecured
and recoverable on demand.

(i) Except for the amounts of $9,321,000 (2018: $11,539,000) which are

expected to be recovered after one year, all of the remaining balances of trade
and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

0} FEW A EEBBHFBETE - SIERRATRERIK
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(ii) % 9,321,000 7t (=2 — /\4F : 11,539,000 % 7T ) &)
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WGRIAFTA 82 T AERRTE B R — Rl E) -



15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 15
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (k& SA+58A51 - LAE T 251)

Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based
on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) is as

FE U 3R 5 MR 3k B R fth PR M ok 0 (42)

BRER DA

RIERR - ENEE A He iR A H A
REERE)NERE SRR GTARKE S
AL EUGIR) BRI DA AT

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NEF
$°000 $'000
Fx T
Within 1 month 1{EAN 388,289 475,789
Over 1 to 2 months 1Z221EA 61,662 15,440
Over 2 to 3 months 223188 295 4,807
Over 3 months but within 6 months HBiE3EAER6EAR 6,833 7,019
457,079 503,055

Trade debtors are due within 14-45 days from the date of billing.
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising
from trade debtors are set out in note 21(a).

JEWE B EREAHL14E458REIE -
EAAEEEERRERARKRESHEFNE

ERE R E M BEHNHE21() ©

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 16 BERFeERPREMASTES
CASH FLOW INFORMATION #
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BEeRREEEYWERE:
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT-N\F
$’000 $000
Fx T
Deposits with banks within three months 7B A7 = & A ;N 2 EA#Y
of maturity at acquisition RITIEBIERK 101,418 -
Cash at bank and in hand BT RFERS 162,087 216,897
263,505 216,897
(b) Major non-cash transactions b) ETEFREXRH

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
proceeds from bank loans of $65,604,000 (2018:
$64,811,000) directly transferred to trade creditors to settle
the trade balances. These proceeds from bank loans had no

cash flow impact to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
proceeds from bank loans of $2,790,000 (2018:
$14,475,000) directly transferred to a joint operation partner
to settle the trade balances of the joint operation. These
proceeds from bank loans had no cash flow impact to the

Group.

HE—Z-NE+-_A=+—HILEE "
B ERIRITE SRS 3UH 65,604,000
BT (=ZZF—)\F :64,811,00087T) &
BREZEF UWEEBHEH -%E
RITERMSRIBEAEET BB SR

=N

ETE -

HE-_Z-NE+_A=+—HIFE
BEERIRITE TS 5E 2,790,000 7
(=T — )\ : 14,475,000/ 7C) & —
MALEBBY  UEEAKEKNE
St ZERITERABRBHAE
EVERSRETE -
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

226

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement
as cash flows from financing activities.

16

HeRBeERMRAMARTER
HE)

(c) MEEBFELEENEEK

T%ﬁﬁ”%ﬂ?ié%ﬂﬁﬁ§$$ﬁﬁﬁﬂ’\]

(BRERS MRS EH) 15 - #l
éf/ﬁiﬂﬁﬁéﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ/ﬁiaﬁi
KRB REBNAEBNGABEER
ERRNDEERETHMELRESRE
HEfE -

Bank loans Lease liabilities Total
RITEXR HEAE @st
$ 000 $ 000 $'000
T T T
(Note 18) (Note 19)
(Fff3E18) (F3E19)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NFE+=-A=+—-H 371,732 - 371,732
Impact on initial application of BRERBBH GRS £
HKFRS 16 (note) F16FEMT 2 (M) - 74,219 74,219
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-N&-A—H 371,732 74,219 445,951
Changes from financing cash flows: BERERELE :
Proceeds from bank loans RITERMBERA 912,000 - 912,000
Repayment of bank loans BEBTER (943,662) = (943,662)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ERHEENERER - (17,079) (17,079)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BERNEENFEEXR - (1,745) (1,745)
Interest paid BFE (17,664) - (17,664)
Total changes from financing cash flows R & EER©REEH A% (49,326) (18,824) (68,150)
Other changes Hitt# g
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ~ F RV A EEHHE
into new leases during the year =R - 10,479 10,479
Bank loans directly transferred to trade E?ﬁ%%ﬁifg BETEF i
creditors (note 16(b)) RITER (FIE16(0) 65,604 - 65,604
Bank loans directly transferred to ajoint ~ BHEERE S L EBHHN
operation partner (note 16(b)) RITER (M 16(0) 2,790 - 2,790
Finance costs (note 6(a)) BERKA (H3E6() 17,664 1,745 19,409
Total other changes Hip @ Emes 86,058 12,224 98,282
At 31 December 2019 R-E-hE+=-B=1+—H 408,464 67,619 476,083
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified FeE $%@ﬁﬁi‘ﬂ@ﬂk?ﬁﬂiﬁé?’ﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘%

retrospective method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. See note 1(d)
and note to the consolidated cash flow statement.
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

R B R R M A

(Fr=HEAN

nt

BT 25)

16 BeRASERVRAMBELTER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) #qE)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) METBFRELEEENYHIERE)
activities (Continued)
Bank loans
RITER
$ 000
T
(Note 18)
(HMtzE18)
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F—H—H 301,758
Changes from financing cash flows: RMERESRENEE :
Proceeds from bank loans IRITERATISKIA 602,500
Repayment of bank loans EEBIRITENK (611,812)
Interest paid BEARFE (12,234)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERERENE SRR (21,546)
Other changes H 53 B
Bank loans directly transferred to trade creditors BEEREREEEMESBREINETER
(note 16(b)) (K5 16(0)) 64,811
Bank loans directly transferred to a joint operation EREEEALSERBHNEBEITER
partner (note 16(b)) (Ff¥3E16(0) 14,475
Finance costs (note 6(a)) BEK A (M5 6() 12,234
Total other changes Hmeghazs 91,620
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NF+=HA=+—H 371,732
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d HERSRLAZRE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement REEEHReMNERINENEAHRENR
for leases comprise the following: BEFEATEIE
2019 2018
—E-hnF — N\
(Note)
(BF5E)
$’°000 $'000
Tr Tt
Within operating cash flows 4R UK S 32 = TE 25,548 39,098
Within financing cash flows BERSMENKIEA 18,824
44,372 39,098
Note: As explained in the note to the consolidated cash flow statement, the Mz : WMERABRESREBRM L - WABE BB

adoption of HKFRS 16 introduces a change in classification of cash
flows of rentals paid on leases. The comparative amounts have not
been restated.

—NE®R | HREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= & BT 3 % B
;ZR/ 3 Eﬁ % 7 H & |z J At
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (4 2A RSN » LABT271)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

228

17 BT RS RHR R H M E A RE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
$°000 $'000
F5 F7
Trade creditors B E SRR 354,720 466,011
Accruals and other payables JEtE B K EAth B~ F0E 565,393 362,868
Amounts due to joint operation partners R A & ESB R RIE
(note (i) (BFEE () 1,062 6,562
Provision for construction works (note (ii)) SRR T A2 BB (B (i) 24,288 -
Retentions payable EfRRE S 361,679 310,176
1,307,142 1,145,617
Notes: B 3E
[0} The amounts due to joint operation partners are interest-free, unsecured and [0] ENEEEBRHNFIETE  BERRERER

(i)

repayable on demand.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recognises provision for
construction works when the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance
obligations under the construction contracts exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contracts. The amount of the provision is
measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of continuing with the contract. The amount of
provision is reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Except for the amounts of $116,846,000 (2018: $144,228,000), all of the
remaining balances of trade and other payables are expected to be settled
within one year.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
creditors, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

(i

m‘ﬂn‘}ﬁ

iﬂ\é

BE-_Z-NAF+-A=+—HLLFE  ERTRE
BHEHEENTAERKAEEE A ORABIEG
BN EE - ARESEREETIZZBE - BB
SRR LA R TE R AR BB TT A KA F AL
AMETNREZENOREE - AEBEGRERE
BEE -

% 116,846,000 7T.( =T —\4F : 144,228,000 8 7T)
FIESN - BN E SRR R EMENRIBRE R T4
BIBEHE N —FNEHE -

RBEHR  ENBZAHRNENESERN
BRER DTN T

2019 2018

—ZE—-hEF —FE-N\EFE

$°000 $°000

T Tt

Within 1 month 1{EAN 262,868 291,755
Over 1 to 2 months 1Z22M@A 55,886 133,932
Over 2 to 3 months 22 31@A 16,462 31,624
Over 3 months HB:E31E A 19,504 8,700
354,720 466,011
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SRAE M BRERNE

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

BANK LOANS 18 HRITE®M
2019 2018
—E-nE  —T)\F
$’°000 $'000
Fr Tt

Bank loans, repayable within 1 year RITEN - —FAEE

— Secured — B - 98,000
— Unsecured i 408,464 273,732
408,464 371,732

As at 31 December 2019, the bank loans bear interest
ranging from 3.75% to 5.45% (2018: 3.42% to 4.44%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the banking facilities
(including bank loans and performance bonds) granted to the
Group, the Group’s joint operations and the Group’s joint
venture jointly were secured by:

(i) Assignment of project proceeds from certain
construction contracts of the Group, the Group’s joint
operations and the Group’s joint venture;

(i)  Pledged deposits of the Group of $25,125,000 (2018:
$25,039,000);

(i)  Corporate guarantees provided by a subsidiary and the
joint venture partner, personal properties and pledged
deposits owned by the joint venture partner; and

(iv)  Corporate guarantees provided by the Company and
cross corporate guarantees provided by the Company
and certain subsidiaries.

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfiment
of certain covenants as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 21(b).
During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the
covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had been
breached (2018: $Nil).

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA

R-ZE—-hE+-A=+—8 EI7&
FIRFHEI75%25.45%( —F— )\F :
3.42% ZE 4.44%) 518 o

RZBE-NAFEFRZZB-NF+HA
=t—B BTHAEHE - FAEEAEE
BRAREEZEEMNRITRE (BFER
TERMBEORE) —FRA T EBEER
"

() HWEARELTRELD AKHE
BEEBRAEESEDENTER
FRSH0A

iy AEEDEEF 25,125,000
T = Z — J\ £ : 25,039,000

JT)
(i) —HKMBRRRAEBEEEBHIEH
MERER AECXBHMESR

MMAMEREERER &

v  AREREHHDEERARKAF]
FETHBRRIRMANRZI N EERE
& o

AEEFMAERITREHARE TR
REFAEE  WRABRFRRESH
BEERNEELHE - MASEERE
HTIRBMBESREREE A%
ETrTHEREERETRERFE - B4
AEBEERBDECRBRNE —THE
BRE210) BE_ZT—NF+=A
—t—HLFE AEEHfEERER
REMBRESENZH(ZT—N\F:
) o
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19

230

LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the current reporting

19 HE&AR

TRIRAKEHERBERARE PR IEE
EEBYBRELNFE16HFEHNRTEHE

period and at the date of transition to HKFRS 16: BB
31 December 2019 1 January 2019 (Note)
—E-hF+=-A=+—8 ZZ—hF—A—H (=)
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHAE REHAE ®EHEE ®EHEE
MR E RETE L NEERE R 4EEE
$°000 $°000 $'000 $000
T Tt T T
Within 1 year —FR 17,908 19,361 15,335 17,327
After 1 year but within 2 years BE1FER2FA 14,730 15,794 13,084 14,387
After 2 years but within 5 years BiE2FEBNREFRN 34,981 36,240 35,435 37,540
After 5 years HBiEs5%F - - 10,365 10,507
49,711 52,034 58,884 62,434
67,619 71,395 74,219 79,761
Less: total future interest expenses i : A 2K F B F % 4288 (3,776) (5,542)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaEREA 67,619 74,219

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has
not been restated. Further details on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16
are set out in note 1(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movement in components of equity

20 BFx - FWRER
(a) EEHIED

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

The recongiliation between the opening and closing balances REBEGREEZS B MBI KBRS
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set BRI BRE NG A EREE X -
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual AAEEEERIAKBYHFEINRER
components of equity between the beginning and the end of BEFEHIIWOT
the year are set out below:
The Company FiN/NE|
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
R RIEE BRAGRE REEH #@st
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Birzx T T T T T
At 1 January 2018 —T-N\¥—-A-H 40,000 82,867 81 114,409 237,357
Profit and total comprehensive FRGFREERGZEE
income for the year - - - 11,864 11,864
Dividends approved in respect FFEHRAENRS
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - - - (74,000) (74,000)
Dividends declared in respect AEEEERKE
of the current year 20(b)()) - - - (36,000) (36,000)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\F+ZA=1—H 40,000 82,867 81 16,273 139,221
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NE—F—H 40,000 82,867 81 16,273 139,221
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREMZENEEE
income for the year - - - 17,501 17,501
Dividends approved in respect A FEANRE
of the previous year 20(b)(i) - - - (16,000) (16,000)
At 31 December 2019 —E-AFt+-A=t-H 40,000 82,867 81 17,774 140,722

—NE®R | HREE

EREEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B R AR M A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (4 2A RSN » LABT271)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 20 BFX  -EERER (&)
(b) Dividends b)) KRE

() Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the ) FAEEZESEQATEZRREREZ
Company attributable to the year BE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
Interim dividend declared and paid of B &k RIK{T 2+ ERRL S
$Nil (2018: 9.0 cents) BREBKRT
per ordinary share (Z2—N\F : 9.0811) - 36,000
Final dividend proposed after the end of # %45 Bi R 14 38 E < 22 7R ER
the reporting period of 4.0 cents % B IR E @A 4.0 7810
(2018: 4.0 cents) per ordinary share ZZ—)\F  4.080) 16,000 16,000
16,000 52,000
The final dividend proposed after the end of the R & EIREEIR T 2 RAAR B
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability RRBEARERREE -
at the end of the reporting period.

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FAMERKSZAI—HEREZ
Company attributable to the previous financial EaARARERERRIRTZBRE
year, approved and paid during the year

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
$°000 $000
Tt Tt
Final dividend in respect of the previous R4 A& &Ik {2 B2
financial year, approved and paid A— BB K
during the year, of 4.0 cents I B F AR 4.0 AL
(2018: 18.5 cents) per share (ZZ— N\ : 18.5/%1) 16,000 74,000
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Share capital

—
AR

v

SR RSBy D

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

20 BE - FWRER#)

(c) K=&
2019 2018
e A
No. of shares Amount  No. of shares Amount
RGBE kit RiHEE g
$ $
BT BT

Authorised:
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each

At 1 January and 31 December

EE
FRAE1IETMNERR

®—A—BRk+=A=+—H 10,000,000,000

1,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of $0.1 each

At 1 January and 31 December

ERITRAR
BREECIETMNEAK

R—A—BRrkt+-A=+—H

400,000,000

40,000,000

400,000,000 40,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(@

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve of the Company arose from the
Group’s reorganisation completed in January 2008.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of financial
statements of foreign operations.

The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(u).

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA

(d)

EEBHE ABREEBESE RS -
WHERRARRGZE LRERERMDRE—
R-MEEBERARARGBEESZH
RIS HER o

RENEEREW

U]

(i)

(iii)

R0 1E

B EERZERYARE—N
N—FRALEEAOFIRE -

BB
RRRNERFENR_TENF—
AR EBERRES -

BE 5 R

BEE S (o 88 B TR IR IR S SR A5 B TS
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

234

(e)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an
adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted
net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings and lease liabilities) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital comprises all components
of equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach. Under this approach, the Group
recognises right-of-use assets and corresponding lease
liabilities for leases previously accounted for as operating
leases as from 1 January 2019. This caused an increase in
the Group’s total debt and hence the Group’s adjusted net
debt-to-capital ratio rose from 31.4% to 46.4% on 1 January
2019 when compared to its position as at 31 December
2018.

Considering the impact of the application of HKFRS 16,
during 2019, the Group reassessed the range at which it
maintains its adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to be 40% to
55% (2018: 25% to 40%). In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019
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20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the end of
the current and previous reporting periods and at the date of

transition to HKFRS 16 was as follows:

20 BF - EmBRERRE
(e) EXEE(HE)
AN 5 [ 5 & AT S5 BT 8 5 B R DA TR B

EREMBRE

BFEBHEARLERWT

31 December

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

ERFE165E HRLEH

1 January 31 December

2019 2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
+=A Z—Z—h#HF +=A
=+-—H —HA—H =+—HA
(Note) (Note)
(BfF&E) (PF5E)
Note $’000 $'000 $'000
B sE SEoE T Tt
Bank loans RITER 18 408,464 371,732 371,732
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 67,619 74,219 -
Total debt 1E(ETS 476,083 445,951 371,732
Less: Cash and B BReREeEEY
cash equivalents 16(a) (263,505) (216,897) (216,897)
Net debt B FEE 212,578 229,054 154,835
Total equity attributable to 7~ T 25 IR R B
equity shareholders RS
of the Company 448,308 493,343 493,343
Net debt-to-capital ratio = FERYUELRL =R 47.4% 46.4% 31.4%

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this

approach, the comparative information is not restated. See note 1(d).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

—NE®R | HREE

M ASBEREEIDENETRERTEYBRE %R
F16RUHER T - NF—A—BOFIEH -
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a)

236

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables and contract assets. The Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with sound credit ratings for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk and the Group has exposure
limit to any single financial institution.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as set
out in note 23, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in
note 23.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry or region in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 34% and 74%
(2018: 33% and 77%) of the total trade receivables and
contract assets was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 14 to 45 days from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors and
contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. Given the customers of
the Group are mainly reputable companies and the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
and its related organisations and institutional bodies and the
Group has not experienced any significant credit losses in the
past, management considered that the allowance for ECLs is
insignificant. As a result, no provision for impairment of trade
debtors and contract assets is necessary during the year.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short-term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
the expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
parent company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting periods of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

R B R R M A

nt

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

21 MERBREEREMIALTFE®)

(a)

(b)

—NE®R | HREE
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 21 MBEARETEREMIALFEHE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2019

(b) REBEER(E)
R-B-NF+=-A=t+—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BRRERBAERE

More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years but

1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
1R 10 E 2Bk
RERE B2&FR B5FR st HREE
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
T Tr T Tr T
Trade and other payables FERNEB SRR
Hp 58 945,463 - - 945,463 945,463
Retentions payable JEMHRFES 244,833 42,590 74,256 361,679 361,679
Bank loans RITER 409,843 - - 409,843 408,464
Lease liabilities (note (i) HEAE (FIFEG) 19,361 15,794 36,240 71,395 67,619

1,619,500 58,384 110,496 1,788,380 1,783,225

Financial guarantees ERHETEER

issued (note (ii)): (BEEE (ii)) -
Maximum amount RREREE
guaranteed (note 23) (Bizx23)

88,530 = = 88,530 19,464
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)
At 31 December 2018

21 MERBREEREMIALTFE®)

(b)

REBESERE(E)
R=ZB-N\F+=A=+-—H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRIFR LR
More than More than
Within 1yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
1FANK 1L 2F M+
N B2FR B5FR e REE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T v T T v
Trade and other payables ~ EfNZ ZEER KL
H A e B 835,441 - - 835,441 835,441
Retentions payable [ERRES 165,948 92,764 51,464 310,176 310,176
Bank loans RITER 372,927 - - 372,927 371,732
1,374,316 92,764 51,464 1,518,544 1,517,349
Financial guarantees ERHMBER
issued (note (ii)): (HYEE (ii)) -
Maximum amount RRERER
guaranteed (note 23) (PdE23) 94,389 - - 94,389 12,714
Notes: gz

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January
2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases which were
previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17. Under this
approach, the comparative information is not restated. See note 1(d).

(ii) The Group is exposed to liquidity risk that arises from guarantees in
respect of banking facilities of joint venture and joint operations. The
guarantees are callable if the respective joint venture and joint
operations are unable to meet their obligations.

FEEFEBEETENETREREBUBRELER
FIORYHABER T NF— B —BHFI&EH
NHERENRBETE G ENF 7RO BRELH
EZHEABNEERE - REBETE  LRERT
FEI (R »

AEEEBAAZECERAEEBNRTRERME
RFELNRDECRR - HAEMAELE  A8X
BARBEERET  ARBEAURERKBEE
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(BREERBS - LUBTTZT)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

240

(c)

21

BERREEREMIALTFE®)

Interest rate risk () F=mp
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash FERBRA-—ELHMTANQFEIK
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of IR B 7 2 A T 45 ) 38 2R 2 T O B P
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to ERBER - AEBEIFENFKRIRITE
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank FoEEMREREBTHESIA@BER
borrowings, pledged deposits and cash at banks. Interest TREBMERE - HFRR/RITFRL
rate risk on bank deposits is considered immaterial and FERRI NEKX - FIL I E G EHA
therefore have been excluded from the sensitivity analysis AT EREDHT o WA R KIERE - &
below. If interest rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate PG REVE E FE T B R R E R o
measures would be taken to manage interest risk exposure.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly rEENHEERENERREEEFR
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank FEARRITERMEENETBRITHE
Offered Rate arising from its variable-rate bank borrowings. EIRBEORE) - AEEF BRITREREF]
The interest rates and terms of repayment of interest-bearing RN EBIETN SRR T 18IHEE -
bank borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.
() Interest rate profile i) FRBER
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRABAEENREHRAER
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period. BRI R IE R
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERFIZE ot BN E Gk
% $°000 % $°000
Tt Tt
Fixed rate borrowings: ElERREF :
Lease liabilities (note) HEAE T 25 67,619 - -
Variable rate borrowings: ] & F|ZEE/ :
Bank loans RITERK 3.97 408,464 3.78 371,732
Total borrowings sz 476,083 371,732
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified MEE : ANEBEERLIESTTRNZERERAE BV HHRSER

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. Under this approach, the comparative information is
not restated. See note 1(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 150 basis points (2018: 100 basis
points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the Group’s
result after taxation and retained profits by
approximately $5,116,000 (2018: $3,104,000) in
response to the general increase/decrease in interest
rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the exposure to
cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate
bank borrowings held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s result after
taxation and retained profits is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis as 2018.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables and cash
balances that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which the transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to
this risk is primarily Renminbi, United States dollars and Great
British Pound.

In respect of cash balances denominated in foreign
currencies, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies
at spot rates where necessary.

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

21 MERBREEREMIALTFE®)

(c)

(d)

—NE®R | HREE

FERER (&)
(i) HRBREDWN

T-NF+ZA=+—08 %
ﬁﬁ*ﬁ,ﬁu BERBTENERLT -
TR R 3, T 38150 (BE
ZH(=ZT— )\ : 100fE &) © &
EEIRR TR HEE R B EER
KRR L TAD R
495,116,000 (=T — \4F :
3,104,000/ 7T) °

ESREE DT RRANEENRE
IR BB N R RITIERTE
EHERSRENERER - HAEE
BB EERRBENNTZE 1
ARy RS E SR FL

FEFLG - ZFOMZE_F
—N\FHRRNEELET -
B ER
AEBHBRNESRREZREUINE

(BNER 22 5 AR R M) & i Th B 1 B EE LA SN
ETﬁ@ﬁﬁmf%%%% R E A AR
FRIE -~ BT E 5 0R 3R % H th B 5 B A
&ﬁ%m% EEtRBHNEYEES
ARE  ETTREE o

HRUSNERENR S B8 AREE
S B 12D S 5 B DA TR LR
BEENTEELT -
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21

242

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong
dollars, translated using the spot rate at the year end
date.

21 MERBREEREMIALTE®)

(d)

B ERE(E)

@

BERER

TRFAVIALERIRE BRI
AR E I EE NG E
MEBEREENBBEMEENEY
BB - 2 - FTABRREBRH ST
LR F A AR EE R B E R TS
= o

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SRR (B THIR)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T-N\E

United Great United Great

States British States British

dollars Renminbi Pound dollars  Renminbi Pound

Y AR¥ e £ AR W

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T T Fr Tt Tt Tt
Trade and other receivables ~ [EUE SEER K

o FEURIA 1,677 2,557 - - 2,833 -
Trade and other payables BN E SRR K

H b e 208 (7,228) (2,202) (714) - (2,535) -

Cash and cash equivalents  IR& MRS EEYD 6,912 587 4,286 954 186 4,064
Gross exposure arising WREEREE

from recognised assets EEZEKREE
and liabilities 1,361 942 3,572 954 484 4,064
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (ﬁ%%ﬁ}‘éﬁﬂ Gh - LUBITT25)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 21 MERRERREMIAATFHEE)
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d E¥ERE)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) BBEDN

The following table indicates the instantaneous change Tﬁ?ﬂmﬁﬂiﬁlﬁf‘ﬁiﬁﬁﬂifﬁj“
in the Group’s result after tax (and retained profits) and Fra HAb R S & s &
other components of consolidated equity that would a8 KR A E = e B ijﬁ“
arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has B REBERBEZER(RRE R
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period ) Rtz & i E b B R RN B &
had changed at that dates, assuming all other risk goghtims - EREETEER
variables remained constant. In this respect, it is HHAEENTAESTeL BT
assumed that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong METHHBERESSATE -
dollars and the United States dollars would be materially ZR - B TTIEAEEER R
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of EEE - AETEMEMRITRFIER
United States dollars against other currencies. That is, S RE ISR -

for entities with Hong Kong dollars as their functional
currencies, United States dollars denominated cash at
banks and in hand is assumed to have no currency risk

exposure.
2019 2018

—E-—NEF —E-)\F
Increase/ Effecton Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) result after (decrease) result after
in foreign taxand in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
EX HRHE X HRHIE
tH EERRE R RERRE
(FH) BRNEE (TR winps
% $000 % $'000
T3 T
Renminbi AR 10% 79 3% 12
(10)% (79) (3)% (12)
Great British Pound i 10% 298 3% 102
(10)% (298) 3)% (102)
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(e)

244

(i)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects
on each of the Group entities’ result after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional currency,
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation
puUrposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in
foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period, including inter-company payables
and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The
analysis is performed on the same basis as 2018.

Fair values

(@

(i)

Financial instrument measured at fair value

The Group’s derivative financial instrument of interest
rate swap is measured using discounted cash flow
methodology. The discount rate used is derived from
the relevant yield curve as at the end of the reporting
period plus an adequate constant credit spread. This
derivative financial instrument falls within Level 2 fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they occur.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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d) E¥@ERE)

(i)

BRESW (F)

EXRE2INDTERDIAEEEE
BORMHEFERES(BEAW
DR ERTE) AXABEENS
A WIRRERREFERRES
BT ARESZA e

GURED T IBRRERNEEHE A
REHFTEREEN RS HRAE
BEAEERRIIMNERRNZES
BIA BEAREARRREAE
RALERARINEEEIAINE
W ETE R FE A SR I B WROR - itk
DT T RIS BINEIS R B RER
BERAREN 27 EEMELH
ER - REAMREA T~ \FH
FIH)EAEETT o

(e) 2AFE

@

(ii)

BRAFEFENSHTIA

REBNMEBRITESRTAT)
ERMRREMEETE - BHRE
Ty R B R A AR RS e R AR
MEENEEEESESH - %7
EeRTARBNEEMBRESE
SRR EN A FEBRE?
o

RE-F-AEt-A=t+-8-
E1EMREER 2 AR
B AWALSHEIER - A
EEMBE AR ATFEERZHE
B R MRS o

BAVENMIMNEESRNERT
=}

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SRAE M BRERNE

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

22 COMMITMENTS 22 AKiE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2019 not @ RZE-NAF+-ZA=+—08 &%
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: MRARBEOERAEOT
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
$’000 $°000
Tt FT
Contracted for RHES! - 5,500
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease ) RZZE-NF+ZA=+—8B BEL
payments under non-cancellable operating leases were A SH A R A FE N B SR R S AR AE & K
payable as follows: TH@FEIAT -
Properties
L/
$'000
T+
Within 1 year —F R 22,420
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 22,659
45,079
The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties REBEABRBEEASTENE179RER]
under leases which were previously classified as operating DREAKEHEZHEE THNZIEME

leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to these
leases (see note 1(d)). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the
statement of financial position in accordance with the policies
set out in note 1(), and the details regarding the Group’s
future lease payments are disclosed in note 19.

—NE®R | HREE

REFAA o REBEF R SIERTE WA
FREATETHRELERNFE 165 o BRI
A% REBR-_E—HhE—A—H
WENEHRDAL  UWERRNZSHE
EEMmHEEEBE(AWFEId) - 8=
—NE—A—BE  REME1()FTE
B RRBEMRTIR MM R R AHE
REMEAE BEHRAEERKBER
FHFIBRM 194 EE -
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23 FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

246

@)

As at 31 December 2019, approximately $387,310,000 (2018:
$402,995,000) of performance bonds were given by financial
institutions to the Group in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group’s obligation under the contracts entered into between
the Group and their customers. The Group has provided
guarantees of the above performance bonds. If the Group
fails to provide satisfactory performance to its customers to
whom performance bonds have been given, such customers
may demand the financial institutions to pay to them the sum
or sums stipulated in such demand. The Group will then
become liable to compensate such financial institutions
accordingly. The performance bonds will be released upon
completion of the contract works. The performance bonds
were granted under the banking facilities with details as set
out in note 18(b).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors of the
Company do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has provided
guarantees of $166,447,000 (2018: $214,991,000)
representing a 50% proportionate guarantee in respect of
certain banking facilities of $332,893,000 (2018:
$429,981,000) granted to its joint venture in Macau. The 50%
proportionate facilities were utilised to the extent of
$88,530,000 (2018: $94,389,000), of which amounts of
$60,756,000 (2018: $73,530,000) represent performance
bonds given by financial institutions to the customers of the
joint venture.

The Group has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of these guarantees as their fair values cannot be
reliably measured using observable market data and no
transaction price was incurred.

The subsidiaries of the Group are defendants in a number of
claims, lawsuits and potential claims relating to employee’s
compensation cases and personal injuries claims. The
directors of the Company considered that the possibility of
any economic outflow in settling the legal claims is remote as
these claims are all well covered by insurance. Accordingly,
no provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of these
litigations is necessary, after due consideration of each case.
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RZFE—hhF+_A=+—8 ¢
BUAEEEFAZZARED
387,310,000/ t( = & — J\ F:
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AEBZERTRETALEBETEA
FIVAEHNBETEENER - ASEE A
A EBHRFBIRMER - WAKERAE
MERBHRENEFPZEBITET
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B ZRETHAMNE - AR ANEEEMAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A B IS RaR P A

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (% B & &AM - LB TT25)

24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

24 EXRABBERS

Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEEASNHH
Remuneration of key management personnel of the Group, AEEFZEBABNFH(2ECSHT
including amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8 EEMFE)RMFERE  mMETES
and certain of the highest paid employees and senior FWEENSREEEBRHIFTOWEE -
management as disclosed in note 9.
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
$°000 $000
Tt Tz
Short-term employee benefits HHEERA 19,632 20,888
Post-employment benefits BB 2 @A 661 725
20,293 21,613
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). FMNRETATEINA] (F2EMF
B(b)) °
Transactions with related parties (b) EEEBAINXRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed RZEVBREAMABDTEENRZS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the RESBIN  FAREE ARG T
following transactions with the related parties during the year EERBBERANTIRS :
which the directors consider to be material:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
Note $°000 $’000
B &E F T
Housing management and BEEIENER
related service income BR IS A i) - 163
Rental expenses, license fees, HeEMxZ - FUE -
air-conditioning and service RRMREE
charges (ii) 2,318 8,967
Property management services VB TR RIS R
and property consultancy EE R AR S A
services income (iii) 4,555 5,930

The ultimate controlling party of the Group is a substantial
shareholder of Great Eagle Holdings Limited.

REENSKESTRAEEEEERA
AT EMRE -
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24 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 24
(Continued)

248

(b) Transactions with related parties (Continued)

(c)

Notes:

i) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group mainly earned
housing management service income from subsidiaries of Great Eagle
Holdings Limited.

(ii) During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group paid
rental expenses to a subsidiary of Great Eagle Holdings Limited and a
subsidiary of Sun Fook Kong Group Limited.

(iii) During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group
provided property management services and property consultancy
services to subsidiaries of Sun Fook Kong Group Limited.

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of notes 24(b)(i), (iii)
as disclosed below fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The amount of each
category of related party transactions in respect of notes
24(b)(ii), (iii) for the year ended 31 December 2019 is as
follows:

EXEABAEXS (&)

(b) EREBLIHNXZ(E)
X

0} PHE-Z-NF+_A=+—HLFE"
FEERAEREEEERARNHBARE
ZHRMEEEERBUA -

(ii) RBE-_ZE-NFR-_ZF-NF+=A
ZH-HUEFE AREAEEREERA
AN —ENBAR RN EEEEGRAFMN
—FREARXNEEMX -

(i) RBE-Z-NFR-Z-N\F+=A
St-HUEFE AEERHESEEEGR
ARIZHBARIRHYMEETERGE KMER
IR -

(c) RBREXZHEBzZLTRAUNER
3

T ST EE 24(o) (i) R (i) P BB 2 BEES 5 2
SER ETHRANFEAAZERTTENEE
RPRFEEERS - BEZ_T—NF
TZA=+—HIEFE - MFE24(0)) &
(i) Frit 7 SHEREME A XSS EAT

Property
Rental management
expenses, services and

license fees, property
air-conditioning consultancy
and service services
charges income
HeElx - MEER

HUE - RERWE
RREREBRHEE BERRBKRA
(note 24(b)i))  (note 24(p)(i))
(FFEE24 (D)) (P 5E24 (o))

$'000 $000
Tt Tt
Constitute connected transactions B FmRAIE14AZFT
or continuing connected EENBEZFK
transactions as defined in FEMRER S
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules 2,318 4,555

The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are set out in “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
report of the directors on pages 133 to 138.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group contributes to an Occupational Retirements Scheme
(the “ORSO Scheme”), a defined contribution retirement scheme,
which is available to some of its employees in Hong Kong. Under
the ORSO Scheme, the employees are required to contribute 5%
of their monthly salaries, while the Group’s contributions are
calculated at 5% of the monthly salaries of the employees as well.
The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
after 10 years of completed service, or at a reduced scale after
completion of 3 to 9 years’ service. Contributions to the ORSO
Scheme are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in the Group’s
contributions.

A mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) has been
established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance in December 2000. The then existing
employees of the Group in Hong Kong could elect to join the MPF
Scheme, while all new employees joining the Group in Hong Kong
from then onwards are required to join the MPF Scheme. Both the
Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of each
individual’s relevant income with a maximum amount of $1,500 per
month as a mandatory contribution. Employer’s mandatory
contributions are 100% vested in the employees as soon as they
are paid to the MPF Scheme. Senior employees may also elect to
join Mutual Voluntary Plan in which both the Group and the
employees, on top of the MPF Scheme mandatory contributions,
make a voluntary contribution to the extent of contributions that
would have been made under the ORSO Scheme.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by the appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

25

—NE®R | HREE

SRAE M BRERNE

(Fr=E RPN - BTTZS)

& BB FiaF
AEBEREED B ERERIAFEHFURK
FHE - BIEBERREH & (TR IRET 8]
o RIBBE RS - BEARA $ﬁ5%f
R AEENHKETIREE AFHS%TE
RERBFEMIOFENAIZHRE100%HK -
i AR 7% 4 & Z 3= 94 RI R = A 48 FE i Rl Lo 7
MEZHA - RAEENHREBEBEARH
BEREARBINZER BRI - ATRE
HURP B R R BIRO MK -

mEEATRETE ((RESAH DN =TT
ZEA+ - ARBEBRHIMELTE S BEHIK
Vo AEBEERAFTENES TREBMARE

TRHE MAKBHREETENBENIER
BHAMABREETE - AREREEBHAR

EABBEBAR ELBHIEER - EBAK
= R ER 51,6008 7T » fERSRHIMEHK - £
FSREE SN RIER - BERBIEHKEEE
BEME - SMEBRIARESEARHKG
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26

27

28
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COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

26 LNFEEMBERRE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
Note $’°000 $'000
B 5T Tt Tt
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interest in subsidiaries R B R RMERE 20,081 20,081
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JEUR B B A R FA 60,941 119,152
Other receivables H b fE G0 216 -
Cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEY 100,513 143
161,670 119,295
Current liabilities REBAE
Amount due to a subsidiary FES — BB A B 5/08 40,676 -
Other payables Hith fET 3R 353 155
41,029 155
Net current assets REBEEFE 120,641 119,140
NET ASSETS EEFE 140,722 139,221
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARR#E 20
Share capital A& 20(c) 40,000 40,000
Reserves B 100,722 99,221
TOTAL EQUITY XA 140,722 139,221

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 20(b)(i).
COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under this approach, the
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note 1(d).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Sun Fook Kong
Group Limited, which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and
Mr. Lo Kai Shui respectively. They do not provide financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and a new standard, HKFRS
17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and which have not been adopted in
these financial statements. These developments include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

29

30

SRAE M BRERNE

(% SEESS - BT L)
HERERIZHEA

RZZE-NFF+ZA=+—H EZRE K
SENERBRRREEIEHT DR AR EB
HRRBEEEMKINFREEEERAR N
BRUR L - MEBEALREHAIEIRALER
M TS

ERTEARRBEE_S—AFE+Z
R=+—HLEEERMHEET - i
AIRRETRIERHEE

BEZSUBHRERTEZR  TEGHMNAE
ERMBERBE_T-NAF+_A=1t—H
LIEFR A ARERERT ke — IR R
M mEENFEAT  RERAEA  MZEWG
BRUBRAZFET NFER - ZFBRE
FREAEETREABN TSR -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTHBEBARAE
BB ETHHIEER

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

FEMBHREERIE IR AER] - FHAEE

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material
ERSTENF 1R RBESTENE SR I1EE]  EAUAER

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

TE-NFR | FERERREEBER QA
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
TFEHHEHR

ARER B i B R R 80 SO0 B E M BFE
MR ERENREERBBNBEZHIIMT

The summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the audited
financial statements is set out below:

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REaER
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ET-RF —T—RFE —T—+F —T)\F ZEBE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FAET FHET FHET F#&T
Revenue U 25 2,733,571 3,002,023 4,611,972 6,197,164 5,461,871
Gross profit EF| 167,301 196,487 247,159 273,176 75,149
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF,(EE) 72,356 106,111 142,691 129,321 (29,402)
Attributable to: FELL
Shareholders of the Company 22 TR R 71,962 105,967 141,874 129,689 (28,827)
Non-controlling interests IEfE = 394 144 817 (368) (575)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY FERE ARRES
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—ET-RF —T—RFE —T—+F —T)\HF ZEB-hFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET FHEIT F#&T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EMEEE 28,379 30,433 68,169 79,497 150,554
Current assets RENEE 1,490,946 1,333,530 1,845,550 2,079,893 2,231,062
Total assets BEME 1,519,325 1,363,963 1,913,719 2,159,390 2,381,616
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REIAE 1,034,290 909,062 1,435,473 1,660,893 1,879,194
Non-current liabilities EmEBE 3,244 3,165 3,451 4,717 54,253
Total liabilities BE®5E 1,037,534 912,227 1,438,924 1,665,610 1,933,447
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable A EI R FELS
to shareholders of S AREE
the Company 481,948 451,749 473,991 493,343 448,308
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 (157) (13) 804 437 (139)
Total equity ey k| 481,791 451,736 474,795 493,780 448,169
252 SFK Construction Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019
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